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IMPORTANT NOTE

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee, and
the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (the
“Company”) confirmed that there are no material omissions and
misrepresentations or serious misleading statements in this interim
report and accept join and several responsibility for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the contents of the report.

All Directors attended the meeting except director Mr. Song Xingju
and independent non-executive director Mr. Chen Ying. Mr. Song
and Mr. Chen could not attend the meeting due to official duties,
and they appointed director Mr. Pi Jianguo and independent non-
executive director Mr. Wayne Yu to vote on their behalves at the
meeting respectively.

The financial statements of the interim report are unaudited.

During the reporting period, no funds were appropriated by the
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Gao Minghui, Chairman of the Company, Mr. Pi Jianguo, Chief
Financial Officer, and Ms. Zhao Qiongfen, Accounting Supervisor,
have declared that they assure for the truthfulness and completeness
of the financial statements contained in this interim report.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY
COMPANY INFORMATION

Name of the Company (Chinese):

B EERBERBN AR A

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese):
B2 BA # IR

Name of the Company (English):
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE
TOOL COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English):
kmtcl

Place of A Shares Listing:
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short name of the Company’s A Shares:
B2 BA M PR

Stock Code of A Shares:
600806

Place of H Shares Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Short name of the Company’s H Shares:
Kunming Machine

Stock Code of H Shares:
0300
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Company Registered Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Company Business Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Postal Code:
650203

Company’s internet website:
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

Company’s email address:
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn

Company’s Legal Representative:
Mr. Gao Minghui

Secretary to the Board:
Mr. Luo Tao

Telephone:
86-871-6166612

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Securities Affairs Representative:
Ms. Wang Bihui

Telephone:
86-871-6166623

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC
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Company’s designated newspaper for publishing:
China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities Daily, and Securities
Times.

Company’s designated internet websites for publishing interim report
in the PRC and Hong Kong:

http://www.sse.com.cn,

http://www.hkex.com.hk and

http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

Company designated address for interim report:
Room 216, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Other Relevant Information

Date of Incorporation:
19th October, 1993

Place of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Date of First Change of Registration:
29th March, 2002

Date of Second Change of Registration:
1st December, 2007

Place of First Change of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Second Change of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Business Registration Number:
1& %A 42 7 5500068255

Tax Registration Number:
530111622602196

Appointed Auditors in the PRC:
Zonzun Accounting Office Limited

Address:
4/F., Guoxing Building, 22 Capital Road South, Haiding District,
Beijing, the PRC

Appointed Auditors outside the PRC:
KPMG

Address:
8/F., Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road Central, Hong Kong
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(7)) EZE B WR A B (2) PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
32wl SR A 0 IR 1.  Major Accounting Information and Financial Indicators
By AR
Unit: RMB
EHREMKL
THEMKEK ITEEMEX LEERKBRE%)
As at As at
30th June, 31st December,
"E Items 2008 2007 Difference (%)
REE Total assets 2,004,924,137.02 1,779,007,685.99 12.70
Fra&EEz (SR E#Z)  Total shareholders’ equity 912,737,337.22 879,379,127.94 3.79
BRFEE (L) Net assets per share (dollar) 2.15 2.07 3.79
BEH EHREMLE
(1—-68) ITERHY L ERRABRE (%)
For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30th June, 30th June,
"E Items 2008 2007 Difference (%)
EE A Operating profit 154,381,972.39 99,810,995.25 54.67
FERE Total profit 179,494,603.23 116,421,652.15 54.18
FRE (BRERARIFIAE) Net profit (attributable to
the shareholders of
the Company) 148,071,729.27 94,343,873.43 56.95
MRFEBHERERED Net profit excluding
F F non-recurring items 122,781,950.05 79,081,968.82 55.26
EXRGRIKE (7T) Basic earnings per share
(dollar) 0.3485 0.2221 56.95
MBRIELFEBEZHEL Basic earnings per share
Bk la (o) excluding non-recurring
items (dollar) 0.2890 0.1861 55.26
wmEgRKE (7T) Diluted earnings per share
(dollar) 0.3485 0.2221 56.95
FEERZE %) Return on net assets (%) 15.85 10.73  #EiN5.12EE D 24
Increased 5.12
percentage points
KERFEEN Net cash flow from
RenEFHE operating activities 65,433,262.99 105,575,172.31 (38.02)
BREEFDHEEN Net cash flow per share
RenEFHE from operating activities 0.15 0.25 (38.02)
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The Return on net assets and earnings per share prepared in
accordance with No. 9 of Rules for the Compilation and
Submission of Information Disclosure by Public Offering

Companies issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission

are as follows:

BPEERSE(%) BERKE (T
B BE
2EHE miEFy BEWKE SRk
Return of net assets (%) Earnings per share (dollar)
Basic Diluted
Profit during Weighted earnings earnings
REHNE the reporting period Fully diluted average per share per share
BEERARLBER Net profit attributable to
f% R 8 F ) E the shareholders of
the Company 15.85 15.53 0.3485 0.3485
MBRIELERERRE Net profit excluding non-recurring
FER AR items attributable to
T im AR AR 3R A% A E the shareholders of
the Company 13.45 12.88 0.2890 0.2890
Fh SN P AR H A4 3. Non-recurring items for the period
By AR T
Unit: RMB
EMEREHH KRS
For the six months ended
EEFHREHEAH Non-recurring items 30th June, 2008
IR EEREER Loss on disposal of non-current assets 227,775
FFAEHEENRNREE- Government grants (except for the grants
BE AR EBEZERE which have closely related to the Company’s
RRERS —EEFEEK business and have the standard amount and
22 X8 BT BRI quantities in accordance with the national standard.) 26,376,770
TEEHERA NLXERIH Enterprises restructure expenses, e.g. expenses
TH-BEEESE for employee placement, integration expenses (1,578,450)
HiIELTEHEERIEER Other non-recurring items 86,538
HAEHRERANTE Impact on profits tax 177,146.22

PAN-—
= A

Total

25,289,779.22
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BEFEasEN 4, Major Accounting Information and Financial Indicators prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting Standards
By ARKT T
Unit: RMB’000
EHWEMKL
FEEHXK LEEPHR LEEHFREBR®)
As at As at
30th June, 31st December,
TEFHHE Items 2008 2007 Difference (%)
MENEE Current assets 1,377,975 1,171,001 17.67
mEEE Current liabilities 940,852 742,422 26.73
REE Total assets 1,988,466 1,764,718 12.68
REEz (T L ERF#EZ) Total shareholders’ equity
(excluding minority interest) 902,585 869,359 3.82
ERFEE () Net assets per share (dollar) 2.124 2.046 3.82
XEEPRLELEE
TEEHK LEBEH [7) RA 38 iRk (%)
For the six months ended 30th June
TEFHEHE Items 2008 2007 Difference (%)
& AE Net profit for the period 147,940 95,004 55.72
Bz (T) Earnings per share (dollar) 0.348 0.224 55.36
FEERDE(%) Return on net assets (%) 16.01 10.93  #HN5.08ME & o 24
Increased 5.08
percentage points
L BB E L Cash inflow from
WEeMEFE operating activities 61,027 145,544 (58.10)
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Difference between PRC Accounting Standards (“PRC Standards™)

and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“Hong Kong Standards™):

Ffr: T BREAREK
Unit: RMB’000

BHE BEE
EHI® LHI® B R ®
Net Profit Shareholders’ equity
For the six months As at As at
ended 30th June 1st January, 30th June,
HE Items 2008 2007 2008 2008
Zh e 2R As per the financial statements
prepared under PRC Standards 148,072 94,344 879,379 912,737
BEBGTEAFAEN Adjusted in accordance
DB REE: with the Hong Kong Standards
gt Profit tax - 501 - -
NEHETEEZR Differences among internal
sales depreciation - 190 - -
REGEBEDN Gain on investment
®E W= in jointly controlled entity(ies) - - (8,869) (8,869)
iR FE W a5 9 2 Adjustment on defer gain - (31) 57 57
G ] Amortization of goodwill - - (1,428) (1,428)
H it Others (132) - 220 88
BREEATHEHES Consolidated results
in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards 147,940 95,004 869,360 902,586

= JBeA B W B B R DL

(—) JBe by 5% ) % B &

OF THE COMPANY

(1) CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

B R
Unit: Share
FREBN FREPAE(+0-) *REDH
BITHR/ LRe
BE L 8(%) -1 L] it it BE (%)
Before the change Changes during the period (+, -) After the change
Conversion
New Shares/ from
Proportion Bonus capital Proportion
Amount (%) Shares reserves Others Sub-total Amount (%)
— HREKHRR . Shares subject to selling restrictions
1. R 1. state-owned shares - - - - - - - -
2. BREARR 2. state-owned legal person
shares 153,596,550 36.15 - - - - 153,596,550 36.15
3. HthERRK 3. Other domestic shares 26,414,550 6.22 - - (21,243244)  (21,243,244) 5,171,306 1.22
A BREBAEARR Including: domestic non-state-owned
legal person shares - - - - - - - -
BRERARR domestic nature person - - - - - - - -
4. HERK 4. foreign owned shares
EdBNEARR including: shares owned
by foreign legal person - - - - - - - -
BHERAER Shares owned by foreign
nature person - - - - - - - -
AREGEERRAH Total 180,011,100 42.37 - - (21,243244)  (21,243,244) 158,767,856 37.37
= BREKHRERR Il Shares subject to selling unrestrictions
1. ARBEER 1. RMB ordinary shares 132,137,933 31.10 - - 21,243,244 21,243,244 153,381,177 36.10
2. BRETHHNER 2. domestic listed foreign shares - - - - - - - -
3. BNETHSNER 3. Overseas listed foreign shares 112,715,850 26.53 - - N - 112,715,850 26.53
4. Ef 4. Others - - - - - - - -
EREKMRERNAH Total 244,853,783 57.63 - - 21,243044 21,243,244 266,097,027 62.63
= Riries Il Total number of shares 424,864,883 100 - - - - 424,864,883 100
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=) BB (2) SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
M8 BIE e 3 A0 K JBE 1 UL 1. Top Ten Shareholders of the Company
Bl R
Unit: Share
BRERKRBRRAH37715 (K P : ARk 37605F 'HEE 110R) R
As at 30th June, 2008, the Company has 37,715 shareholders
(including 37,605 shareholders of A Shares and 110 shareholders of H Shares)
AtRBRERER
Top Ten Shareholders of the Company
:3::3°4: ] REERE
BXEH BREH (%) FREY HREHAAE GHEROBE HEAIFROROKBE
Number of
Number of selling restricted
shares held shares held
Nature of  Proportion at the end of Increase/ at the end of Number of shares
Name of shareholders shareholders (%) the period Decrease the period pledged or frozen
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED BAINEA 26.00 110,463,468 - - -
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign
legal person
BHEER (RE) EREERA EAEA 25.09 106,578,219 - 106,578,219 R4 22,500,000
Shenyang Machine TooI State-owned Frozen: 22,500,000
(Group) Co., Ltd. legal person
EHEHEEEREERAERA EHEA 11.07 47,018,331 - 47,018,331 -
Yunnan State-owned Assets State-owned
Operation Co., Ltd. legal person
ERBELT BREEFEA 5.44 23,133,760 - 5,171,306 -
Kunming Jinghua Co. Domestic
non-state-owned
legal person
FRERRT-IRHRELARE A 1.26 5,332,589 - - -
ﬁéﬁ%&ﬁ%é Unknown
China Construction Bank
- ICBC Ruixin Dividend-stock
Securities Investment Fund
FERERTRHERAF-RAKE il 1.13 4,789,670 - - -
Eéiﬁﬂﬁﬁl'ﬁ*ﬁﬁhﬁgi Unknown
China Minsheng Banking Corp.
- Oriental Choiceness Mixed
Opening Securities Investment Fund
FEIHRT-PRERRESE A 0.94 4,004,357 - - -
EBHREES Unknown
ICBC - BOC Income Mixed Securities
Investment Fund
FEIBRT-SHEEERK KA 0.90 3,820,000 - - -
BRANEHFRERS Unknown
ICBC-E Fund Value Growth Mixed
Securities Investment Fund
FETIERT-FLTEEFREES il 0.68 2,871,418 - - -
ICBC-Nuoan Balance Securities Unknown
Investment Fund
FEEERT-BRERERRER A 0.60 2,553,001 - - -
BHERBEES Unknown

Agriculture Bank of China-Baoying
strategic Increasing Stock
Securities Investment Fund




102008 iR

1 4 10 B85 B 1F B SR 37 B 1% L Top ten shareholders with selling unrestricted shares

BRRER

Name of shareholders

BRARREGHFRNBE

Number of selling
unrestricted shares

BRBER

Type of shares

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED

BHRHBERR

B ERIRTT — TIRBEALA

BRELEFREES

PERAERTRODER AR -
RABERAEMMAES

REES
FETERT - PREEREASE
BRREES

RERIFHFREESD
FETHRT -V EE

REES
TEEXRT-BEAKBEER

BRELEFREES

TREIFRT-SHTEBERE
o

PETERTT - RABERAE
EHRREES

PERERRIT-FEZAMNESE
ARAEFREES

HKSCC Nominees Limited 110,463,468 RN ETINE R
H Shares
Kunming Jinghua Co. 17,962,454 AR E R
A Shares

China Construction Bank 5,332,589 AR LB
- ICBC Ruixin Dividend-stock A Shares
Securities Investment Fund

China Minsheng Banking Corp. 4,789,670 AR L BR
— Oriental Choiceness Mixed A Shares
Opening Securities Investment Fund

ICBC - BOC Income Mixed 4,004,357 AR LB
Securities Investment Fund A Shares

ICBC - E Fund Value Growth 3,820,000 AR E B
Mixed Securities Investment Fund A Shares

ICBC - Nuoan Balance 2,871,418 AR I @R
Securities Investment Fund A Shares

Agriculture Bank of China 2,553,001 ARBEER
- Baoying Strategic Increasing A Shares
Stock Securities Investment Fund

ICBC - Tianhong Choiceness Mixed 2,546,300 AR L BR
Securities Investment Fund A Shares

China Construction Bank 2,305,297 A R R
— Huaxia Dividend Mixed Opening A Shares

Securities Investment Fund

b SR B D 4 o — 7T B0 B 4 0 3

Al 1 2 1 IR 5 16 1 O 388 P AR SR AR A B
RBEBERKRZ BN FEBBREE 2R
A ER SR ERBRERZMREFE
BB EERIBERC LT RARRRSERE
EERBEEERIE)RAEN —BITBHA A
108 R P BREGERBRER 2 BE
RAHERR (R A R N A A IR & R R B AR
REHERARBBR LA EDRRAR 2 H
R TR R R R -

Explaination of the connected relationship or consistent action
relationship among the above shareholders:

There is no connected relationship among the top ten shareholders
of selling unrestricted circulating shares, legal person shareholders
and state-owned legal person shareholders. The Company was not
notified of any connected relationship or consistent action regulated
by “Information Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of
Shareholding of List Company” among the top ten shareholders of
selling unrestricted circulating shares of the Company. Among the
top ten shareholders, there is no connected relationship among
shareholders of selling restricted circulating shares. The Company
was not notified by its shareholders that there is any relationship
between the shareholders of selling restricted circulating shares
and the shareholders of public shares; and any relationship among
the shareholders of public shares.



2008 Interim Report || 11

Br i EE 2 F ERRE SN 720086 A 30
B REFRBREFTEIZERETITIE
By Ee0lE R (ARBEITELFNAAEER
BAREBRERF25E (20055F&:T) ViR
EOHEMBRRZEBRET REINFTERE Y
HE MBEEEEE(AMBEIRIEN)
F16(NER T KA WEELRE M AL
BARRBDBEITHRA10%IIA - oS-

A10ZREF BERTRMNESK UL (&
5%) BRINHMBREE4E B FERREH
(REBAN) BERAR RGO ERAEIN £
MINE R B HIR (R@) ERET QA
RO ENABEEEAR ZHEBEAFE
ERXLERETAR EROENAEE
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B 122,500,000 10 R4 ERBEQARE
& H 355 #93,280,7900% 19 51 - E A4 AR B
BRMOABLEES TH REIEENG
e

it

1) BEPREE (RIEA) BRAGIAFR G
EREFF#FR - ARAKREZEESKAGH
B AR BB AR BN A AR A 10% B9 1802
B BH AR 48 1% K5 % BIH AR IR BB 18 2 - 22 Bl %
J& i 41 - Chilton Investment Company, Inc.
20086 H8H ##F 2 2 Al HK K 17
17,010,959 % " 1A HAR IR K £915.09% - 15 48
JRZK£94.00% °
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0.77%) ° KB IF K i 875535 5 A— B
REANE £ 2 A1 IR 53 B #1776 13 FE B IR
EFERBEMTEL BN IME RS-

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above as at 30th
June 2008, there were no other shareholders whose shareholdings
exceeded the amount required to be disclosed under Article 60 of
“Administration of the Issuing and Trading of Shares Provisional
Regulations” of the PRC and Issue no. 2 of “The Content and Format
of Disclosure of Information of the Listed Companies” (amended in
2005) and the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
the requirement of reporting; and under Issue no. 16 (1) of the
Securities (Disclosure of Interest) Ordinance under the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Company was not notified of
any interests representing 10% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company.

Among the top ten shareholders, there are four holding 5% or more
of the Company’ shares. They are HKSCC Nominees Limited, which
holds H Shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which
holds the state-owned legal person shares; Yunnan State-owned
Assets Operation Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned legal person
shares; and Kunming Jinghua Company, which holds legal person
shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders are not pledged,
frozen, mortgaged, nor designated except the 22,500,000 frozen
shares of Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and 3,280,790
shares sold by Kunming Jinghua Co.

Note:

1) HKSCC Nominees Limited holds shares on behalf of clients. The
Company did not receive any notification from HKSCC Nominees
Limited that any single H shareholder who held more than 10% in
total share capital of the Company. Holders of H Shares who held
more than 5% of total issued H Shares as follows: on 8 June 2008,
the Company received a notification that Chilton Investment Company
Inc. held 17,010,959 H shares of the Company, representing 15.09%
of total issued H Shares of the Company and 4% of total issued
shared of the Company.

2) Save as disclosed above, the Directors was not notified by any person
(who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who owns the
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company and shall be disclosed to the Company in compliance with
the requirements contained in Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities
and Future Ordinance (“SFO”), or the interest or short position that
shall be included in the prescribed register in accordance with section
336 of SFO.

3) On 6 March 2008, the 12 months selling restricted period for trading
the shares of the Company held by Kunming Jinghua Co. was expired.
From 7 March 2008, 21,243,244 Company shares (representing 5%
total issued shares) holding by Kunming Jinghua Co. can be traded on
Shanghai Stock Exchange. As at 30 June 2008, Kunming Jinghua Co.
has sold 3,280,790 shares of the Company (representing 0.77% of the
total issued share capital of the Company). This issue has been
announced in according to the regulation — Notice Of Supervising The
Shareholders Of Listed Companies Implementing The Rules On
Lessening Terminated Selling Restricted Shareholding, which issued
by Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Number of shares held by the top ten shareholders of selling restricted

foe shares and the conditions of selling restriction
By R
Unit: Share

FREGHBBTLHERRER
FENERE MB|A LS
Bk FREGHERREE BHBRHBE TEHTXHEM ZTHBRMOBE PR &£ &
Trading of selling restricted shares

Number of selling Number of Selling
Name of shareholders restricted shares held additional shares restriction
No. with selling restricted shares at the end of the period Time of Listing to be traded condition
1. BEBBEK(EE)BEREERQA 106,578,219 2010127314 e E ]
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. 31 December 2010 Committed to hold
as stated
in the agreement
2. EHAEBEELRLAREERR 47,018,331  2010F12831H HEAERA
Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. 31 December, 2010 Committed to hold
as stated
in the agreement
3. ERBELR 5,171,306 20096 3A7H 21,243,244 % B SR R G 42
R A 5% ) AR £ 7]
EG+12A (A

Kunming Jinghua Co.

7 March 2009

200843 H7RH) 8
B G+24 R 1%

MEE R B
BAKAE10%

21,243,244 5% of the total
shares  share capital will

be traded after
G+12 months
(after 7 March
2008) and

not more than
10% of total
share capital
will be traded
after G+24
months.
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2. ¥ B JBE R B B B o B A 5 o S 2 Controlling shareholders and actual holders
RBEHANRRZERBRRERERIEGARE There was no change in the controlling shareholders and actual
BAEGT - NAHBERIESAZHANEER holders during the reporting period. The flowchart below shows the
EHERNFEER: relationship between the actual holders and the Company:

AETHEEELEEEREES®
Shenyang State-owned Assets
Supervisory and
Administration Commission

100%

LBHIR (£H) BAREEQTF]
Shenyang Machine Tool
(Group) Co., Ltd

25.08%

LM SR B R B IR IR B PR A &
Sheniji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Co., Ltd

W EF-BERARREUAR IV. DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

(—) WA E g A B Ry 8 (1) CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY DIRECTORS,
L] SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS
MEMNRAAES EF aREEAERER There was no change of shareholding held by directors, supervisors
REEE - and senior management officers.

(Z2) 07 W0 o e W9y ) o ~ N o~ g A (2) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FA B HE ot SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS
.4 RESBER BERE
Name Position Date of appointment/cessation
REER EEARDA LR 200854 A29A 1
Mr. Zhang Xiaoyi Appointed as general manager of the Company Appointed on 29 April 2008
® R BERARREFEWE 20084 5H28H #E{E
Mr. Luo Tao Appointed as secretary to the board Appointed on 28 May 2008
a2 BEXRRRNITES 200846 H 13H #E{E
Mr. Shao Li Appointed as director Appointed on 13 June 2008
= B BHEALD A 4T 2008F4 A29A B
Mr. Gao Minghui Removed the position of general manager Removed on 29 April 2008
WoB HERARAEFTTWE 20084 5H28H B £
Ms. Yu Yan Removed the position of secretary to the board Removed on 28 May 2008
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WEHR AR EIRE FWAB08,588F T A
R FFH148,072 T TARKE & LFF
Hi#)550,980H194,344F SR - » BIE &
257,608 T T #53,728 F Lo E AR £ K&
U A650,425F 7L AR F F 151,747
FTTARE & EF5HHIEK46.61%F
72.62% ; IEMIREB BRI A148,212F 7T
AR & FFRHEAEE 737,931 F T FF
M-3,676T T AR & FFRBEMD
16,658 F T AR ¥

2008F F¥F R RMKIEBER AN iRk H 2 F
Bk 2t AU R B3 5 1A AP B RN 28 M &
EEOERE INERREEABEE2R AW
BARER E—FSREQARRIPESNE &
SR EEANBIEHGE BEEBEALCE
I o X AIBIBAK S 71 RO ISR SN~ SN 2
BNGm— TR RedeEEL RN AR
E@Ba L BIZROMRESIEE HMER
BEmANEH REERREREA-ARA
RIEMEERBRREZX 2008 L¥F R
BHER EREERENENZEBETEF
DA K2 PR 4F X # EE IR o

BIE2008F FEFRHEBR LEBAINE
BIRERS A ENTHERIBIER
IMEE S RIRE U RFEQRELERIEN
EMRERE BEXSEERE HEENMT
2008%F T FHy T 1E:

1. W% E¥FERNRMEERTSH]
FEWE - MEBEEMZRFRT
BBE MERFERAN-RAFE
E-TINREHAEBRER B
EHFFPNRENER T REE
BEBAEINTEREEZEAT SR

oL

(1)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the reporting period, the Company has obtained a turnover
of RMB808,588,000, and a net profit of RMB148,072,000,
representing an increase of RMB257,608,000 and RMB53,728,000
respectively, as compared with the same period of last year’s
turnover of RMB550,980,000 and net profit of RMB94,344,000. The
operation for machine tool business attained a turnover of
RMB650,425,000 and a net profit of RMB151,747,000, representing
a increase of 46.61% and 72.62% respectively as compared with
the same period of last year. The operation for non-machine tool
business attained a turnover of RMB148,212,000 and a net loss of
RMB3,676,000, representing an increases of RMB37,931,000 and a
decrease of RMB16,658,000 as compared with the same period of
last year respectively.

In the first half year of 2008, the Company caught the opportunity,
which the China government supported to develop equipment
manufacturing industry and the machine tool manufacturing industry
of the world moved to Asian area and China, led the overall situation
with view of science and oriented the products to the market to
deepen the internal system reform, to build up and perfect the
internal control system and to implement the refined management.
The Company improved the social production resource utilization
ratio by establishing a synergy center to reinforce the unified
management of the outsourcing business. Meanwhile, the Company
decreased the purchasing cost by strengthening the operation
standards of the Tender Center and to implement effective control
for the material purchasing. Since the production cycle of the
Company’s products was long, the influence of the increased raw
material price in the first half year of 2008 to the gross margin will
show its results in the second half year of 2008 and the next year.

According to the operation of the first half year of 2008 and
combining the present macro economic situation, the management
of the Company will pay attention to the domestic and international
economics, financial environment and raw material price and
exchange rate which will affect the Company’s operation to do the
business in the second half year of 2008.

1. Market: in the first half year of 2008, the demand and supply
of heavy floor-type boring and milling machine products were
strong. However, the demand of conventional boring and
milling machine products was sliding. The market competition
was more intense. It is necessary for the Company to reinforce
the construction of the sales network system and to do a
good job for maintaining the major customers. Meanwhile,
the Company needs to develop overseas market proactively
to resist the domestic market risk.
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Production: Presently, the mainly restriction of the production
are lack of supportive products, technology and process
techniques, and production resources. Therefore, the Company
needs to push the scale production as well as to continuously
revise and perfect the standard process techniques and
operation procedures to implement standard operation and
increase the social resources utilization ratio.

Technology: The Company’s Technology Centre will fully use
the social resources; follow the path of combining production
and research study, and internationalized co-operation to
complete the construction of the research and development
platform, to speed up the rectification and reengineering of
the technical process, to improve the production appearance
and quality and decrease the production cost, and to
strengthen the dynamics of new products’ development at
the same time.

Technological renovation: the Company continues to increase
the investment in technology renovation. The technology
renovation is surrounding how to solve the bottle neck problem
and improve the products’ quality.

After sale: compared with the fast elevated production and
sale scale, the coordination and efficiency of the after sale
service needs to be strengthened. The professional and
technical level of the employees should be improved. The
Company needs to take effective measures to establish and
perfect the new quality assurance system for after sale service.

Finance: The key emphasis in work of the second half year
2008 of financial department is mainly to improve production
cost accounting and establish a sound internal financial control
system.

General: The Company will deepen the systems reform;
strengthen the consciousness of crisis, responsibility, urgency,
and prevention awareness; focus on establishing the sale,
production, technology and quality systems; improve the
management and operating efficiency; and increase the ability
to resist risk of adaptation to changes in the market.
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(Z) 2] BEBHRILEZRI (2) MAJOR OPERATION INFORMATION
1. EBRBHHLE EMNARE 1.  Business Segment or Products’ Information
By AREFT
Unit: RMB’000
EXBA ERRF %L
HEERE EFRR LERAK
08EXMA BEXRF EHE) 18R (%) 188 (%) 2R (%)
Change of
Increment of  Increment of operating
operating operating profit
income cost margin
compared compared compared
Operating with that of with that of with that of
income Operating Operating the same the same the same
Business segment during  costs during profit period of period of period of
FTRUDER or Products the period the period margin (%) lastyear (%) lastyear (%) last year (%)
BERERHEERMNIER Sales and processing 650,425 404,074 37.88 46.61 34.51 #0559
machine tool products R
Increased 5.59
percentage
points
ERAREERHE Sales, installation and 119,256 97,207 18.49 23.67 4331 ED11.160E
ZEREMRE technical services of BN
highly efficient compressors Decreased 11.16
percentage
points
20084 E¥F AR EIRE %K A808,588F During the first half year of 2008, the Company has obtained a
T 8220074 A HA 1 K 257,608 F o H A : turnover of RMB808,588,000, representing an increase of
HEPRIE 206,788 F I 15 1846.61% : EFIE RMB257,608,000 as compared with same period of last year. Of
£22,8297T 1#1823.67% : WINELEXRE which, machine tool products increased RMB206,788,000,
2008F F ¥ FEBREEMLABHEEWA representing an increase of 46.61%; Ser increased RMB22,829,000,
H182% & EFR1515.04% * At EAREN representing an increase of 23.67%. From the point of the view of
97.13% - LLE D BIE20074F £ FH1.48%F T sales, during the first half year of 2008, the sales of machine tool
[48.93% ° products are representing 82% of the total sales, and the sales of
Ser are representing 14.74% of the total sales, as compared with
those in the year 2007, representing an increase of 1.48% and a
decrease of 8.93% respectively. The Sales of the above two parts
are together representing 97.13% of the total sales.
2. RERHMVIHEMANI - EBREH 2.  Analysis on the changes of the market and the costs of the major
B A Bk B 1 55 A 15 UL Ah D5 B R ) business

2008F F¥FNAE4RA EFEAE34.88% @ &
FEREING1.64% @ EFH3.24EE D B 47
AEMELEANFEZERARHAREREBLE
FIE EFA559EE DB AEDH:

(1) EHREE-SEN RABBGERES:

(2 HEEBEL ERBUELERS-

During the first half year of 2008, the gross margin of the Company’s
operation is 34.88%, as compared with last year’s gross margin
31.64%, representing an increase of 3.24 percentage points. The
reasons for the increase of the gross margin of the Company are
due to the gross margin of machine tool products increase 5.59
percentage points, and the concrete reasons are:

(1)  The increased scale of production and sales causes increased
scale benefits; and

(2)  The improved sales structure and increased producing CNC
machine tool products.
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3. EBEBHLE-ZEMNIE 3.

Sales Turnover By Business Segment Or Major Products:

B ARKETT

Unit: RMB’000

2007 L F 2008F L F 1 8 PR lEESF
RBWA EBBA HEHEM (% FBPBER%)
Proportion of Increase or

sales of decrease

machine as compared

Turnover of Turnover of tools with the same

Business Segment the first half  the first half to total period of last

PITERTER or Products year of 2007  year of 2008 sales (%) year (%)
T Business segment
BRATEREXE General equipment manufacturing 176,190 279,711 43.00 58.76
EHRBRIEE Professional equipment

manufacturing 141,641 261,586 40.22 84.68
Hfh s % Other manufacturing 125,806 109,128 16.78 (13.26)
Em Products
BA = 8 8% IR Horizontal boring and

milling machines 171,485 279,647 42.99 63.07
& Hb 2 8 £ IR Floor-type boring and

milling machines 181,843 274,528 42.21 50.97
& R #FE IR Table type boring and

milling machines 35,046 75,740 11.64 116.12
BAS pn T A0 Horizontal machine centers 15,539 - - -
LTS Jig boring machines 10,432 - - -
Hith Others 29,292 20,510 3.16 (29.98)
a5t Total 443,637 650,425 100.00 46.61

it RAMTEERERESARNBEARER
A H) B8 R 2 75 Y BE 1o

of the Kunming Kunji General Machine Co., Ltd.

Note: The products include the products of the Company and the products
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4. BROK BB 5 b W AY A i Y 45 A DL

4.  Analysis On Turnover By Geographical Segment

By ARKFT

Unit: RMB’000

2007fFE L4 F  2008F L4 F 1% )-8 ELsE

EBBA EBWA HEFELH (%) FRBE %)

Increase or

Proportion of decrease as

sales of compared

Turnover of Turnover of machine with the same

the first half the first half tools to total period of

it E Area year of 2007 year of 2008 sales (%) last year (%)

ER @R Hua Dong Area 145,411 237,949 36.58 63.64

Bl Hua Bei Area 66,963 116,459 17.91 73.92

Het@ Other Areas 231,263 296,017 45.51 28.00

@ 5t Total 443,637 650,425 100.00 46.61
f# it Note:

(1) FISEEFHERGERAIHEGENL
Ol (BIKEES) - $H & 2 8F & &t - 85,048 T
TT M E AR L E13.08% ©

(2) HISEHERREES LR A REARREN
L FREE 2 BEA A 102,212 F 0 15 R BB
HEEEIL E31.09% °

3) AR EZEHOSE:12,302F L °

(1) The sale of the top 5 customers is RMB85,048,000 representing 13.08%
of the total sale of the machine tool products.

2) The purchase from the top 5 suppliers is RMB102,212,000, represent
31.09% of the total purchase of the period.

3) The directly exported machine tool products amounted of
RMB12,302,000.
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WA EEMEER ML E 5. Change of Financial Highlights During the Reporting Period as
K 82 ) o B W) (5 8RR 30%) Compared with the Same Period of Last year
By ARKFIT
Unit: RMB’000
kR
R (EFERH) B E 18 iR R B %
As at As at
30th June 30 June Increase/ Difference
HH Items 2008 2007 Decrease (%)
WEE Total assets 2,004,924.14 1,779,007.69 225,916.45 12.70
R RE Operating profit 154,381.97 99,811.00 54,570.98 54.67
e AIDE Net profit 148,071.73 94,343.87 53,727.86 56.95
BeRBESEEYD Increment of cash or
SFIE N cash equivalents 34,379.62 85,554.82 (51,175.20) (59.82)

(1) EBELBEENERABLAFE1-6BAR
EELEBEERBRIONEES S,
EEREE - SPERKBEERLM
225916 F o B mEBEEEMN
201,646F o £ & T 1215 1126,704F
TR

(2 ZEMHERIRABKRIEE KA
RATEC

B FMERBEERTIERR: RAHE
HREEA HEAERL BEFE
IR H R EI26,377 T TT AV BUE IR
KA AL 1R IR 50% K 5RIE

4 BerhRESEWIENEREFR
Bm A T51,175F o T ZERE R
CHANRERMERE RaATEEE
EEHEE KB LEm-S—Fm"
AR BE—TRAEHEBRE MKE
TEERAN BEEEMERIRY
HER A FRIEAE A AT Mo

Total assets increase due to the production and operation
well in January to June of this year and the assets-scale
enlarged. Total assets increased RMB225,916,000, which
including current assets increased RMB201,646,000, and
construction in progress increased RMB26,704,000.

Operation profit increased due to sales revenue increased
largely.

The reasons for net profit increase are the production and
sales scale expansion and sales structural optimization during
the reporting period, so that gross profit margin increase and
the Company received RMB26,377,000 from the government,
which was the 50% paid value-added tax return for CNC
machines.

Cash and cash equivalent decreased RMB51,175,000 due to
the price of raw material increase. In order to prepare the
material for the production in the second half year of 2008,
the Company increased the purchasing expenses. On the other
hand, in order to further elevate the production and sales
scale and increase fixed assets investment, the Company
increased the expenses on fixed assets and construction in
progress.
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i ARMTFT

Unit: RMB’000
MM
HE® (EERH) /iR BEIEE %
As at As at
30th June 30 June Increase/ Difference

HH Items 2008 2007 Decrease (%)

BEBES Cash and cash equivalents 404,730.41 370,350.79 34,379.62 9.28

JE W BR K Bills receivable 152,590.84 156,028.11 (3,437.27) (2.20)

FERER Prepayments 82,643.87 41,436.62 41,207.25 99.45

EEIR Construction in progress 72,802.26 46,097.50 26,704.76 57.93

[ ANES Bills payable 14,620.00 4,670.00 9,950.00 213.06

78 1<t AR Dividend payable 115,057.61 1,176.87  113,880.74 9676.58

EFrEE Estimated liabilities 13,311.43 9,117.43 4,193.99 46.00

EEEBEA Administrative expense 79,761.08 45,084.79 34,676.29 76.91

BEERMERK Losses on impairment of assets 19,011.19 112.63 18,898.57 16779.34

" E&E W= Investment income 7,018.38 (569.47) 7,587.84 -

=ELINVON Non-operating income 28,688.46 17,855.58 10,832.88 60.67

EEINT Non-operating expense 3,575.83 1,244.92 2,330.90 187.23

A AREHRNEBESHNERBERR A.  During the reporting period, the extent of increase of the cash
HEBMANERIEE X ER2REY and cash equivalents is lower than that of the sales revenue
£ 382 00 R0 [ 5 B B IR A IE N BT B due to purchase expenses increased and fixed assets

investment increased.

B. ZAREHRNEHERALRI6.75%H) B. During the reporting period, sales revenue increased 46.75%
BERT: R TR T F#2.2% + 227N and accounts receivable decreased 2.2% due to the Company
AWK AE e 45 B B FRE 4T o strengthened the collection of accounts receivable and the

cash collection increased.

C. FENEFIERI.45% @ REZEHITH C. Prepayment increased 99.45% due to the prepayment for
REMENELDERZRRAARTA import electrical system for producing CNC machines and
AIERIERNBEREBIEESR the orders of the subsidiary, Ser increased remarkably causing
T8 A K38 hn Fr B prepayment for supporting contracts increased.

D. ABEHEREIRERF LM D. During the reporting period, the construction in progress
57.93% ' R RRAE—FRAEHER increased 57.93% due to the Company increased investment
R-IMKEEEER AR in fixed assets in order to elevate the production and sales

scale more.

E. RENEERFYILEN213.06% @ REA E. Bills payable increased 213.06% as compared with the
RALTER EENEEINEEH1Z beginning of this year due to orders of Ser increased causing
- BEEINEN EREZERKFIE purchased supporting parts increased. In order to ease the
A ENZEE® S NE R pressure of payment, more bills have been used in payment

for goods in purchase.

F. FERRFIEIMNI1,3888 T EARE F. Dividend payable increased RMB113,880,000 due to
Me2007F EF B A RIZ T EAKR implementing the allocation plan of profit for the year ended
e 31 December 2007.

G. HEitafEiR46%  BitEERKH G. Estimated liabilities increased 46%. Estimated liabilities is the

EWANI 2%t RNEREERT
e HEHRABEELAERT
46.75%  WMIEFAEBEZERT
46%-°

warrant fee which provisioned by 1.2% of sales revenue.
During the reporting period, the sales revenue increased
46.75% and the estimated liabilities also subsequently
increased 46%.
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ERBEAREFREEINT3,4678
TT I8 A76.91% @ F B2 AR S H
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Administrative expenses increased RMB34,670,000 as
compared with the same period of last year due to R&D
expense of the Company for new products of RMB33,820,000
during the period was debited to the administrative expense.
But the R&D expense of last year was bebited to operating
cost. The increase rate was 76.91%.

Losses on impairment of assets increased RMB18,900,000
due to making up for provision for bad debts.

Investment income increased RMB7,590,000 as compared with
the same period of last year due to the profit of TOS Kunming
increased RMB3,030,000 as compared with that of TOS
Kunming last year and purchasing Ser’s nature person equity
caused investment income increased RMB3,600,000.

Non-operating income increased RMB10,830,000 as compared
with the same period of last year due to 50% paid value-
added tax return for CNC machines increased RMB10,570,000
as compared with the same period of last year.

Non-operating expense increased RMB2,330,000 as compared
with the same period of last year due to expenses of disposal
of fixed assets, donation, debt restructuring for the Fujian
subsidiary increased RMB2,190,000.
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6. FEERA GRS RA AN ESHR 6. Review of Operations of Subsidiaries and Invested Companies
VES gy
By ARETFT
Unit: RMB’000
KEEE E3:3:3-1 TEERERH ERRF RERR BHR
Nature of Major products Registered Total
Name of the companies business and services capital assets Net profit
ALZRREBURKERRE HiExR Hip B RS T R 50,000 381,834 11,761
EREARA
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Turbo machines
Manufacturing Company Limited
(“Xi'an Ser”)
AERABREHERERAA BE% BelER 35,000 66,711 (865)
Xi'an Jiaotong University Siyuan Manufacturing Intelligent electrical appliances
Intelligent Electric Apparatus
Co., Ltd. (“Siyuan”)
RRAXARKEDREEFRAA BE% BRVEBHELERNER 20,230 14,029 1,699
Winko Machines Co., Ltd. (“Winko”) Manufacturing Computerized embroidery
machines and rotary table
EREMERERAA HER HE R EENHEEE 5008 114,367 7,697
BRZIERREH (Bi7)
TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Development, design, sales of 5,000
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. self-produced machines and (Euro)
(“TOS Kunming”) accessories
RBEERLT Ew¥ LREE 500 6,318 (114)
Kunji Transportation Co., Ltd. Transportation General cargo transportation
AZmERENETRMEERDA HEX REKE RIIRE 60,000 79,401 (2,528)
Xi’an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing Laser prototyping series equipments
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Ruite”)
BRERRBERRA BE% 3,000 174,700 12,996
Kunming Kunji General Machine Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.
RREREBRAERLA HiEX R R EENHERK 5,000 10,259 (1,944)
RO EmREM
Fujian Kunji Conventional Manufacturing Developing, design, producing and
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. sale on machine tool products
and accessories
# it Note:
e R ARG IRE L AR2008F1 25 Information of Fujian Kunji Conventional Machine Tool Co., Ltd.: established
AR it EEER LTI B ETRE % on 25 January 2008; registered place: Liu Cheng Xing Lian Industry Zone,
FRXA BB (KLE]FIAEAEIE)  FMHEXR Nanan City, Fujian Province; legal representative: Mr. Zhou Guoxing (the vice
500 7T - K2 E] 5 B H50% H9 IR # general manager of the Company); registered capital: RMB5,000,000; 50%
shareholding is held by the Company.
(Z) A BERHI (3) INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY
1. SR E SN 1. Raised Fund Situation
WMEPFAN RAESEECHAPEEES There were no new proceeds form raised funds during the reporting
EREARHEIE MR- period and there were no listing proceeds from previous year being
utilized during the reporting period.
2. FEEEELHE KR 2. Use of Proceeds from non-raised fund

WEHR AAEFZEESHE

During the reporting period, there were no investment projects use
proceeds from non-raised funds.
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$ #2007 F (A RDAE BN HE) BHIRH
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REHERENETBEERNM T
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AR EARBRNERELE RENS
BRARE HECERBBEBREER
ERBCET AR RERZEHIFESI) &
ER-E-FREMTEQROAE
EEBR EARNSERNENEE
R EE GIERITE MR- B
MEPHI A B ER BRI TE-

VI. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

(1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complies throughout the period with Appendix 14
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” of the listing rule issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company followed the Appendix 10 “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) of
listing rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
as regulation for securities transactions of directors during the
reporting period. After enquiring all the directors and supervisors of
the Company, the Board confirms that all directors and superiors
of the Company comply with the Mode Code.

During the reporting period, the Company has established the
modern enterprise system, continued to perfect the corporate
governance and regulated the operation of the Company pursuant
to Company Law of the PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other
relevant regulations issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Pursuant to the requirements on the Notice of Announcement on
Special Activities In Corporate Governance of Listed Companies
(the “Notice”) issued by CSRC (no.27 [2008]) the Company made
an announcement on the implementation of the rectification items
listed on the “Corporate Governance Rectification Report 2007”.
The announcement contained the following items which needed to
be continued to improve:

Enhancing the construction of internal control

Combining the general operation target and development strategy,
focusing on various business and management process of the
Company, pursuant to the requirements on “Guide to Internal Control
of Listed Companies”, the Company will improve and perfect the
Company’s internal management system to make the various internal
control system more scientific and the implementation of systems
more standardization (including perfecting the internal restriction
and accountability system).
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IIlVCIltOl‘y management

Focusing on the deficiency of the inventory management, the
Company has planned to strengthen the inventory management,
supervise on inventories and check the amount of inventories by
building long term inventory management system and inventory
management methods. The Company will push the optimization of
the inventory structure and improve the efficiency of inventory from
the whole oriented of people, finance, material, production,
purchases and sale; scientific; highly efficient and centralized
management. Determined by the single and small lot production
characteristics of the Company, the production process and
production organizing including accounting procedure and
accounting methods are very complicated. The production process
management control needs to have support from further advanced
assisting methods to complete. Presently, the Company has started
promoting the ERP project and hopes to tackle the problems which
the Company facing by using the modern scientific measures.

Supervision, checking-up and rectification on subsidiaries

The Company will strengthen the dynamics of supervision on
subsidiaries; especially strengthen the dynamics of financial control.
By perfecting the subsidiaries’ corporate governance, the Company
will establish a sound board of directors, supervisory committee in
subsidiaries and invested companies. The Company will supervise
the subsidiaries on establishing a good organization structure and
making management rights and liabilities clear; will comprehensively
use budget management, performance evaluation and internal
control etc. management methods to enhance the management to
subsidiaries and invested companies. Moreover, in the future
investment, the Company will strengthen the scientific and
meticulous of the demonstration for the project earlier stage
feasibility study; establish an effective decision making system and
internal supervision system; strengthen the management for long
term investment, prevent the investment risk and improve the
income.

Strengthening development strategic plan, and advance the long
term, stable and healthy development of the Company

Recently, the Company has paid close attention to the trends of
macro economics. The strategic committee under the board of
directors has started making the long term development strategic
plan for the Company and will submit it to the board of directors
and shareholders for consideration in suitable time. Meanwhile, the
Company will pay attention to its subsidiaries development strategy
as well and carry out management on subsidiaries strategy by
standard management system.
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5. W A A iR PR U 5 mi 5. Improving the corporate governance
AAERENTENRSE —EFED It is an on going process for perfecting and improving the corporate
WIZ HHEEARAEBERNISE B governance. With the march of the Company’s development, the
NAREMNERBETERES MM requirements for corporate governance are continuously improved
b REE BB ANGR AR R 2 I H)E@ and refined. The Company will assist to strengthen the
THERAEEE EESTEHNEE K communication among the shareholders and continuously improve
BARRFEERNEER TEHRA the corporate governance level through the self-operation of the
NEEIBKFE board of directors and supervisory committee, handing and solving

the problems happened in the corporate governance.

SREBEEERNER RAIEFTE According to the requirements of the supervision authority, the
HEMEEZRERAERERE & Company needs to assist to strengthen the communication and
ELEmMAR BT E-BRIAREZER collaboration among the shareholders and maintain the
RADEZFH LM AAEENE LM independence of the listed company. Presently, the substantial
ANARESEERAANEST S EH shareholders of the Company fully support the independence of the
AP BIREMRAA B AR ME listed company’s operation. The board of directors of the Company
fR-ERFBATELEAOER - 4E reminds the awareness and understanding to relevant persons in
NABEmE ER B ZHEM the director or senior management officers training course. Based
RAEERERMORE on assuring the independence of the Company, the Company

maintains its own brands, trademark, patent, know-how and protects
its production techniques.

(=) 3 4% 200 20 s o ) 3 43 W D5 R AT (2) IMPLEMENTATION OF ALLOCATION PLAN OF
L RL PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
(THE “PLAN")

KARZREEEFEEI0E HIRH 2008 Proposed by the 40th meeting of the board of directors, the Plan
F6A13ABFAM2007FEREASEHB was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2007
20074 € FE 5 B 77 22 : 2007 F E iR B+ annual general meeting held on 13 June 2008. In accordance with
HestER §AFEFRFEFBE211,204F the PRC accounting standards, the Company had recorded a net
T EELRBABRATES21,129TF TE & profit of RMB211,294,000 for the year ended 31 December 2007.
PR EFIH225,816 F - R AR ERA G Of which, the amount of RMB21,129,000 should transfer to the
FFE242,958F 0 RMMBHBATERE A statutory surplus reserve firstly. The accumulated undistributed profit
HRR D B FE279,001 F o IR IEF B S5 was RMB225,816,000. The Group had obtained the consolidated
R AR EIRFF E198,963F T 12EL net profit of RMB242,958,000. After transferring the amount to the
BHAES21,129F L Rt RO EFH statutory surplus reserve, the distributable profit was
220,823 F Lo R RIBIR & HFF FIH 241,452 RMB279,091,000. In accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Fr - RBAEBATES21,129F Tk, Al Reporting Standards, the Company had obtained a net profit of
f& o B FE277,443F T AIERE S B RMB198,963,000. After transfer RMB21,129,000 to the statutory
FMEREEAZRE B %¥AI8220,823F surplus reserve, the accumulated undistributed profit was
Vivks RMB220,823,000. The Group had obtained the consolidated net

profit of RMB241,452,000. After transferring RMB21,129,000 to the
statutory surplus reserve, the accumulated distributable profit for
the shareholders was RMB277,443,000. The distributable profit to
shareholders was the minimum level of RMB220,823,000, which
was prepared under the Hong Kong accounting standards.

2007 EFBE AR AR : R EHRNFEFHE The Plan was that after transferring RMB21,129,000 from the

BAERDMAHBAES21,129F Tk KNXH Company’s net profit to the statutory surplus reserve, the distribution

fid LA RS AN 48 55424,864,883 A EE - M2 of the Company’s accumulated undistributed profits was distributed

RES10RIRZER AF2.707T () -0 in the form of a cash dividend of RMB2.70 for every 10 shares

T 10K RS A HF2.4370 - HETHIKE (“Cash Dividend”), totally distributing RMB114,713,520.00 to all

f&% F114,713.52F Jt ° shareholders based on the aggregate of 424,864,883 shares of the
Company.
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(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

On 7 July 2008, the Company paid the Cash Dividend to holders of
A Shares of the Company whose names appeared on the register
of holders of A Shares of the Company on 30 June 2008. The
Company directly paid the Cash Dividend to holders of selling
restricted A Shares and appointed China Securities Depositories &
Clearing Corporation Limited Shanghai Branch to pay the Cash
Dividend to holders of selling unrestricted A Shares.

On 18 July 2008, the Company paid the Cash Dividend to holders
of H Shares whose names appeared on the register of holders of H
Shares of the Company on 13 May 2008. The Cash Dividend paid
to holders of H Shares were declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate was 100 Hong Kong Dollars to
88.631 Renminbi, which was in accordance with the average of
exchange rates for Hong Kong dollar to Renminbi as announced by
the People’s Bank of China over a period of a calendar week prior
to the date of the announcement of the dividend (13 June 2008).
The Cash Dividend for each H Share was HK$0.30463. The Company
had appointed ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited as the receiving
agent in Hong Kong to receive the Cash Dividends on behalves of
the holders of H Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association. The Company did not have any arrangement
for the pre-emptive rights during the reporting period.

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
have issued any warrants, convertible securities, options or other
securities with similar rights, nor had any person exercised any
right noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed listed shares of the Company during the reporting period.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFT AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings at 30 June
2008 are set out in the notes of the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 June 2008, there was no material contingent liability.
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(8) MAJOR LITIGATION
There was no major litigation in the reporting period.

(9) PURCHASE AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS OR MERGER
AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the reporting period, there was no significant purchase and
disposal of assets, or merger and acquisition activities occurred in
the Company.

(10) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions related to daily business

(1)  The Company has entered into agreements (“Agreements”)
with Shenyang | & E Co. and Yunnan | & E Co. respectively.
Pursuant to the Agreements, the Company agreed to sell and
Shenyang | & E Co., acting as agents, agreed to purchase the
products of onward exportation to the overseas markets. The
Agreements were commencing from 1 April 2008 to 31
December 2010 and would become effective from the date of
the independent Shareholders’ approval at the EGM (13 June
2008). Three years annual caps for Shenyang | & E Co. are
RMB40,000,000, RMB50,000,000, and RMB60,000,000
respectively; and three years annual caps for Yunnan | & E
Co. are RMB10,000,000, RMB15,000,000, and RMB20,000,000
respectively. Entering into the Agreements is the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company as the Company
needs to utilize the sales network of Shenyang | & E Co. and
Yunnan | & E Co. to develop its overseas markets. Directors
(including four independent non-executive directors) had
reviewed the Agreements and considered that: i) the
Agreements were on normal commercial terms and conditions
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; ii) the sales price were determined by the parties
on arm’s length basis; iii) the terms of the Agreements were
fair and reasonable; iv) the Agreements were in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and were
fair and reasonable so far as the independent Shareholders
were concerned.
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On 12 May 2008, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Kunming Kunji Group (“Kunji Group”).
According to the Agreement, the Company would pull down
the four old buildings which the Company leased from Kunji
Group as cast workshops and construct larger new buildings
on those places. The Company would give a one-time
compensation of RMB1,949,943 to Kunji Group. The
Agreement was reviewed by the directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and directors considered
that: i.) the Agreement was on normal commercial terms and
conditions; ii.) the Consideration was based on the evaluation
of the Assets Evaluation Report and was fair and reasonable
to both parties and iii.) the Agreement was in the interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and beneficial
to the development of the Company in the future.

On 28 May 2008, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Yunnan CY (Group) Mechanical and
Electrical Products Trading Centre. According to the
Agreement, the Company sold a TJK6920 floor-type boring
and milling machine, which manufactured by the Company,
to Yunnan CY (Group) Mechanical and Electrical Products
Trading Centre. Directors (including four independent non-
executive directors) had reviewed the Agreement and
considered that: i) the Transaction is based on normal
commercial terms and conditions and in ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company; ii) the sales price was
determined by the parties on arm’s length basis and the terms
of the Agreement was fair and reasonable; iii) the Transaction
is beneficial to the Company’s operation and financial status
in the current period and in the future, and is in the interest of
the Company and shareholders as a whole, so far as the
independent Shareholders are concerned.

(11) TRUST

During the reporting period, the Company did not enter into any
trust arrangement.

(12) SUBCONTRACTING CONTRACTS

There were no subcontracting contracts during the reporting period.

(13) LEASE ARRANGEMENT

There was no lease arrangement during the reporting period.

(14) GUARANTEE

There was no guarantee given during the reporting period.

(15) ENTRUSTED INVESTMENT

There was no entrusted investment in the reporting period.
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(16) OTHER MAJOR CONTRACTS
There were no other major contracts during the reporting period.

(17) COMMITMENTS
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Commitments by the Company or shareholders holding over
5% of total issued shares of the Company during the reporting
period or extended to the reporting period.

According to the Acquisition Report to All Shareholders made
by the Board of Directors of the Company which published
on 10th March, 2006, Shenyang Group had undertaken that
after the acquisition, it would hold the shares of the Company
for at least five years. It would expend the Company business
and would not involve in the business or products which
detrimental the shareholders interest and the long-term
development of the Company. Extended to the reporting
period, the commitment was implemented well.

Commitments to Share Reform and implementation
(1). Commitments by law

All holders of non-circulating shares of the Company
undertook that shares after reform will not be listed
trading or transferred within twelve months (the “Lock-
up” period) from the listing date. Upon expiry of the
lock-up period, disposal of such shares should not be
more than 5% of the total issued shares of the Company
within twelve months following the Lock-up period, and
should not be more than 10% of the total issued shares
of the Company within twenty-four months following the
Lock-up period.

On 6 March 2008, the 12 months lock-up period for
trading the shares of the Company held by Kunming
Jinghua Co. was expired. From 7 March 2008,
21,243,244 Company shares (representing 5% total
issued shares) holding by Kunming Jinghua Co. can be
traded on Shanghai Stock Exchange. As at 30 June
2008, Kunming Jinghua Co. has sold 3,280,790 shares
of the Company (representing 0.77% of the total issued
share capital of the Company).
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As at the end of the reporting period, number of selling
restricted circulating shares held by the shareholders

Fi: and the changes of shareholding proportion:
i CRRRE RASHEEE BREE 1]
Fi BRRER FRERS :2.4:47] RERD RERNHE CBHERR BAEFRH 24147
Number of
shares being Number of
terminated  Number of terminated = Number of
selling selling selling shares held
Number of restricted restricted restricted at the end of
No.  Name of shareholder original shares  Proportion  conditions shares shares sold  the period  Proportion
(%) (%)
1 BERK (EE) BREEAA 106,578,219 25.08 0 106,578,219 - 106,578,219 25.08
Shenyang Machine Tool
(Group) Co., Ltd.
2 EREEEEELS
BEREAAT 47,018,331 11.07 0 47,018,331 - 47,018,331 11.07
Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Co. Ltd.
3 RARERT 26,414,550 6.22 21,243,244 5,171,306 3,280,790 23,133,760 5.44
Kunming Jinghua Co., Ltd.
Ch 180,011,100 42.37 21,243,244 158,767,856 3,280,790 176,730,310 41.59
Total
(2). FrPlARFIE 2) Additional Commitments
1) AEMEKREENEEEE i).  Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and
NEEHEIERD B EF Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd.
TR BEZRAERE undertook that all of the shares of the Company
2010F12A31H LT held by them will not be listed for trading from
BRGEHERGHE: the listing date of Circulating Shares to 31st
E == R 1 T AN December, 2010. As at the end of the reporting
FIEIRER ETmmEe. period, this commitment performed well.
2 EHHRK(EE) ERE ii). Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and

EREANEEEEEEE
KEBRBEERRETA
o ERSRTERE —FR
EERRAELRERALRAE
BEEARTESEBERN
W78 B O ER
1085 #E 50

Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd.
committed that they would propose and consent
to the proposal of transfer of capital reserves to
new shares for at least 5 new shares allocated
to shareholders for every 10 existing shares in
the general meeting after completion of the Share
Reform within one year.
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The proposal was approved at 2006 annual general
meeting and class meetings held on 29 June 2007.
Details can be referred to Company’s
announcements dated 14 September 2007, 1
November 2007, and 2 November 2007 published
in China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities
Daily, and Securities Times respectively. Also, you
can visit the following websites: www.sse.com.cn,
www.hkex.com.hk, www.kmtcl.com.cn for details
of the announcements.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and
Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd.
committed that they would propose and content
to the proposal of distribution of profit, not less
than 50% of profits would be distributed in form
of cash if the performance of the Company in 2006
or 2007 could meet the requirement of profit
distribution.

Details for this issue can be found in the no. (2) -
implementation of allocation plan of profit for the
year ended 31 December 2007 (the “plan”) of this
section.

Contents of the Plan: after transfer RMB21,129,000
from the Company’s net profit to the statutory
surplus reserve, the distribution of the Company’s
accumulated undistributed profits was distributed
in the form of a cash dividend of RMB2.70 for
every 10 shares (“Cash Dividend”), totally
distributing RMB114,713,520.00 to all shareholders
based on the aggregate of 424,864,883 shares of
the Company.
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On 7 July 2008, the Company paid the Cash
Dividend to holders of A Shares of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of holders
of A Shares of the Company on 30 June 2008.
The Company directly paid the Cash Dividend to
holders of selling restricted A Shares and
appointed China Securities Depositories & Clearing
Corporation Limited Shanghai Branch to pay the
Cash Dividend to holders of selling unrestricted A
Shares.

On 18 July 2008, the Company paid the Cash
Dividend to holders of H Shares whose names
appeared on the register of holders of H Shares
of the Company on 13 May 2008. The Cash
Dividend paid to holders of H Shares were
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The exchange rate was 100 Hong Kong
Dollars to 88.631 Renminbi, which was in
accordance with the average of exchange rates
for Hong Kong dollar to Renminbi as announced
by the People’s Bank of China over a period of a
calendar week prior to the date of the
announcement of the dividend (13 June 2008). The
Cash Dividend for each H Share was HK$0.30463.
The Company had appointed ICBC (Asia) Trustee
Company Limited as the receiving agent in Hong
Kong to receive the Cash Dividends on behalves
of the holders of H Shares.

Shenyang Group had undertaken that it would
expend the Company business by offering support
in terms of technical production, corporate
management and resources expertise. It would
combine its competitive advantage expertise and
restructure the related resources based on the
Company development principal and formula
within two years after the share transfer and share
reform. It would strive to improve the Company
competence in the business operation and
production development, to push the Company
towards a continuing healthy development
environment.

Presently, Shenyang Group has provided
production management officers to improve the
production management ability and provided
facilities to develop the market for the Company.
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(18) APPOINTMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT OF
AUDITORS

During the reporting period, the Company did not change its
auditors. It appointed Zonzun Accounting Office as its domestic
auditor and KPMG as its internal auditor.

(19) PENALTIES TO THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS AND ACTUAL HOLDERS, AND THE
ISSUE OF RECTIFICATION

Nil

(20) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS, THEIR EFFECTS AND
RESOLUTIONS

1.

The Company received a Written Reply Regarding the
Application for Value-added Tax Return from the Yunnan
Provincial Financial Supervision Office under the Ministry of
Finance in June 2008 (file no.: Bf 5 & E5 3R [2008]745% ) which
approved to return 50% of the paid value-added tax of the
Company for the year 2007 (January — December) in amount
of RMB26,293,607.79 to the Company.

The 38th meeting of the 5th term of board of directors
considered and passed the resolution: referred to the assets
valuation of Xi’an Jiaotong University Siyuan Intelligent Electric
Apparatus Company Limited (“Siyuan”), the board of directors
of the Company agreed to transfer 78.02% equity interest
(“Equity Interest”) of Siyuan by putting it to open tender on
Yunnan Equity Exchange Co., Ltd..
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On 22 May 2008, the Company put the Equity Interest to
open tender on Yunnan Equity Exchange Co. for transferring.
The tender would be close on 19 June 2008. In June 2008,
the Company received a notice of respondence to action from
Shaanxi Xi’an Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”). The
nature person shareholder of Siyuan had sued Siyuan to the
Court for dissolution of Siyuan according to the law. The
Company, as the shareholder of Siyuan, has been ranked as
the third party in the lawsuit and received a summons from
the Court. The time for evidence exchange for the lawsuit
was on 14 July 2008. The Company made an announcement
on temporarily stopping the open tender regarding transfer of
the Equity Interest on Yunnan Equity Exchange Co. on 18
June 2008.

On 14 July 2008, the Company appeared in the Court for
evidence exchange. Having the legal advice from Yunnan Qinye
Law Firm, the Company continued to put the Equity Interest
to open tender on Yunnan Equity Exchange Co. on 18 July
2008. Presently, this matter is being process.

According to the resolution made by the 32nd meeting of the
5th term of board of directors of the Company which proposed
to liquidate Winko, the Company proposed to convene a
shareholders’ meeting of Winko. The shareholders’ meeting
of Winko was held on 30 June 2008 and the results of
dissoluting and liquidating Winko were made. The Company
has made an announcement on this matter. Presently, the
liquidation group of Winko is promoting the liquidation in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulated procedures.
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Event Date of publishing

EREEZGFEORNGERELS

Announcement on resolutions of the 36th meeting of the board of directors
RESEREPIERBRBRRARBITERB R

Overseas regulatory announcement

EFxend

Announcement

XBEHERBRNE

Announcement on profit estimate improvement for January 1 to December 31, 2007

BREGRGRBR EHRBAE

Announcement on the listing of selling restricted circulating A shares
N

Resignation of director

BESBRETIERBRBRRAZRITERBR

Overseas regulatory announcement

EREEEEFEBRGARELSE

Announcement on resolutions of the 38th meeting of the board of directors
AREBRIZINE

Continuing connected transaction

FERAEEFEFIORNEERELS

Announcement on resolutions of the 40th meeting of the board of directors
FIEEFEENRERRELE

Announcement on resolutions of the 9th meeting of the supervisory committee
2008F FE—REERRRA S & & WA

Notice of the first extraordinary general meeting of 2008

2007 ERRAE G B

Notice of annual general meeting of 2007

2007 FERE

Announcement on annual results for the year ended 31 December 2007
2008F E—FEMRE

First quarterly report of 2008

FHREEHREABMZISI NS

Connected transaction

/N

Possible notification transaction

EFREEFEFNRLREERELS

Announcement on resolutions of the 42nd meeting of the board of directors
M2 5 E

Announcement on connected transaction

N

Announcement

2008FE—RBRHBRRAGREZAS

Announcement on the results of the 2008 first extraordinary general meeting
2007 FERRRGRELNS

The results of the 2007 annual general meeting

/N

Announcement

20075 M E D BEARE R A S

Overseas regulatory announcement

20084 1H2H

2 January 2008

200851 HA2H

2 January 2008

20084 1H3H

3 January 2008

20081H31H

31 January 2008

200842 H 28H

28 February 2008

200843 A3H
3 March 2008
2008F 4 1H
1 April 2008
2008%F 4A8H
8 April 2008
2008 4 A 8H
8 April 2008
20084 4 A 25H
25 April 2008
2008 4 A 25H
25 April 2008
20084 4 A 25H
25 April 2008
2008 4 A 25H
25 April 2008
20084 4 A 25H
25 April 2008
20084 4 A 30H
30 April 2008
2008 5H15H
15 May 2008
20084 5H22H
22 May 2008
20084 5H 28H
28 May 2008
20086 A 5H
5 June 2008
2008F6A11H
11 June 2008
20086 H 14H
14 June 2008
20086 A 14H
14 June 2008
20086 A 19H
19 June 2008
200846 A 25H
25 June 2008
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VII. FINANCIAL REPORTS-UNAUDITED

A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEET

Prepared by: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
2008664300 ZHEMLARET

As at 30 June 2008 Unit: RMB
BEB b))
1k BAFH a6y B4H aHE
30th June, 2008 31st December, 2007
BE ASSETS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
RBEE: Current Assets: 1
ERES Cash and cash equivalents 2 336,887,587.41 404,730,406.84 322,698,506.89 370,350,788.42
REUEEHEE Trading financial assets 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
e Bills receivable 4 84,021,495.85 145,563,961.85 88,342,942.50 134,784,345.56
JFE e % Dividend receivable 5 11,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.00
JE R B Interest receivable 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FE R R Accounts receivable 7 168,208,572.38  152,590,837.40  115,021,074.71  156,028,111.50
H 4 e U 3R Other receivable 8 13,110,415.17 26,373,316.09 21,760,471.53 21,434,300.74
BRERER Prepayments 9 30,672,775.66 82,643,871.63 9,544,865.11 41,436,623.72
#E Inventories 10 309,961,577.98  541,200,664.05  285,715,585.15  427,422,511.57
—FRHEMOERHEE  Non-current assets within one year 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EtReEE Other current assets 12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
mEBEESH TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17 953,862,424.45 1,353,103,057.86 845,083,445.89 1,151,456,681.50
REKRH: Long Term Investment: 19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
AHNESRHERE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RERERE Long-term equity investment 21 79,952,501.74 44,279,235.68 77,493,826.14 44,320,560.09
RURESH TOTAL LONG TERM INVESTMENT 22 79,952,501.74 44,279,235.68 77,493,826.14 44,320,560.09
BEEE: Fixed Assets: 24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ETEERE Fixed assets at cost 25 538,081,054.28 644,022,663.28 525,699,234.96 629,468,910.25
W BETE Less: accumulated depreciation 26 198,222,902.67 233,447,887.32 188,522,636.03 218,917,907.25
EEEERE FIXED ASSETS,
NET BOOK VALUE 27 339,858,151.61 410,574,775.96 337,176,598.93 410,551,003.00
B BEEEREEE Less: provision for impairment of
fixed assets 28 3,882,521.14 10,378,773.11 2,314,010.21 8,810,262.18
ETEEFR FIXED ASSETS,
NET REALISABLE VALUE 29 335,975,630.47 400,196,002.85 334,862,588.72 401,740,740.82
IByE Project materials 30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EEIR Construction in progress 31 72,294,565.96 72,802,259.99 44,346,100.88 46,097,502.88
ETEERBE Disposal of fixed assets 32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
BEEESR TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 34 408,270,196.43 472,998,262.84 379,208,689.60 447,838,243.70
EVEERHMEE: Intangible Assets and other assets: 35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
BVEE Intangible assets 36 20,475,122.99 90,794,997.36 21,507,860.15 92,376,761.28
REGEER Long-term deferred expenditures 37 0.00 138,496.20 0.00 163,127.70
B Goodwill 38 0.00 7,296,277.20 0.00 7,296,277.20
HES R&D expenditures 39 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EVEERREMEESH TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND
OTHER ASSETS 40 20,475,122.99 98,229,770.76 21,507,860.15 99,836,166.18
BERE: Deferred Tax: 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
BREMGHEE Deferred income tax assets 42 38,713,326.83 36,313,809.87 37,492,215.28 35,556,034.52
BE&H TOTAL ASSETS 50 1,501,273,572.43 2,004,924,137.02 1,360,786,037.06 1,779,007,685.99
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BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

2008%6A30H ZHEML:ARETL

30 June 2008 Unit: RMB
HRE ikl
1k NG| a6y 247 a6y
LIABILITIES AND 30th June, 2008 31st December, 2007
AEREBRER SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
RBAR: Current Liabilities: 51
REER Short-term loans 52 0.00  20,000,000.00 0.00 0.00
L GES Bills payable 53 0.00  14,620,003.50 0.00 4,670,000.00
JERER R Accounts payable 54 95,562,529.43 183,414,220.93 61,554,083.95 130,879,524.76
fﬁuﬁlﬁﬁt Advances from customers 55 307,821,701.58 492,849,494.96 309,550,464.02 432,062,138.47
JE 1< B8 T Accrued salary 56 32,414,256.85 36,944,361.14 39,106,679.99 42,071,636.57
& 1< 7% Dividends payable 57 114,713,520.00 115,057,612.75 0.00 1,176,869.81
EXH& Taxes payable 58 21,754,341.61 14,788,103.66 45,700,000.56 67,941,177.41
H e Other payables 59 5,723,351.87 58,407,545.46 11,947,285.05 64,694,849.97
BHER Estimated liabilities 60 12,548,553.23 13,311,425.09 9,114,994.57 9,117,430.72
—FRIWMERSHERE  Non-current liabilities within one year 61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HibnEaE Other current liabilities 62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
nBRESH TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 67 590,538,254.57 949,392,767.49 476,973,508.13 752,613,627.71
REIARK: Long Term Liabilities: 69
RHER Long-term loans 70 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
EEW = Deferred gain 71 7,545,810.21 7,545,810.21 4,724,203.71 4,724,203.71
REEMR Long-term payable 72 3,049,406.30 10,249,406.30 2,984,926.40 10,184,926.40
EEE K Specific payables 73 0.00 8,100,000.00 0.00 8,100,000.00
EEFREHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 74 - - - -
HuERBEE Other non-current liabilities 75 - - - -
RUAGRSH TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 76 60,595,216.51 75,895,216.51 57,709,130.11 73,009,130.11
ARG TOTAL LIABILITIES 81 651,133,471.08 1,025,287,984.00 534,682,638.25 825,622,757.82
PEREEE Minority Interest: 83 0.00 66,898,815.80 0.00 74,005,800.22
BRESR: Shareholders’ Equity: 85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
L Share capital 86 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00
YN Capital reserve 87 133,519,541.71 133,519,541.71 133,519,541.71 133,519,541.71
YN Surplus reserve 88 41,903,289.47 41,903,289.47 41,903,289.47 41,903,289.47
RO Unappropriated profits 90 249,852,387.17 312,449,623.04 225,815,684.63 279,091,413.76
BRESSH Total Shareholders’ Equity 92 850,140,101.35 912,737,337.22 826,103,398.81 879,379,127.94
AERBEERSH TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 100 1,501,273,572.43  2,004,924,137.01 1,360,786,037.06 1,779,007,685.99
BAAFA: = Company Representative:  Mr. Gao Minghui,
BAF %“”;.#IVEB‘J BEA: g =ei Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
IREAER B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

Prepared by: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

008F ¥ FE SEEML ARET
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE, 2008 UNIT: RMB
FER IER
ik B4 aHE B47 AHE
For the six months ended 30th June
2008 2007
5H ITEMS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
— BEWA 1. Principal operating income 1 607,759,092.54 808,588,142.53 443,636,570.29 550,980,050.97
W BERA Less: Principal operation cost 2 366,807,424.87 524,240,797.12 300,404,202.37 376,661,865.92
BEBERMM Principal operation tax
and addition 0.00 725,562.11 0.00 425,475.13
W EXEBR Less: Selling expenses 9 28,991,076.97 36,671,351.96 21,539,731.09 26,079,598.48
ERER Administrative expenses 10 69,291,710.65 79,761,081.28 35,435,919.35 45,084,787.61
BBA Financial expenses 11 253,331.46 814,550.70 1,496,681.21 2935,235.14
EEREEX Losses on impairment of assets 12 21,544,684.89 19,011,194.91 - 112,625.48
m ArBEEEBHKE Add: income from the changes
from the fair value 8
me RERE Add:  investment income 15 12,411,881.08 7,018,376.94 (844,974.74) (569,467.96)
Ed:Hpedse Including: investment income
LENREYR from associates and
joint venture companies 3,258 3,258 818 818
o BEME 2. Principal operating profits 133,282,744.78 154,381,972.39 83,915,061.53 99,810,995.25
me EEMEA Add:  Non-operating income 16 26,900,614.02 28,688,459.85 17,810,670.22 17,855,581.22
B EENTH Less: Non-operating expenses 18 1,839,771.64 3,575,829.01 1,215,095.85 1,244,924.32
= FESE 3. Profit before income tax 21 158,343,587.16 179,494,603.23 100,510,635.90 116,421,652.15
B RBH Less: Income tax 22 19,5983,364.62 25,923,362.52 12,600,983.04 13,906,900.32
me OFAE 4. Net profit for the period 24 138,750,222.54 153,571,240.71 87,909,652.86 102,514,751.83
NAMEENFE Net profit attribute to the equity
holders’ of parent company 138,750,222.54 148,071,729.27 87,909,652.86 94,343,873.43
PEREREER Minority interest 23 0.00 5,499,511.44 0.00 8,170,878.40
1 BRYE 5. Earnings per share 20
(—) EXxER Yz (1)  Basic EPS 21 0.3485 0.2221
(-) BESRYX (2)  Diluted EPS 2 0.3485 0.2021
BRUBEA: = BA 12 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BEUFEGHFIENEREA: 7 3 B Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
gIRBEEEA: I Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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ReEmuk CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RBEBAOLMEBRZIAKKRNOBRAA Prepared by: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
2008561 SEEARET
Unit: RMB
£33 i LERM
s BAF L BLF L
Year 2008 (January-June) Year 2007 (January-June)
BRER ITEMS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
- HEEDELHNALRE Cash flows from operating activities 1
HEAR RESHRIMAL Cash received from sales of goods
or rendering of services 2 621,501,973.75 835,151,402.68 381,337,901.81 551,242,561.54
KHNHERE Return of taxes and surcharges received 3 26,293,607.79 26,983,058.82 16,227,273.85 16,310,836.54
RAMERREEEERN RS Other cash received relating to
operating activities 4 4,472,363.52 (12,187,169.01) 249,757.92 4,098,259.86
5 - - 0 0
BEMANG Sub-total of cash inflows 6 652,267,945.06 849,947,292.49 397,814,933.58 571,651,657.94
BEAR RRSBIANTRE Cash paid for goods and services 7 463,647,521.33 596,626,513.01 141,333,263.72 304,896,251.56
XAEBINRABIXAHRE Cash paid to employees or
on behalf of employees 8 83,708,937.73 104,225,683.29 61,004,627.94 71,071,712.45
IREERE Taxes and surcharges paid 9 31,725,078.44 65,273,771.90 48,531,663.98 55,837,112.42
TRNEHALEEHERN RS Other cash paid relating to
the operating activities 10 16,274,114.75 18,388,061.29 26,000,591.72 34,271,409.20
1
BE ML Nt Sub-total of cash outflows 14 595,355,652.25 784,514,029.49 276,870,147.36 466,076,485.63
BEZPELNRENEFE Net cash flows from operating activities 15 56,912,292.81 65,433,262.99 120,944,786.22 105,575,172.31
Z REERBDELNALRE Cash flow from investing activities 16
I lil REMKIANGT Cash received from sale of investments 17 145,000,000.00 145,000,000.00 0 (1,367,894.02)
RERENRRNINE S Cash received from return on investment 18 3,453,205.48 3,453,205.48 0 0
)EE BrEE BVEEM Net cash received from disposal of
EHRBEERUENRLTE fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets 19 658,458.31 1,651,046.60 1,028,640.00 2,789,761.90
WIMEREREEDERNES Other cash received relating to
investing activities 20 - - 1,230,216.27 1,000,952.08
21
BemANG Sub-total of cash inflows 22 149,111,663.79 150,104,252.08 2,258,856.27 2,422,819.96
BEETEE BVAEN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,

EHRBEERIANRS intangible assets, and long-term assets 23 42,698,605.53 45,538,991.31 28,695,456.63 32,105,077.73
REFMXMORS Cash paid for investment 2 147,500,000.00 145,500,000.00 0 0
INMANEREEHERNRS Other cash paid relating to

investing activities 25 - 9,900.00 0 0

26
Re MmN Sub-total of cash outflows 27 190,198,605.53 191,048,891.31 28,695,456.63 32,105,077.73
REEYELNBREREFE Net cash flow from investing activities 28 (41,086,941.74) (40,944,639.23) (26,436,600.36) (29,682,257.77)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

2008567 SEEMARKET

Unit: RMB
331 LERY
ik B4R Aty BAH L
Year 2008 (January-June) Year 2007 (January-June)
BEER ITEMS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
= BEERELNBRLNE 3. Cash flow from financing activities 2
RSB ERIEINE S Cash received from capital contribution 30 - 2,500,000.00 0 0
REGRFALEINA S Cash from borrowings 31 - 20,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 52,000,000.00
WAMEHEEERDEANR S Other cash received relating to
financing activities 32 - 157,479.27 0 (980,491.34)
33
BEMANG Sub-total of cash inflows 34 - 22,657,479.27 50,000,000.00 51,019,508.66
EREBMIAORS Loan interest paid 3 - - 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
AREH FEAEAFH S Cash payment for distribution of
FRftEe dividends, profits and payments
of interest expenses 36 462,248.48 11,576,658.53 718,876.46 1,266,651.85
XANEHESEEDEANR S Other cash paid relating to
financing activities 37 - 15,804.01 0 19,841.76
38
Bem Nt Sub-total of cash outflows 42 462,248.48 11,592,462.54 40,718,876.46 41,286,493.61
SEEDELENRENENE Net cash flow from financing activities 43 (462,248.48) 11,065,016.73 9,281,123.54 9,733,015.05
M EXZ2HHRENTER 4, Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash " (1,174,022.07) (1,174,022.07) (71,108.96) (71,108.96)
I RERBELEEMFENE 5. Netincrease in cash and
cash equivalents 45 14,189,080.52 34,379,618.42 103,718,200.44 85,554,820.63
BUNBEA: = BA 8 Company Representative:  Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUEFEGSHIENEBREA: I-g==1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
gIRBEAEEA: HHIB Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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5 D8 PT A RE A 5 B % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF THE GROUP
REBAOLKEBRAKKRMDERR A Prepared by: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
2008%1-67 Bl BEARE
January-June, 2008 Unit: RMB
31T ]
Amount of the reporting period
EhEs FiEE
(Bk%) BF0R WEER N FAEHA #asH
Less: Total
Share Capital treasury Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
L ITEMS capital reserve share reserve profit equity
- LEEXRBE 1. Closing balance of last year 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 - 41,903,289.47  279,091,413.76  879,379,127.95
m: EHRXER Add:  Adjustment from accounting policy changes - - - - - 0.00
MBEEET Correction of errors in previous period - - - - - 0.00
o REENHE 2. Opening balance at the beginning of the current year ~ 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000  41,903,289.47 279,091,413.76  879,379,127.95
= FEEREYLE 3. Changes during the period (‘=" for decrease)
(B U5 E) - - - - 148,0711,729.27  148,071,729.27
(=) FHE (1) Net profit - - - - 148,071,729.27  148,071,729.27
(Z) BEStAMEEESRN () Profit and loss directly recorded
ISP in owner's equity - - - - - -
1. WEHESEEERL () Netchanges in fair value of
EEZDEE avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - -
2. BRATHREEN (i) Influence of changes in other owner's
ihkEEESR equity of invested under equity method
ELoEA - - - - - -
3. EFAMEEEZBEE (i) Income tax implication on items related to
BENMEHYE shareholder's equity accounted for - - - - - -
4. Efe (i)  Others - - - - - -
L (=) R () st Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - 148071,729.07  148,071,720.27
() REERAMALER (3 Addition and reduction of
Shareholders’ capital
1. HEERAER {)  Addition of shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
2. BBXMHARES (i) The amount of dividend paid to
EuNeE the shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
3 HH (i) Others - - - - - -
(m) MESE (4 Profit distribution - - - - 11471352000 114,713,520.00
1. REEHAR () Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - -
2. HEEE(SERE)HAE () Appropriation to owners (shareholders) - - - - 114,713520.00  114,713,520.00
3 Eh (i) Others . - - - - -
(B) FEEERRDEE (5)  Shareholders equity internally
carried forward
1. BRRRERER () Share capital increase by transferring
(Fk%) capital reserve - - - - - -
2. BRLREREXR (i) Share capital increase by transferring
(Fk%) surplus reserve - - - - - -
3. BHBLERHER (i) Losses covered by surplus reserve - - - - - -
4. Efe (i)  Others - - - - - -
n RHARRE 4. Closing balance for the current period 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000  41903,289.47 312,449,623.03 912,737,337.22
BRABA: = B 8 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUXFESFIENAEREA: FEE Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
SITHEBEEE A B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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OF THE GROUP (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Bf: BEARE
Unit: RMB
LERNEH
Amount of the same period of 2007
Eh#s g%
(B&%) BELH W EER EROR FORNA #asi
Less: Total
Share Capital treasury Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
f:| ITEMS capital reserve share reserve profit equity
- LEERHE 1. Closing balance of last year 245,007,400.00  314,797,956.97 - 20,298,114.29  30,648,361.04  610,751,832.30
m eHnEE Add:  Adjustment from accounting policy changes - (2,316,238.68) - - 379071386 1474475.18
AMEEEE Correction of errors in previous period - - - - 899,833.32 899,833.32
I REENHE 2. Opening balance at the beginning of the current year ~ 245,007,400.00  312,481,718.29 - 20,298,114.29  35,338,908.22  613,126,140.80
= FERAZYEE 3. Changes during the period (" for decrease)
(B e 851 - - - - - -
(=) #HE (1) Net profit - - - - 0434387343 94,343,873.43
(Z) Bt AMEAER (2)  Profit and loss directly recorded
mAEAEX in owner's equity - - - - - -
1. TRLESREE () Net changes in fair value of
MEEZHEE avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - -
2. BRATHREEL (i) Influence of changes in other owner's
EFEdERS equity of invested under equity method
g2 - - - - - -
3, EFAMEZEXEE (i) Income tax implication on items related
RENRERYE to shareholder's equity accounted for - - - - - -
4 EH (i) Others - - - - - -
(=)@ () st Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - 0434387343 94,343,873.43
(Z) FEERATMELELR  (3)  Addition and reduction of Shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
1. HEERAER () Addition of shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
2. BOXHHAHEE (i) The amount of dividend paid to
BENEE the shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
3 EH (i) Others - - - - - -
(m) AR (4)  Profit distribution - - - - - -
1. REAHKLE () Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - -
2. HEEE (BRF) (i) Appropriation to owners (shareholders)
HAR - - - - - _
3. Efe (i) Others - - - - - -
(1) EEEENDES (5)  Shareholders’ equity internally carried forward - - - - - -
1. BANBESER () Share capital increase by transferring
(3RE) capital reserve 38,235,855.00  (38,235,855.00) - - - -
2. BRMEELER (i) Share capital increase by transferring
(Fik%) surplus reserve - - - - - R
3. BBLEBHER (i) Losses covered by surplus reserve - - - - - -
4 EH (i) Others - - - - - -
m AHHRHE 4. Closing balance for the current period 283,243,255.00  274,245,863.29 - 20,298,114.29  129,682,781.65 707,470,014.24
TaEA: = BA 12 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
NEEEHIENBREA: g 45 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
A EAaE A fizB: -2 Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen

I I8 8 18
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B2 6] T A5 B 2 5 W) % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF THE COMPANY
REEM LBREEEARKENDBER QA Prepared by: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
2008%1-67 Elrix BEARR
January-June, 2008 Unit: RMB
31T ]
Amount of the reporting period
EhEs FiEE
(Bk%) BF0R WEER N FAEHA #asH
Less: Total
Share Capital treasury Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
L ITEMS capital reserve share reserve profit equity
- LEEXRBE 1. Closing balance of last year 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 - 41,903,289.47  225,815,684.63  826,103,398.82
m: EHHEEE Add:  Adjustment from accounting policy changes - - - - - 0.00
MBEEET Correction of errors in previous period - - - - - 0.00
= KEFNEE 2. Opening balance at the beginning of the current year ~ 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000  41,903,289.47  225,815,684.63  826,103,398.82
S FEEREDRE
(R b5 231 3. Changes during the period (‘" for decrease) - - - - 138750,222.53  138,750,222.53
(=) %78 (1) Net profit - - - - 138,750,222.53  138,750,222.53
() BRTAFERRES (2)  Profit and loss directly recorded
MHGENEX in owner's equity - - - - - -
1. AfihELRE f)  Netchanges in fair value of
ERAEBEZDEE available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - _
2. BRATHREEM (i) Influence of changes in other owner's equity
EbmEEERED of invested under equity method
qze i i i i i i
3. J/\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂié @B (i) Income tax implication on items related to
BENFEHY 2 shareholders equity accounted for - - - - - -
4 EH (W) Others - - - - - .
L (=) (=) b Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - 13875022253  138,750,222.53
(Z) FEERAMALER (3 Addition and reduction of Shareholders’ capital
1. FEERAER ()i Addition of shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
2. RhxAsAREE (i) The amount of dividend paid to
ERNEE the shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
3 HH (i) Others - - - - - -
(m) FEAE {4 Profit distribution - - - - 114713520.00  114,713,520.00
1. REEHAR () Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - -
2. HEEE(FRE) (i) Appropriation to owners (shareholders)
AR - - - - 114713520.00  114,713,520.00
3 HH (i) Others - - - - - -
(B) FEEERRDEE (5)  Shareholders’ equity internally carried forward - - - - - -
1. BADRESER () Share capital increase by transferring
(Fk%) capital reserve - - - - - -
2. BHBLEERER (i) Share capital increase by transferring
(kx) surplus reserve - - - - - _
3. BHLRERER (i) Losses covered by surplus reserve - - - - - -
4. Efe (i) Others - - - - - -
N RHHRHE 4. Closing balance for the current period 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000  41903,289.47 249,852,387.16  850,140,101.35
BAaE = A E Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUEE fIT’FE’JE,\/\ g =i Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
EaE T%E BEA: I Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Bfj: BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
LERYEHE
Amount of the same period of 2007
Eh#s g%
(BR%) B50H W EER EROE *OENA #asi
Less: Total
Share Capital treasury Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
LT ITEMS capital reserve share reserve profit equity
- LEERHE 1. Closing balance of last year 245,007,400.00  314,797,956.97 - 20,298,11429  31,369,108.07  611,472,579.33
m ednEE Add:  Adjustment from accounting policy changes - (2,316,238.68) - - 4,677,008.65 2,360,769.97
Hu,ﬁﬁ%faEE Correction of errors in previous period - - - - 899,833.32 899,833.32
o KEENSE 2. Opening balance at the beginning of the current year ~ 245,007,400.00  312,481,718.29 - 2029811429 36945950.04  614,733,182.62
= REEREDGE 3. Changes during the period (“-" for decrease)
(R b= 831)
(=) %58 (1) Net profit - - - - 87909,652.86  87,909,652.86
() BRSFAMEERR (2)  Profit and loss directly recorded
BFGREL in owner's equity - - - - - -
1, —Mﬁt“uﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ () Netchanges in fair value of
MrEEEHEE available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - -
2. BEETHREEM (i) Influence of changes in other owner's
EfEEEsS equity of invested under equity method
g & - - - - - -
3, uﬂ\ fg&ERER (i) Income tax implication on items related
RENEERYE to shareholder’s equity accounted for - - - - - -
4 Ef (i) Others - - - - - -
L (=)m () st Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - 8790965286  87,909,652.86
(Z) BEERARMEAVER  (3)  Addition and reduction of Shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
1. Eﬁﬁﬁ RABK () Addition of shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
2. RBXWHAREE (i) The amount of dividend paid to
%iﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁ the shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
3 Ef i) Others - - - - - -
(m) HESE (@ Profit distribution - - - - - -
1. ROBHLE () Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - -
2. HEEE(SRE) (i) Appropriation to owners (shareholders)
WA - - - - - -
3 Eb (i) Others - - - - - -
(B) fiEERERDLE (5 Shareholders’ equity internally carried forward - - - - - -
1. BADRELER () Share capital increase by transferring
(3BR~) capital reserve 38,235,855.00  (38,235,855.00) - - - -
2. BERDEEEEXR (i) Share capital increase by transferring
(FikA) surplus reserve - - - - - -
3. BBLERHEER (i) Losses covered by surplus reserve - - - - - -
4 Ef (i) Others - - - - - -
m AHERHE 4. Closing balance for the current period 283,243,255.00  274,245,863.29 - 20,298,114.29  124,855,602.90  702,642,835.48
BRUBEA: = BA 12 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BRNEFEEHIENEEA: 7 3 B Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
gIRBEEEA: B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
|
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(2)

GENERAL

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (“the Company”),
formerly known as Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited. The
matter of the change of the Company’s name from Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Co., Ltd. to Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd. was approved by the shareholders at the 2006 annual general
meeting held on 29 June 2007. The Company received its new
business license from Yunnan Commercial and Industrial
Administrative Bureau on 10 September 2007 and has carried out
the necessary filing procedures with the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong and the Certificate of Registration of Change of Name
of Oversea Company was issued on 18 October 2007. Then, the
Company made an announcement on change of company name
and change of stock short name.

Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Kunming
Machine Tool Co., Ltd.) was established in the People’s Republic of
China as a Sino-foreign joint stock limited company as part of the
reorganization of a State-owned enterprise known as Kunming
Machine Tool Plant (“KMTP”). Pursuant to the reorganization, the
operations, assets and liabilities of KMTP were divided between
the Company and Kunming Kunji Group Company (“Kunji Group
Company”). The Company was established on 19th October, 1993.
The Company’s A shares and H shares have been listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange in Shanghai and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in Hong Kong respectively. The Company is
engaged principally in the design, development, production and
sale of machine tool products and accessories, computer and
information products, highly efficient compressors,
electromechanical integration products; develops high-tech
products, and conducts its own technology transfer, technology
service and technology consultancy business.

On 25th December, 2000, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation (“diaotong Group”) entered into an agreement with
Yunnan Provincial People’s Government (“Yunnan Government”), the
Company’s former controlling shareholder whereby Yunnan
Government would transfer a 29% interest of 71,052,146 State-
owned shares in the Company to Jiaotong Group. The Ministry of
Finance signed approval of State-owned shares transfer of Jiaoda
Kunji High-tech Company Limited (Cai Qi [2001] No. 283), and
approved the share transfer. Upon completion of share transfer
procedure on 5th June, 2001, Jiaotong Group became substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
31st December, 2001. After the assets restructuring, the Company
changed from a traditional machinery manufacturing company which
focused on production of machine tools to a high-tech and
diversified Production Company.




46 2008 HhEpRE

KERIBITREERRMYEINEG HELES
VEEBHEL > AN A B 7A20026E 35 29H EE
BIBTHERERNEBE T AR ERANIEE
REE WEXNFEANEHE X RKEEEHER
BMERRAR] -

2005F9A15H X REEXHEEG KK (£
E) BRETAARI(REEE DS &
R (EE) BREC AR BERERKR
EXEANEM/71,052,146% (52 7]
BRAEI29% o 1t T8 IR 42 85 -2 2006 F 48 B 75 Bt
BEEZ(ANRRIARRBERHDERAAE
EREREERENE R (BEE#[2006]
628%%) AE  WLTEHEES (FREB#
F(EE) BERETRARKET KRR
BOBRAGBEEEENER) (FERQA
F[2006]255%% ) & 1% @i 20065125 1H
ERBREBFFE BHSEK (£E) ERE
FRRIRERREER AR RAGINE— KK
%o

2006F4 A48 LEEEARBG(EM%E
ARBFER I AE#BHE M AR A A%
EEEAMBMENRE) REFERER
(EHABEEZHEN R EREREEEKL
BERBETARERIARKBIEROERA
AITEREEFMNER)AE BEFEAR
B A0 EE R3134.568 (162 a % H
BE12.79%) BESELENEAREEEL
EBHREMTAR SEEERD A2005F12 A
S1H WEREHEBCHEBEREEZ (BER
RAEEBERDBRA BRI EE R E
BRAMEMNHLIE) (B&EE#[2006]14125%)
BB BPFER2007F1 19 PIET R

20074F 1A 250 & 7% 2B 75 & #£[2007] 133%%
(ARRAERKE#EHE KRG AR A B MRE
EENIEENIE) AT RARKRESEN
FHER-RAINEARQTES M2007F 2726
A& EMA 2R E S 108 #1.5606
% - 48 5t 82 1% B /K 38,235,8550% - H A AR 4
=88 % A% 75 28,091,9550% » HAR 42 &5t 5 1% %
7510,143,9000% - 200743858 * A A JER
BRAR R AR A B IR 15 $£511,872.83558
R AR AR AT EI0OR R EY
B2.70 FAK LT H A2007F3A7H -H
oL EE T 41,108.8398 B i EF A H
BRNAZT489.1787E MK - QT XA
27481708 R -E L B E LR HEH TR E
%BoREERBRBEEFEENIERBRED
BNVER EhimEgE-

After getting the approval from State Industry and Commerce
Administration Bureau, with effective from 29th March, 2002, the
Company uses the name “Jiaoda Kunji High Tech Company Limited”.
The amount of registered capital is RMB245,007,400.

On 15th September, 2005, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation and Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited
entered into an agreement regarding transfer of shares. Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited agreed to buy 71,052,146
shares of Jiaoda High-tech Company Limited from Xi’an Jiaotong
University Industrial (Group) Incorporation, representing 29% of the
total 245,007,400 shares. The transaction was approved by State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee under the
State Council and China Securities Regulation Committee. At 1st
December, 2006, the register of transfer was finished and Shenyang
Group became the largest shareholder of the Company.

On 4th April, 2006, Yunnan Government and State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee, Yunnan Committee
issued written reply to agree Yunnan Government transfer its
31,315,600 shares of the Company (representing 12.79% total issued
shares) to Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Company Limited
at nil based on the date of 31st December, 2005. By 31st December,
2006, the share transfer was approved by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee. The transfer was finished
on 19th January, 2007.

On January 25, 2007, the Ministry of Commerce, the PRC issued
the “Written Reply Regarding Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
Transfer of Shares and Increase Shares” (file no. & & #£[2007]133
%) to approve the Share Reform Proposal of the Company. The
Company increased shares to all shareholders whose name appear
on the Company'’s register of members on the February 26, 2007
by transferring capital reserves on a basis of 1.5606 shares for
every existing 10 shares. The total increased share capital was
38,235,855 shares, of which, 28,091,955 shares were A Shares,
and 10,143,900 shares were H Shares. On March 5, 2007, the
holders of non-circulating Shares of the Company used their
18,728,355 shares as consideration shares to pay to the holders of
circulating A Shares on a basis of 2.7 shares for every 10 shares.
The new A shares were listed on March 7, 2007. Of 18,728,355
shares, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited disbursed
11,088,398 shares; Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Company
Limited disbursed 4,891,787 shares, and Jinghua Company
disbursed 2,748,170 shares to the holders of Circulating A Shares.
After implementation of the consideration arrangement, non-
circulating shares held by the holders of non-circulating Shares of
the Company became tradable and listed.
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200748 RAIRE—EGEK (SE) B On April 2007, two shareholders of the Company, Shenyang Machine
REERARNEMEEREEELERREML Tool (Group) co., Ltd. and Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
ANABMARBATNEALNESEERAFTE Co., Ltd. jointly proposed the Share Increase Proposal (the “Share
(AR LA E B AR AN 48 %5283,243,25588 A & Increase”) (New Shares would be issued to all shareholders of the
A EBEARRESE T 10/ E K56 L H Company by transferring capital reserve on a basis of five New
A% BB AR R EIE AR AR o AR 5 TR 4F2007F 4 A Shares for every 10 Shares based on 283,243,255 total share
1BAFEAEESEEE -+ —RGEERED capital). The Share Increase was approved at the 21st meeting of
R332 2007465 29H B F A20064F E IR R the board of directors held on April 18, 2007 and the resolution
FEMBAANRRGEERZ LR E was submitted to 2006 annual general meeting and class meetings

held on June 29, 2007 for consideration and approval respectively.

200748 H 15H & % & 1 & #£[2007] 13905% On 15 August 2007, pursuant to the approval of Share Increase
(ARRAERREBHRBEROARARES Proposal by Minister of Commerce, the share capital of the Company
FAGARA K BLAE) - B T R B ABE R DTE was added from 283,243,255 shares to 424,864,883 shares. The
© 8 IE S N N AR A 48 %8 1 283,243,255 registered capital was added from RMB283,243,255 to
B 1% = 424,864,883 ' Tt & A & RMB424,864,883.

283,243,255 T A R #6142 2= 424,864,8837C A

A B A RATORE K235 i The place of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road, Kunming
it & K : 424,864,8837C A R ¥ s fit 5% : City, Yunnan Province; registered capital is RMB424,864,883 and
530000400000458 - the business registration number is 530000400000458.

(Z) ~ 3 9h 4 38 & 5 o 0wy ) (3) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
NAREINMEBREFELEGHERNE The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
KB TEMRE T SEMNMBERR L requirements of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise,
ERRAMREREEHEBEL- truly and fully reflecting the Company’s financial condition, operating

results, cash flows and related information.

(V) ~ 2 ) 3 2ol 8OR > 1 ak A St (4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATIONS
1R & B Br 52006 F2 15 BEmME & In accordance with the regulations of “Notice on Printing and
[2006 1355 €A 5] 8 < X G HEAIF1 Distributing ‘Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
SR—TFE>S38HEARENMNBN) R No. 1-Inventories’ etc. 38 Specific Accounting Standards” (Cai Kuai
TE b i SR B B BA A IR IR (5 B PR A B4 2007 [2006] No.3) issued by Ministry of Finance (‘MOF”) on 15 February,
FIATEBHITHO(DESHER) RE 2006, commencing from 1 January 2007, the Company has adopted
HEAFTRE AL AaREBEH gAY the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” and its relevant
FTESHRRETER FE NESR supplementary regulations. Therefore, according to the new
2007F KA B EEHZE R E KR S8 Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Company has
BOEFESTHE S A MEFREN modified and adjusted the significant accounting policies and will
wEl AW T use the modified and adjusted accounting policies as a foundation

and basis for accounting treatment after 2007. The modified
accounting policies, accounting estimations and the compilation
methods of financial statements are shown as follows:

1. #skdeH) 1.  Accounting Standards
IR 15 BF By #2006 42 A 150 545 19 Bt In accordance with the regulations of “Notice on Printing and
& [2006] 35k KN Bl 8 < b EEF Distributing ‘Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
ERIE1FE—FE>E38THABAER No. 1-Inventories’ etc. 38 Specific Accounting Standards” (Cai
BB A B E - A RIRR2007F1A1H Kuai [2006] No.3) issued by Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) on
BT ES L) RERA 15 February, 2006, commencing from 1 January 2007, the
HRRE - Company has adopted the “Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises” and its relevant supplementary regulations.



482008 HhEpRE

2. TV 0 it R Y 4 o) i The basis of preparing financial statements
A AR A2006F 28158 AT/ A Before January 1, 2007, the financial statements of the
ESFERMIEESEHE) (B Company have been prepared in accordance with the
TR R R R B@K- Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (old edition)
B2007F 118 & 2 BT B Ep which was issued before 15 February 2006. Since January 1
2006F2H15F B A ¥ g5t % 8| 2007, the Company has adopted the “Accounting Standards
(ATEBIESETAER]) -2007F for Business Enterprises” and its relevant supplementary
EMBHRERALNAENHEBRLESH regulations which the Ministry of finance issued on 15 February
AE B AR BB 6 2 B 7% SRR o AN B RS R 2006. The financial statements for the year 2007 were the
EHHERERNMERRABFER first financial statements adopted the new Accounting
EREM BRREREENRINE Standards for Business Enterprises. The financial statements
B EEPEGTERETHRNE have been prepared on the going concern and accrual basis
AR EZR(GESHEAFEI8H and based on the actual transactions and items, complied
—EHRRTREEHEADERKE with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to
BTG PRBES (R TR recognized, measured. According to term 5 and term 9 in
e EEEM B e EEREIE Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 38 - First
FEA) MCARBETIESFNABER Time Adoption of Accounting Standards For Business, and
BRABEEETR)SHERT Y relevant regulations issued by CSSC, the opening balance of
BEAGBRBUSENFBR -HER accounts in Balance Sheet, comparative accounts in income
EXRN CFRBALLEIRET T EW statement and cash flow statement of the same period of last
AR WKAZRENSBIEARNEAN year were adjusted retrospectively. The after adjusted data
BMERO L REE- will be treated as comparative data in the financial statements

for this period.

3. k4 Accounting Fiscal Year
BAE—R—RAE+=-ZRA=+—H1t The accounting year of the Company commences on 1st
R—EgFTFE- January and the ends on 31st December.

4. i MR A fr W Reporting Currency
REARLERARE: The reporting currency of the Company is Renminbi (‘RMB”).

5. wi MR O B A A Principle of Accounting and basis of measurement

DEE S BERETRIER
B HEE

HEERETHERN —RERAE

B AABEEHRELTETE B
T AR R B A A B HOR R
EEAA A EIFE REXALE
-

Recognition, measurement and reporting are based upon
accrual system.

The Company should generally apply the historical cost as
measurement basis in preparing financial statements. If other
measurement bases are applied such as replacement cost,
net realizable value, present value, fair value, the Company is
required to demonstrate that the accounting elements can be
measured reliably in those bases.
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© NUARBEAEEEEH
FRAERHEENSRE
ERRRZIUETREE
MIEER/ARARBEFE
BEEHFAEHERN
EREE:

@ FHAEEIHRE:
®  EYFE:

® FHLESHMEE-

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
investments that readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated by “mid
exchange rate” on the transaction date upon initial recognition.
In balance sheet date, items in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB at the mid exchange rate on the day.
Exchange differences arising from differences between the
mid exchange rate on the balance sheet date and that upon
initial recognition date are recognized as financial expenses
in profit and loss for the current period. Non-momentary items
in foreign currencies carried at historical cost are still measured
at amount of recording currency translated at the spot
exchange rate on the day during which the transaction takes
place. Non-monetary items in foreign currencies carried at
fair value are translated at spot exchange rate on the date of
which the fair value is determined. Differences between the
amount of recording currency after translation and that before
translation are accounted as changes in fair value (inclusive
of changes on exchange rate) and included in profit and loss
of the current period. Differences between foreign currency
borrowings related with the acquisition and production of
assets eligible for capitalization are recognized in accordance
with the principle of borrowing cost.

Financial Instruments Measurement
(1) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial assets are classified
into four categories:

a. financial assets which recognized at fair value and
their changes recognized through profit or loss
include trading financial assets and financial assets
which are designated by the Group upon
recognition at fair value and their changes
recognized through profit or loss.

b. held-to-maturity assets
c. loans and accounts receivable

d. available-for-sale financial asset
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(i)

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities are classified
into two categories:

b.

financial liabilities which recognized at fair value
and their changes recognized through profit or loss
include trading financial liabilities and financial
liabilities which are designated by the Group upon
recognition at fair value and their changes
recognized through profit or loss.

other financial liabilities

Recognition and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
in the balance sheet, when and only when, the Group,
as appropriate, becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured
at fair value. After initial recognition, the four financial
assets are measured in difference ways.

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized at fair value at initial recognition,
related transaction costs are considered as profit
or loss. During holding financial assets, interest
or cash bonus are considered as investment
revenue. Accounts in balance sheet are measured
in fair value. Gain or loss from change of fair value
is measured as profit or loss. When disposal of
financial assets, the balance between fair value
and initial recognition are considered as
investment revenue, and adjust profit or loss with
change of fair value.
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b. available-for-sale financial assets, are measured
at fair value plus transaction cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
finance asset. The accounts in balance sheet are
measure at fair value. Gain or loss from change of
fair value shall be classified as capital reserves.
The difference between carrying value and book
value shall be classified as investment revenue,
and the amount of capital reverse previously which
is gain or loss from change of fair value transfer
into investment revenue.

C. receivables from good sales or service are
recognized in agreement or quota price. When
receiving or disposing the receivable, the
difference between carrying value and book value
shall be recognized as profit or loss.

d. the investments which will be held to their maturity
are measured at fair value of the investment and
transaction cost at initial recognition. The
investments shall be measured on the basis of
the post-amortization costs by adopting the actual
interest rate method in subsequent measurement;
The balance between the carrying amount and the
fair value shall be computed into the investment
revenue when investment is disposed.

For the financial liabilities measured at their fair values
and of which the variation is recorded into the profits
and losses of the current period, they shall be measured
at their fair values, and the transaction cost may be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period;
in subsequent measurement, they shall be measured at
fair value.

For the other financial liabilities, at initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction cost; in
subsequent measurement, they shall be measured on
the basis of the post-amortization costs by adopting
the actual interest rate method.
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(iii)

(iv)

Fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is based
on their quoted market price in an active market at the
valuation date. If a quoted market price is not available,
the fair value of the financial assets is established using
valuation techniques. The fair value of initial or original
financial assets, or bearing financial liabilities, is
determined by market transaction price.

Impairment of financial assets

An enterprise shall carry out an inspection, on the
balance sheet day, on the carrying amount of the
financial assets other than those measured at their fair
values and of which the variation is recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period. Where there is
any objective evidence proving that such financial asset
has been impaired, an impairment provision shall be
made. An impairment test shall be made on the financial
assets with significant single amounts. With regard to
the financial assets with insignificant single amounts,
an independent impairment test may be carried out, or
they may be included in a combination of financial assets
with similar credit risk features so as to carry out an
impairment-related test.

For loans and receivables, held-to-maturities
investments, difference between current value of the
predicted future cash flow and book value should make
provision on impairment loss. If there is any objective
evidence proving that the value of the said financial
asset has been restored, the recognized impairment loss
should be reversed and be recorded into the profits and
losses of the current period.

Where a available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
even if the recognition of the financial asset has not
been terminated, the accumulative losses arising from
the decrease of the fair value of the owner’s equity which
was directly included shall be transferred out and
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.
As for the available-for-sale debt instruments whose
impairment-related losses have been recognized, if,
within the accounting period thereafter, the fair value
has risen and are objectively related to the subsequent
events that occur after the originally impairment-related
losses were recognized, the originally recognized
impairment-related losses shall be reversed and be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.
The impairment-related losses incurred to an available-
for-sale equity instrument investment shall not be
reversed through profits and losses.
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financial assets transfer and recognition

If the group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the group
shall derecognize the financial asset. If the group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the group shall continue to recognize
the financial asset. The Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, if the group has not
retained control, it shall derecognized the financial asset;
if the entity has retained control, it shall continue to
recognize the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement in the financial asset, and
corresponsive financial liabilities.

On derecognizing of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between:

(a) the carrying amount and

(b)  the sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed);

and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized directly in equity shall be recognized
in profit or loss.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset
and the part transferred qualifies for derecognizing in
its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger
financial asset shall be allocated between the part that
continues to be recognized and the part that is
derecognized, based on the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer.

The difference between:

(@) the carrying amount allocated to the part
derecognized and

(b) the sum of (i) the consideration received for the
part;

and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognized directly in equity; shall
be recognized in profit or loss.
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9. Provision for bad debt on receivables

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market, including bills receivable, accounts
receivable, prepayments, other receivables, and long-
term receivables.

Measurement: An impairment test shall be made on the
receivable account with significant single amounts.
Where there is any objective evidence proving that such
financial asset has been impaired, an impairment
provision shall be made. The carrying amount of
receivable shall be written down to the current value of
the predicted future cash flow, and the amount as written
down shall be recognized as loss of the impairment of
the receivable. For the single non significant receivables
and tested non impairment receivables, the provision of
bad debts is measured on the provision method based
on aging analysis.

Recognition criteria for bad debt: a. the irrecoverable
amount of a debtor who has gone bankrupt or has died
and has insufficient asset or estate to repay; b. the
irrecoverable amount, demonstrated by sufficient
evidence, of a debtor who does not comply with his/her
repayment obligation over three years.

Accounting basis of bad debt losses: allowance method

Allowance and applicable rate:

An impairment test shall be made on the receivable
account with significant single amounts. Where there is
any objective evidence proving that such asset has been
impaired, an impairment provision shall be made. The
carrying amount of receivable shall be written down to
the current value of the predicted future cash flow, and
the amount as written down shall be recognized as loss
of the impairment of the receivable. For the single non
significant receivables and tested non impairment
receivables, the provision of bad debts is measured on
the provision method based on amount in the balance
sheet and account’s aging analysis.

Accounts aged applicable rate

Within 1 year 5%
1-2 years 50%
Over 2 years 100%
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Derecognizing in bad debt on receivables

The Company should derecognize bad debt on
receivable when: @ the irrecoverable amount of debtor
who has gone bankrupt or has died and has insufficient
asset to repay; @ the irrecoverable amount,
demonstrated by sufficient evidence, of a debtor who
does not comply with his/her repayment obligation over
three years.

Save above irrecoverable receivables should be
derecognized with approval of the Board of the Directors.

10. Accounting for Inventories

U]

(i)

(i)

Inventory category: Inventories include raw materials,
work-in-progress products, semi-finished products,
finished goods, low-value consumables, and packaging
material.

Valuation method of inventories:

Purchase of raw materials, packaging materials and
consumables are stated at cost incurred. Inventory
issued and inventory shipped are recorded based on
the weighted average cost method. Low value
consumables are fully charged to cost when they are
issued. Work-in-progress products are recorded based
on quota cost method.

Measurement: Inventories are measured initially at cost.
At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. The follow ways
to measure the net realizable value on difference
inventories:

The inventories such as merchandise, finished product,
available for sales materials, the net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less the estimated
expenses of sales and tax. The inventories such as
processing materials, the net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price of finished product less the
estimated cost of process completion, estimated
expense of sales and tax.
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(vi)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories:
provisions for diminution in value of inventories are made
by single items. For inventories of low value and many
items, provisions for diminution in value of inventories
are made by classification of inventories.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Whenever the
net realizable value is lower than cost, provision is made
for diminution in value of each inventory to the profit
and loss account in the period.

After provision for diminution in value of inventories is
made, where the factors that result in diminution in value
of inventories no longer exist and therefore the net
realizable value of inventories is higher than its carrying
value, the original provision for diminution in value of
inventories can be reversed, and the amount of reversal
is charged to the profit and loss account in the period.

A perpetual inventory system is adopted for the
calculation of inventory volume.

11. Accounting for Long-term Investment

®

Long-term equity investments are recorded at initial
investment cost on acquisition.

a. For combinations of entities under common control
in which a company pays cash, transfers non-
cash assets or bear debts as consideration of
combinations, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share with reference
to the book value of the shareholders’ equity of
the party to be combined on the date of
combinations. Capital reserve account is adjusted
by differences between initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment and the book value
of the cash paid, non-cash assets transferred as
well as liabilities assumed. Amounts that cannot
be sufficiently released by capital reserve account
serve the purpose of adjusting retained earnings.
For companies offering consideration of
combinations by issuing equity securities, initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment
refers to the share with reference to the book value
of the shareholders’ equity of the party to be
combined on the date of combinations, this
becomes share capital with reference to the
nominal value of shares in issue. Capital reserve
account is adjusted by differences between initial
investment costs of long-term equity investment
and the aggregate nominal value of shares in issue.
Amounts that cannot be sufficiently released by
capital reserve account serve the purpose of
adjusting retained earnings.
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For combinations of entities without common
control, initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment refers to the assets paid, liabilities
incurred or assumed as well as the fair value of
equity securities in issue by the company in
exchange for control of the acquiree on the date
of acquisition. If the fair value of acquisition cost
is bigger then the fair value of acquiree’s realizable
net assets, the differences will be treated as
goodwill. If the fair value of acquisition cost is
smaller than the fair value of acquiree’s realizable
net assets, the differences will be included in profit
and loss.

For non combination of entities, long-term equity
investment settled in cash, initial investment cost
refers to the actual consideration paid. Initial
investment cost refers to long-term equity
investment acquired through the issue of equity
securities in accordance with the fair value of
equity securities in issue. Save for unfair agreed
values under contract or agreement, initial
investment cost are long-term equity investment
of investors with reference to the agreed value
stipulated under investment contract or agreement.
For the long-term equity investment obtained by
the exchange of non-monetary assets, the initial
investment cost shall be determined by fair value
of non-monetary assets plus related tax expense.
For the long-term equity investment obtained by
debt restructuring, the initial investment cost shall
be determined by fair value investment of debt
restructuring. The difference of fair value of
investment and book value of debt restructuring
is stated as profit or loss.
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(i)

(iii)

Follow-up measurement.

The investment on the subsidiaries without join control
or significant influence, without price quota in the active
market, without reliable measure by fair value shall be
accounted by the method of cost. The long-term equity
investment that the Company co-controls or has
significant influences on the unit being invested shall
be accounted by the method of equity. Investment
revenue is determined by net profit adjustment of
invested unit based on fair value of each asset which
can be classified in invested unit.

Provision for the impairment on long-term equity
investment.

Goodwill caused by business combination involving
entities under non common control should be tested for
impairment at the end of the period. Loss of goodwill
shall be recognized as profit or loss. According to cost
method, without price quota in active market, and
reliable fair value, the loss between book value cost of
investment and net value from future cash flow shall be
stated as profit or loss. If there is impairment in the
investment, comparison with net value of initial fair value
of investment minus disposal cost and present value
fro future cash flow by investment, the higher is
considered as the amount recoverable. The impairment
reserves are accounted by difference between the
recoverable amount of the individual investment and the
book value. Once the impairment loss for long-term
equity investment is confirmed, they shall no longer be
reversed in the future accounting period.
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12. Fixed assets

U}

(i)

(iii)

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for using
the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful
lives more than one accounting year such as house,
building, machine, equipment, transport vehicle, other
tangible assets.

Fixed assets measure: Fixed assets are initially measured
at cost by the ways of purchase, self-construction, and
acquisition through business combination under common
control. Fixed assets are measured at fair value or
carrying cost by non-montary asset exchange, debt
reconstructure, acquisition through business
combination under non common control. If a constructed
fixed asset has reached the working condition for its
intended use but the final project accounts have not
been completed and approved, the asset should be
transferred to fixed assets at an estimated value based
on project budget and depreciation is based on the
estimated value. After completion, the estimated value
will be adjusted in accordance with the actual cost.
However, the recognized depreciation will not be
adjusted.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method to recognize monthly. The estimated useful lives,
estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation
rates of the fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Annual
Fixed assets Estimated residual  depreciation
category useful lives value (%) rate (%)
Buildings 40 5 2.38
Machinery equipments 10-14 5 6.79-9.50
Electric equipments,
fixture, furniture 5-10 5 9.5-19
Transportation equipment 10-14 5 6.79-9.50

The depreciation policy for assets held under finance
bases is consistent with that for owned assets. If there
is reasonable certainty that the lease will obtain
ownership at the end of lease, the asset should be
appreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the
life of the asset.
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(iv)

Provision on impairment loss on fixed assets

At the end of the period, when there is an indication
that the fixed asset devalue, estimates its recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amounts lower than the book
value, decrease the book value of the fixed asset to
recoverable amount. The decreased amount is
recognized as assets’ impairment loss included in profit
or loss for the current period and recognizes the
provision on impairment loss on fixed assets at the same
time. Once the impairment loss on fixed assets
recognized, it cannot be reversed in the future period.

13. Accounting for Construction in Progress

U]

(i)

The cost of construction-in-progress is determined
according to expenditures actually incurred.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
at the date of reaching its usable conditions at an
estimated amount

Provision on impairment loss on construction in progress

At the period end, based on the investigation on each
construction in progress, if there exists:

a. Construction-in-progress has been (or will be)
suspended, terminated construction or disposed
ahead of schedule;

b. The economic, technological or legal environment
in which the enterprise operates, or the market
where the assets is situated will have any
significant change in the current period or in the
near future, which will cause disadvantage impact
on the enterprise;

c. Internal report shows that the economic benefit
generated by the construction-in-progress will be
lower than the expectation, e.g. new cash flow or
net operating profit (or loss) of the construction-
in-progress will much lower (or higher) than the
expectation;
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d. The market interest rate or any other market
investment return rate has risen in the current
period, and thus the discount rate of the enterprise
for calculating the expected future cash flow of
the assets will be affected, which will result in
great decline of the recoverable amount of the
assets;

e. Other evidences can prove the existence of the
circumstance of the decline in value on
construction-in-progress.

Should the above circumstance exists, difference of the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of
construction-in-progress can be made as provision on
impairment loss on construction-in-progress. The
impairment loss is calculated based on the difference
between book value and net realizable value. Once the
impairment loss on construction-in-progress recognized,
it cannot be reversed in the future period.

14. Intangible Assets

@i

(i)

Intangible asset refers to the identifiable non-monetary
assets possessed or controlled by the Company which
have no physical shape, include patents, know how,
trade mark, copyright, chartered right, and land use right.

Measurement: The intangible assets shall be initially
measured according to its cost. The cost of outsourcing
intangible assets shall include the purchase price,
relevant taxes and other necessary expenditures directly
attributable to intangible assets for the expected
purpose. Where the payment of purchase price for
intangible assets is delayed beyond the normal credit
conditions, which is of financing intention, the cost of
intangible assets shall be determined on the basis of
the current value of the purchase price. The difference
between the actual payment and the current value of
the purchase price shall be recorded into profit or loss
for the credit period, unless it shall be capitalized under
the relevant regulations.
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(iii)

(iv)

Amortization: With regard to intangible assets with
limited service life, its amortization amount shall be
amortized within its service life systematically and
reasonably. Intangible assets with uncertain service life
may not be amortized. The intangible assets from
contractive rights or other legal rights, the service life is
not over the limit period of the contract live right or
other legal rights. If there is undefinitive contract or
legal regulation, it is able to forecast the period to
confirm service life when the intangible asset can bring
economic benefits to the enterprise. If it is not able to
forecast the period to confirm service life when the
intangible asset can bring economic benefits to the
enterprise, the intangible asset will be treat as intangible
assets with uncertain service life.

The research expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise shall be recorded
into the profit or loss for the current period. The
development expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise may be confirmed
as intangible assets when they satisfy the following
conditions simultaneously:

a. It is feasible technically to finish intangible assets
for use or sale;

b. It is intended to finish and use or sell the intangible
assets;
C. The usefulness of methods for intangible assets

to generate economic benefits shall be proved,
including being able to prove that there is a
potential market for the products manufactured
by applying the intangible assets or there is a
potential market for the intangible assets itself or
the intangible assets will be used internally;

d. It is able to finish the development of the intangible
assets, and able to use or sell the intangible
assets, with the support of sufficient technologies,
financial resources and other resources; and

e. The development expenditures of the intangible
assets can be reliably measured.



2008 Interim Report | 63

15.

16.

(6) BRAECRSWNER B
ELEENBFFERT HE
WEENERSmETEZ W
REBBRABTVEENREA
S TRNAATA G BIER
ERTHERNELEE EX
BEBRHER - HREASZH T
HENEVEE MREEEX
RECASwEARN BIRE
RS EREVEEMRE

JR B BE IR -
1 300 45 B 2 1 B 6 5 0%
HHEBREQAFNCKELERAR

Eﬂﬂ%fﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ*ﬂ’] DEHIREF
NENSEER mELBEHAHE
AHEEEERRIHE -RAES
BEMEAZEENRNER EMKE
ELENEA - REFABR EMk
HEEBERRIAMR TN

i 5k e W B 8105 %

(1) 2RARELNBRER TEESR
BREAERNCIGHENEEDN
BREIELEN TUEXRE
SPARREBEERAS: HMbERE
B EEERREEEEERR
RER GHAEHEBR-

NEBERKEMNEE 2R

ZRBAERFHENBELE
EERTREDAEAHE
HERENEE BREETEA
ENFELBRERKHEMNE
BRELETSAEETA(E
R AIEERENTFE REM
FES-

Review the service life of intangible assets: an enterprise
shall, at least at the end of each year, check the service
life and the amortization method of intangible assets
with limited service life. When the service life and the
amortization method of intangible assets are different
from those before, the years and method of the
amortization shall be changed. An enterprise shall check
the service life of intangible assets with uncertain service
life during each accounting period. Where there are
evidences to prove the intangible assets have limited
service life, it shall be estimated of its service life, and
be treated according to this Standard.

15. Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenditures and other
expenses has occurred which will be benefited over 1 year
(excluding within 1 year). It will be amortized evenly over the
estimated benefit period. Such as lease on fixed assets,
preparing expenditures for new company.

16. Accounting for borrowing cost

U]

Where the borrowing costs incurred to an enterprise
can be directly attributable to the acquisition and
construction or production of assets eligible for
capitalization, it shall be capitalized and recorded into
the costs of relevant assets. Other borrowing costs shall
be recognized as expenses on the basis of the actual
amount incurred, and shall be recorded into the current
profits and losses. The term “assets eligible for
capitalization” shall refer to the fixed assets, investment
real estate, inventories and other assets, of which the
acquisition and construction or production may take
quite a long time to get ready for its intended use or for
sale.
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(iii)

(iv)

The borrowing costs shall not be capitalized unless they
simultaneously meet the following requirements:

a. Expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
b. Borrowing costs has already incurred; and
C. Acquisition and construction that are necessary

to enable the asset reach its expected usable
condition have commenced.

Where the acquisition and construction or production
of a qualified asset is interrupted abnormally and the
interruption period lasts for more than 3 months, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be suspended.
The borrowing costs incurred during such period shall
be recognized as expenses, and shall be recorded into
the profits and losses of the current period, till the
acquisition and construction or production of the asset
restarts. If the interruption is a necessary step for making
the qualified asset under acquisition and construction
or production ready for the intended use or sale, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs shall continue.

Recognition of capitalization of borrowing cost and
interest:

The borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition and
construction or production of assets eligible for
capitalization refer to actual interest expenses during
borrowing period, minus interest revenue of borrowing
fund deposited on bank or investment revenue from
short term investment by borrowing fund. For the general
borrowings, the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
are determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
capital expenditure that accumulated capital
expenditures exceed the specific borrowings.



2008 Interim Report || 65

17.

Tt £ BB 8105

ﬁu%éﬁiﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ KR
AT ARRBIEEERAEGNA
f&:

© ZEBELRAENRERS-

EBRAT LGN
P

®
B 7
2

={
=

g

® ZEBNSEEHAFHTE-

B ABENEREREZABREX
HERERTH-MRABTIHEFE
—ELRBE AxEGHFTRIRZE
B L TREWHTHHREET MR
B A FE— SR A&
R BRI TN R E

) iﬁ%lﬁiﬂfﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%%%
A BIR R SR E

@ HAEFESRZEEBR KE
et B ER I REERERE
BEBERAEHE-

R E’]’E\Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%‘*ﬁiﬁﬁ/‘ﬁﬂﬁ
ME=ZTREMTHEN BIFE
REERHEE W R {’Eﬁzﬁfzﬁ
BER -ERANHESE T BB
RABEMNKREEE-.

N AR R IR E S E A R1.2%5T
REZRBESAEHER EHHE
EHRBEEFIEEANRL - EEA
BEAYIREENEGEHETERZ.

17. Contingency liability:

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The obligation pertinent to Contingencies shall be
recognized as an estimated debt when the following
conditions are satisfied simultaneously:

a. That obligation is a current obligation of the
enterprise;
b. It is likely to cause any economic benefit to flow

out of the enterprise as a result of performance of
the obligation; and

C. The amount of the obligation can be measured in
a reliable way.

The estimated debts shall be initially measured in
accordance with the best estimate of the necessary
expenses for the performance of the current obligation.
If there is a sequent range for the necessary expenses
and if all the outcomes within this range are equally
likely to occur, the best estimate shall be determined in
accordance with the middle estimate within the range.
In other cases, the best estimate shall be conducted in
accordance with the following situations, respectively:

a. If the Contingencies concern a single item, it shall
be determined in the light of the most likely
outcome.

b. If the Contingencies concern two or more items,

the best estimate should be calculated and
determined in accordance with all possible
outcomes and the relevant probabilities.

When all or some of the expenses necessary for the
liguidation of an estimated debts of an enterprise is
expected to be compensated by a third party, the
compensation should be separately recognized as an
asset only when it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be obtained. The amount recognized
for the reimbursement should not exceed the book value
of the estimated debts.

Provision from 1.2% of sales revenue of machine tools
business is computed as expenses of after sales service
through profits and losses. Actual expenses are kept
within the provision. The reliability of provision ratio shall
be reviewed on balance sheet date.




66 | 2008 hEpRE

18.

Wk W % 5 5 9k

1

)

i 58 T )

BITHFMEEAR AR ITER
HEMERRRENENER
EHSMIEEE LR -

i T 58 T F) il B R T

HENBITHEMEZRREE K
Rk B TS BREEET
B B SN AR IR B T ER AR TS B9
WaS xR 5B T o5 REE:

© REHREEEM RHEH
BENBIHM FAE
A B AN 35 55 T RO

@ EHERIR BEEE
BEMBITHM AR
EEEEEXBIVEEK
o

® RARKNERAE TFHE
AE REAKERTIFILE
RERBAEERRKA
BB S AN O AR A B
TEMEMOHERRE
FERBENBTHMN-
S EFREE —F AR
RENBIHFMERE R
HEt AR AR
B-FH 2REANSE
ERFENTEMNEHEE
PrIR & R EAN B T
BITIR % — Rt AE
BE AERBREERR
BB EEEH-

@  FAERINGE AT
BB A AE BiEE

REARBIHMOERRRE.
BRERRE KERRE T8
REBREMEERBRESHER
REMEEA B RETER
B -ELOEE WRERT
RERE O U S B &R AHRE
KA B

18. Employee benefits

U]

(i)

Employee Benefits refers to monetary salary and benefits
not in monetary render by the Company to employees
during and after service term of the employees.

Recognition and Measurement:

During the accounting period of an employee’ providing
services to an enterprise, the enterprise shall recognize
the compensation payable as liabilities. Except for the
compensations for the cancellation of the labor
relationship with the employee, the enterprise shall, in
accordance with beneficiaries of the services offered
by the employee, treat the following circumstances
respectively:

a. The compensation for the employee for producing
products or providing services shall be recorded
as the product costs and service costs;

b. The compensation for the employee for any on-
going construction project or for any intangible
asset shall be recorded as the costs of fixed asset
or intangible assets; or

c. Monthly payments and social insurance charges
paid by the Company to early-retirees, laid-off
employees, and unemployment people
commencing from the date of their early-retirement
up until their respective official retirement are
recognized as accrued salaries. Payments within
one year, salary expenses shall be recorded as
profit or loss for the current period. Payments over
one year, the future accrued salary should be
discounted as profit or loss for the current period.
The discount rate is determined by referring to
high quality corporate bonds market interest rate.
Unrecognized financial fee should be amortized
on the actual interest rate.

d. Other salaries except for the above circumstance
should be recognized in profit and loss for the
current period.

The enterprise shall calculate the medical care insurance,
endowment insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and other social insurances,
as well as the housing accumulation fund, which are paid by
the enterprise to the employee, on the basis of a certain
proportion in the total amount of wages.
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19.

20.

Government grants

Government grants shall be recognized when an enterprise
can meet the conditions for the government grants and can
obtain the government grants. If a government grant is in the
form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item shall be
measured at the amount received or receivable. If a
government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary
asset, the item shall be measured at fair value. If fair value is
not reliably determinable, the item shall be measured at a
nominal amount one dollar and recognized immediately in
profit or loss for the current period. If the grant is a
compensation for related expenses or losses to be incurred
by the enterprise in subsequent periods, the grant shall be
recognized as deferred income, and recognized in profit or
loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognized.
If the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses
already incurred by the enterprise, the grant shall be
recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Share-based payments

(i) The share-based payments shall consist of equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based
payments. The equity-settled share-based payment in
return for employee services shall be measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees.

As to an equity-settled share-based payment in return
for services of employees, if the right may be exercised
immediately after the grant, the fair value of the equity
instruments shall, on the date of the grant, be included
in the relevant cost or expense and the capital reserves
shall be increased accordingly. The “grant date” refers
to the date on which the share-based payment
agreement is approved. As to a equity-settled share-
based payment in return for employee services, if the
right cannot be exercised until the vesting period comes
to an end or until the prescribed performance conditions
are met, then on each balance sheet date within the
vesting period, the services obtained in the current
period shall, based on the best estimate of the number
of vested equity instruments, be included in the relevant
costs or expenses and the capital reserves at the fair
value of the equities instruments on the date of the
grant.
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(if)

(iii)

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured
in accordance with the fair value of liability calculated
and confirmed based on the shares or other equity
instruments undertaken by an enterprise. As to a cash-
settled share-based payment instruments, if the right
may be exercised immediately after the grant, the fair
value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall,
on the date of the grant, be included in the relevant
costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. As to a cash-settled share-based payment,
if the right may not be exercised until the vesting period
comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within
the vesting period, the services obtained in the current
period shall, based on the best estimate of the
information about the exercisable right, be included in
the relevant costs or expenses and the corresponding
liabilities at the fair value of the liability undertaken by
the enterprise.

Fair value recognition of equity-settled instrument: As
for the equity-settled instrument such as for which there
is an active market, the quoted prices in the active
market shall be used to determine the fair values thereof.
If there is no quoted price, the fair value shall be
determined by reference of quoted price of similar
transaction. Where there is no active market for an equity
settled instrument, the enterprise concerned shall adopt
value appraisal techniques to determine its fair value.

Basis for recognition best estimate of the number of
vested equity instruments:

If, on the balance sheet date, the subsequent information
indicates that fair value of the current liability undertaken
by the enterprise are different from the previous
estimates, an adjustment shall be made, and on the
vesting date the estimate shall be adjusted to equal the
actually exercisable right.
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21. Recognition of revenue

U]

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods: when the major risk and rewards in the
ownership of the goods have been transferred to the
purchaser, the Company no longer exercises continuing
management and actual control over the goods in
connection with ownership, economic benefits in
connection with transactions can flow in the enterprise
and the relevant revenue and costs are reliably
measurable, the Company will confirm that revenue from
the sale of the goods has been realized.

If the collection of the price as stipulated in the contract
or agreement is delayed and if it has the financing
nature, the revenue incurred by selling goods shall be
ascertained in accordance with the fair value of the
receivable price as stipulated in the contract or
agreement. The difference between the price stipulated
in the contract or agreement and its fair value shall be
amortized within the period of the contract or agreement
employing the real interest method and shall be included
in the current profits and losses.

Provision of labor services: for labor services which are
commenced and completed in the same year, revenue
is recognized upon completion of the labor services. If
the commencement and completion of a labor service
falls in different fiscal years, relevant revenue from the
labor service will be recognized on the date of the
balance sheet on the basis of the percentage of the
completed labor service, provided that the results of
the labor service provision transaction is reliably
estimated.

Assignment of asset use rights: the Company will
confirm that revenue is realized according to the period
and method stipulated under relevant contract or
agreement, provided that economic benefits in
connection with a transaction can flow in and the
revenue amount is reliably estimated.

22. Accounting of Income Tax

The Company applies the balance sheet liability method for
accounting of income tax. The tax bases of acquired assets
or liabilities are determined upon their acquisition by the
Company. Where there is difference between the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities and the tax bases, the deferred
income tax assets or the deferred income tax liabilities arising
from there are recognized.
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23.

24,

25.

Scope of consolidation and methods of preparing
consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with ABSEs no.33-Consolidated
Financial Statement and relevant supplementary regulations
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC. The scope of
consolidation for consolidated financial statements is
recognized on the basis of control. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared on financial statements of parent
company and subsidiaries, to adjust long equity investment
of subsidiaries according equity method, then offset significant
balance and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries and among subsidiaries.

Profit and profit distribution

The obtained net profit of the Company shall be appropriated
by the following order:

(i) offsetting against losses for previous years

(i) appropriation 10% of net profit to statutory surplus
reserve, if the statutory surplus reserve is more than
50% of the registered capital, it may not be
appropriated.

(iii) appropriation to discretionary surplus reserve

(iv) payment of dividends to common shares

TAXATION

1. Value-Added Tax (VAT)
The amount of VAT payable is measured by the
difference between the amount of the current amount
of tax on sales and the current amount of tax on
purchases. The current amount of tax on sales is
assessed on the basis of the sales volume of good at

the VAT rate 17%.

The Company and its subsidiaries are VAT ordinary
taxpayer applicable for 17% VAT rate.
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BROERERTEHEM-

Income Tax

Pursuant to the approval reply from taxation authority,
the applicable rate of income tax of the Company is
15% due to tax favorable policy for Western Region
Development,

The subsidiaries of the Company include Shaanxi
Hengtong, Siyuan Intelligent, Xi’an Ser, Winko are High
Tech Companies. The applicable rate of income tax is
15%.

The applicable rate of income tax of the other
subsidiaries includes Kunming Kunji General Machine
Co., Ltd, Kunji Transportation and Fujian Kunji
Conventional Machine Tool Co., Ltd. is 25%.

Business Tax

The business tax is paid by 3% or 5% of income taxable.

Other Tax

The amount of tax payable is determined according to
the Provision Regulations of Taxation
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(“TOS Kunming”)

and high-tech products and
repairs of machine

1) 38 4 BF B A5 OF 9 05 ik (5) SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
1. AdpEEWNeSENAEET AN 1.  Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
REBAEMN
Bl T KEAREE
Unit: RMB’000
LFER :303: BEE@ BEMEE RELH EENE RERE HILERE
Relationship
Name of subsidiaries Place of Registered Investment Economic Time of with the
and joint venture Registration  Scope of Business Capital Proportion  Nature Investment Company
BARERRRRERE ERH BRREXBLER Hexal 50,000 45.00% FEREE 2001.12 FAHE
ARAR (ARER) BREERERE S ERXRBRE
BHMHRERE . 58T ?/yt
TR TR BELIR
BEERNRMRAE
%%EF‘ HE-
Xi’an Ser Turbo Machinery  Xi'an City Design, develop and 50,000 45.00%  Limited 2001.12 Subsidiary
Company Limited sales of turbo machinery liabilities
(Xi'an Ser)
EHERARRE EHT BARRRGORE Rt #HE- 3,000  100.00% HREF 2007.10 FAHE
ERRA (EABE)
Kunming Kunji General Kunming City  Developing, design, and sale of 3,000 100%  Limited 2007.10 Subsidiary
Machine Co., Ltd. machine tool products liabilities
and accessories
E%iﬁ%/ﬁ%ﬁ% BER BX TN EFIRRERN 35,000 78.03% BREL 2002.12 FAHE
EEERA RE EE-HE RITRE-
(%‘?SE”%E”D)
Xi’an Jiaotong University Xi’an City Develop manufacture and sale of 35,000 78.03%  Limited 2002.12 Subsidiary
Siyuan Intelligent electronic products, electronic liabilities
Electric Apparatus machine and products of
Company Limited electronic power, provide
(“Siyuan”) technology services
EARARKADKE BT SEEEBENRE ER ZHREN 20,230 96.74% AREE 2002.11 TR
BRAR (BEBKER) ETER TREW SHEMDN
BETE RERH-
Winko Machines Kunming City  Develop, apply and integrate hardware 20,230 96.74%  Limited 2002.11 Subsidiary
Company Limited and software; retail, whole sale, liabilities
(“Winko”) purchase on behalf of others and
consign electronic products,
machinery and electronic machine
ERENREERLA REHEM & R EENHEBERR 5002 50.00% ABREE 2005.4 AERE
(EBEH) RIERREN HEGHEER B
ETBERNER RlTRE R
RiT&A HMERER
EOMER M T o
Tos Kunming Machine Kunming City  Develop, design, manufacture and 5 million 50.00%  Limited 2005.4 Joint venture
Tool Company Limited sales of machine tool products, Euros liabilities



2008 Interim Report || 73

Eli:Fr KE ARE

Unit: RMB’000
CEL :303 ] #EEE EMEF RELH EEME REBH HFLERE
Relationship

Name of subsidiaries Place of Registered Investment Economic Time of with the

and joint venture Registration  Scope of Business Capital Proportion  Nature Investment Company

RYEBERNER RPH EEHE BOBRE BORARE 10,000 100% HBREL 2004.01 BZER
BRAR (RYER) BEEBRERY ZFRT

Changsha Ser Turbo Changsha City Design, develop, sales of 10,000 100%  Limited 2004.01 Subsidiary of
Machinery Equipment turbo machinery liabilities Xi’an Ser
Company Limited
(“Changsha Ser”)

MMEBREREBELIR mMm RERBRELIR BER BEEK 1,200 51.00% HREAR 2004.04 BZER
BRAR (MMER) FEREKERE ERER BBEH ZFRal

ZORBREANRT RE HER
RTRY #E TE:BEER
BEMH ReIA 2BMH EE
EHOZR EOERREFHE
—8EER

Hangzhuo Ser Turbo Hangzhou City Design, develop and sales of turbo 1,200 51.00%  Limited 2004.04 Subsidiary of
Machinery Equipment machinery, technology liabilities Xi’an Ser
Company Limited development, retail, whole sale
(“Changsha Ser”) of construction materials, and

import and export business

RRBREGAREML 2k LRHE 500 100% BREE 2006.10 FRA
AR (BRER)

Kunji Transportation Kunming City ~ General cargo transportation 500 100%  Limited 2006.10 Subsidiary
Company Limited liabilities

AR RERE ARH REXEZIIR 60,000 2334% HRAF 20064 et
IRREERRAA
(ERh%)

Xi’an Ruite Laser Xi’an City Manufacturing fast prototyping 60,000 23.34%  Limited Year 2006  Associated
Prototyping series equipments liabilities Company
Manufacturing &

Engineering Research
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Ruite”)

REEBRTBBR kgl BE Rt EENHEQERRK 5,000 50.00% ABREE 20085 FAF
BREFDHA R Em RE M

Fujian Kunji Conventional Nan an City ~ Developing, design and sale of 5,000 50%  Limited Year 2008  Subsidiary
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. machine tool products and liabilities

accessories
2. WEHAR RARBHKLZFARRE 2. During the reporting period, the financial statements of Fujian
BEMTBRKBERETATMHANM Kunji Conventional Machine Tool Co., Ltd., a new subsidiary
BWMKREHEE- of the Company, was brought into the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.
3. WEHR SAMALTERIUS0ETA 3. During the reporting period, Xi’an Ser purchased 5% nature

REERUBEDEMS%MEAR
R K E SR E W 3608 7T
AZEBRERD BN G H
95%152100% °

from 95% to 100%.

person shares of Changsha Ser with RMB500,000 in May
forming the current investment income of RMB3,600,000. The
investment Proportion of Xi’an Ser to Changsha Ser increased
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() & O &1 5t 3% Wk (6) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BEWEHES 1.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
BT
Unit: RMB
HRY (46HY) oE |
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
el g% AEHEE el g% AEESE
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange

5E ITEMS Currency Rate RMB Currency Rate RMB

Be: Cash: - - 464,321 - - 1,059,312

ARE RMB - - 426,951 - - 964,073

B HKD 24,293 0.88 21,357 36,168 0.94 33,867

N usD 36 6.89 248 2,814 7.30 20,556

HNEEL IRD 390,000 0.001 390 390,000 0.001 390

BT EUR 1,420 10.89 15,375 3,790 10.67 40,426

FOFEL: Bank deposit: - - 397,075,615 - - 363,391,576

ARE RMB - - 384,373,474 - - 326,340,014

B HKD 9,828,440 0.88 8,644,451 30,773,495 0.94 28,815,685

N usD 327,288 6.86 2,244,904 1,097,359 7.30 8,015,767

BT EUR 166,385 10.89 1,812,787 20,635 10.67 220,110

HE%Es: Other currencies: - 7,190,470 - - 5,899,900

ARE RMB 0 - 7,190,470 0 0 5,899,900

aFt Total - - 404,730,406 - - 370,350,788
ME B o 5 - 2. Bills receivable

BT MIE:ARK

Unit: RMB

X8 Mo

At 30th June, At 1st January,

' ITEMS 2008 2008

RITAEESE Bank acceptance notes 145,563,962 134,784,346

PEEANER Commercial acceptance notes - -

&5 Total 145,563,962 134,784,346
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3. W W5 i ik 3. Accounts receivable
BT MiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
iES ik
Bmgd L)1
&8 L8 (%) IR &8 LB (%) WIRER
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Account balance Account balance
Account Bad debt Bad debt
B aged analysis Amount  Proportion (%) provision Amount  Proportion (%) provision
—FHR Within one year 133,096,628 54.33 9,522,030 147,679,053 63.51 7,341,005
-2z 1-2 years 55,138,068 22.49 26,351,291 30,801,988 13.25 15,239,619
—EZF 2-3 years 23,933,582 9.76 23,704,119 18,630,584 8.01 18,502,889
ZENE Over 3 years 32,956,363 13.42 32,956,363 35,407,907 15.23 35,407,907
At Total 245,124,640 100.00 92,533,803 232,519,532 100.00 76,491,420

JE Wi R K MR A A A ) 19 L

Changes of bad debt provision of accounts receivable during

the period
EEH
By rHE B RKe 8
Increase/Decrease
At 1st January, Drawing At 30th June,
"E Iltems 2008 Provision Reversing 2008
PR BUR IR A Bad debt provision of
accounts receivable 76,491,420 18,565,679 2,523,296 92,533,803
Eat: (1) [EREXEREGERE Note: (1)  bad debt provision of account receivable increased
7 716,042,383 7T, 2 £ /2 &] RMB16,042,383 as compared with the beginning of the
112 718,565,6797T i FH ik period due to the Company increased the provision of
7 r]E2[E] 72,523,296 £ RMB18,565,679 and Kunji General Machine, a
AR M o subsidiary of the Company, turn back the provision of
RMB2,523,296.

(2) FAREHEKEFFERE (2)  Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of
RNEI5% (E5%) U LK Rt the total shares of the Company have not owed any

R 17 89 R 3R B {7 B9 R 3% amount in the account receivable.
3) JE U AR 5K 6 Bt 5 5K IR S R 5 (3)  Details for related parties under accounts receivable will

T A TR T B R e 2
x5 HBE-

be disclosed in the notes of financial statements under
“Related Parties and Transactions”.
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4. F il KE 3K - 4, Other receivables
B/ BEARK
Unit: RMB
HRE Haw
EE&#E EE&HE
4] Ll (%) IR &8 LBl (%) BIRER
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Account balance Account balance
Account Bad debt Bad debt
RE aged analysis Amount  Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision
—EHR Within one year 27,769,086 54.55 3,602,364 17,778,832 39.00 3,627,594
—EZF 1-2 years 1,780,216 3.50 890,108 16,588,575 36.00 9,305,512
“E=F 2-3 years 18,456,267 36.26 17,139,781 7,721,275 17.00 7,721,275
ZENE Over 3 years 2,897,176 5.69 2,897,176 3,875,047 8.00 3,875,047
=H Total 50,902,745 100 24,529,428 45,963,729 100 24,529,428
f#Eat: (1) RIRE B H fh E W ER K Note: (1)  Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of
FHALAS% (85%) U F& the total shares of the Company have not owed any
SRIPER 17 £ AR BB B (7 B9 K amount in the other receivable.
(2) EMEWKEHSHEIFERLF (2)  Details for related parties under other receivable will be
BN () BB 7 BE disclosed in the notes of financial statements under
REX G| P HE “Related Parties and Transactions”.
5. BATMRAK: 5.  Prepayments
BT ME: AR
Unit: RMB
HEXE (SH8) Ho#
&8 EE B (%) &8 L Bl (%)
At 30th June, 2008 (consolidated) At 1st January, 2008
Account Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
R Aged analysis (%) (%)
—F LR Within one year 69,944,823 84.63 33,733,536 81.41
—E = 1-2 years 5,283,107 6.39 5,257,836 12.69
—E=F 2-3 years 7,077,101 8.56 2,328,971 5.61
=FMRE Over 3 years 338,841 0.42 121,280 0.29
& Total 82,643,872 100.00 41,436,623 100
(1) BERABEYETI9% - KIE Note: (1)  Compared with the beginning of the period, the
WM EZREEZ - prepayments increased 99% due to
@ 23 A] 7N 58 B EE v i (i) the prepayment for imported accessories for CNC
O B 4 78 11 3528 00 5 products increased;
@ BRLTEE N RN (ii) Orders from Xi’an Ser increased and prepayments
FES R 1m0 for supporting contracts increased.
B Ece
(2) AREHENEAPERE (2)  Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of

DA% (B5%) A LKA
SR 17 89 BR 3R B (L B R 3K o

the total shares of the Company have not owed any
amount in the prepayments.
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i 6. Inventories
By B ARK
Unit: RMB
LiES Haw
Bmgd B R &R BERE L)1 B R BERE
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Account Net realizable Account Net realizable
HHE ltems Balance Provision value Balance Provision value
R b1t Raw materials 107,984,071 5,747,440 102,236,631 93,233,603 5,674,853 87,558,750
R Materials Procurement 16,045 - 16,045 - - -
EBS# Low-value and
consumption 84,400 - 84,400 - - -
FELE Turnover materials 1,805,424 - 1,805,424 5,697,635 82,781 5,614,854
EEM Goods in process 304,275,376 6,557,321 297,718,055 261,332,171 6,461,004 254,871,166
BRY¥KMm Self-made half
finished goods 617,461 - 617,461 - - -
EfFHEm Inventory of goods 128,697,407 7,838,958 120,858,449 78,215,906 7,935,275 70,280,632
FHER Good sold 1,776,840 - 1,776,840 243,839 40,081 203,758
ZENINE Commissioned
processing materials 16,087,358 - 16,087,358 8,893,352 - 8,893,352
ZARBEEm Commissioned
a consignment of
goods 40,081 40,081 - - - -
=H Total 561,384,464 20,183,800 541,200,664 447,616,506 20,193,994 427,422,512
HEBAXBRENBEAERYE 7. Investment in joint venture and associated companies
By BE-AREK
Unit: RMB
b33
ERBE
b 31F L Sug F3 % THER
HRREURR :313 ] RAEME FRILH (%) LBl (%) BEESE BA#E FHRNE
Proportion of
voting rights Net assets Operating
Name of the Registered  Nature of Investment in invested  at the end of income of  Net profit of
invested company place business proportion (%) company the period the period the period
— AELE
RRENBKERAR EHER BAEREEHE 50 50 61,692,664 50,471,839 7,697,429
[. - Joint Venture Kunming Producing and
TOS Kunming City sale of machine
tool products
e BERE
ARBRFRELEIR  #AZW REKHBEEHE 23.34 23.34 61,518,808 3,094,117 (2,528,737)
HEBERRA
Il. Associated Companies Xi'an City ~ Manufacturing fast
Xi’an Ruite prototyping series

equipments
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8. 5 W1 3 hE B 8. Long-term equity investment
(1) 7 Bl 30 B A7 35 M L ) B 3k (i) Proportion of investment and voting rights
e RE (Y P
B AR
Unit: RMB
EHBREEMBE
EHERE EHBRR Al EERELG
L Sogid 340 HE&RRELG A—HEREA
Proportion of
Name of voting rights
invested Investment in invested
HEEEM company proportion (%) company (%) Remark
ERRBH#KRER AR TOS Kunming 50.00% 50.00%
AR REARETR Xi’an Ruite 23.34% 23.34%
MEARRA A
EmEE BT HRM K Yunnan Cheng Jiang
Copper Products Plant 40.00% 40.00%
2) ¥WHAEZE (ii)  In accordance with cost method
By AR
Unit: RMB
MEBERE HMMmeE BEen HRBE MEBEER
Provision for
diminution
Initial in value of
investment Opening Increase/ Closing long-term
HEREEM Invested company cost balance decrease balance investment
ZHEBIMME  Yunnan Cheng Jiang
Copper Products Plant 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
&t Total 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000




2008 Interim Report ]| 79

3) WHERKEEE (iii) In accordance with equity method
By AR
Unit: RMB
MERBERE HmeE BEEH RIKBRE MKBEER
Provision for
diminution
Initial in value of
investment Opening Increase/ Closing long-term
WEREEM Invested company cost balance decrease balance  investment
E B 38 MK TOS Kunming 24,739,534 30,308,742 548,714 30,857,456 -
BERAR
ARHFRAEEE  Xi’an Ruite
IRHEERAA 10,000,000 14,011,819 (590,039) 13,421,780 -
A%t Total 34,739,534 44,320,561 (41,325) 44,279,236 -
it (1) AREFEBIHVEE #£XE Note: (1)  Full provision for impairment loss on long-term investment
BRERET) AN R ZERES of Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products Plant was made
BEGTIE T REAIR AW EEH because the plant has lost of the ability of sustainable
operation.
(2) ARAFBREEMLHITHEL K (2)  There is no significant difference between the accounting

REAARXNFEEAER REEZY
R & & W 7 49 FE [o] 4% B AR -

policies used by the invested companies and that used
by the Company. There is no significant restriction to
realization of investment and investment income outflow

as foreign currency.




802008 kL

9. Bl % & B 9. Fixed assets
BT BEARE
Unit: RMB
3 ] 3
HMmEmeas Bm&EE mOBEs HMXEERH
At 1st January, Increase in Decrease in At 30th June,
"E Items 2008 the period the period 2008
— REA: Fixed assets at cost 629,468,910 19,144,393 4,590,640 644,022,663
Ef:-EEREREY Including: building and
constructions 261,906,165 39,511 1,818,171 260,127,505
WEE R Machinery equipments 329,030,887 15,322,665 2,094,359 342,259,193
EHIA Transportation equipments 25,475,382 2,260,715 567,318 27,168,779
BFRE Electronic equipments 13,056,476 1,521,502 110,792 14,467,186
. REtHESE: Accumulate depreciation 218,917,907 17,865,598 3,335,617 233,447,888
Ef:-EEREREY Including: building and
constructions 47,585,200 3,790,146 735,914 50,639,432
BERRE Machinery equipments 155,907,382 11,873,469 2,238,659 165,542,192
EHIA Transportation equipments 8,967,949 1,386,199 298,465 10,055,683
BTRE Electronic equipments 6,457,376 815,784 62,580 7,210,580
= BEEEEFEA Net book value 410,551,003 1,278,795 1,255,022 410,574,776
Ef:-EEREREY Including: building and
constructions 214,320,965 (3,750,635) 1,082,257 209,488,073
BERRE Machinery equipments 173,123,505 3,449,196 (144,300) 176,717,001
EHIA Transportation equipments 16,507,433 874,516 268,853 17,113,096
BTRE Electronic equipments 6,599,100 705,718 48,212 7,256,606
M OREEEA S Provision for impairment 8,810,262 1,578,245 9,734 10,378,773
Ef - FEREREY Including: building and
constructions 0 0 0 0
HERRE Machinery equipments 8,134,639 1,578,245 9,734 9,703,150
BHITA Transportation equipments 0 0 0 0
BFRE Electronic equipments 675,623 0 0 675,623
h EEEEFHEES Net realizable value 401,740,741 (299,450) 1,245,288 400,196,003
Ef:-EREREEY Including: building and
constructions 214,320,965 (3,750,635) 1,082,257 209,488,073
HERRE Machinery equipments 164,988,866 1,870,951 (154,034) 167,013,851
BHITA Transportation equipments 16,507,433 874,516 268,853 17,113,096
BTRE Electronic equipments 5,923,477 705,718 48,212 6,580,983




2008 Interim Report J] 81

10. fE# TP 10. Construction in progress
By BE-ARHK
Unit: RMB
LEEY Lipl |
BE&# B R &R BERE L3 1] B R BmRd
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Net realizable Net realizable
HE Item Balance Provision value Balance Provision value
EEIR Construction in progress 74,859,191 2,056,931 72,802,260 48,154,434 2,056,931 46,097,503
fE g TREIE H 8 B I Change of construction in progress
By T B ARK
Unit: RMB
BL IBRAH flg flg
RN Hal  FMAN FMEY BERE  REMA 0 IREE  BEtE HFLeE  HEKE LY
At 1st Works in the Interest Interest At 30th
January, Transfer to  proportion Progress of capitalization capitalization ~ Source of June,
HE%® ltem Budget 2008 Increase  Decrease fixed assets  of budget the project rate amount funding 2008
NEHK “Nine. Five” Technical
improvement
projects - 40,000 - - - - - - - - 40,000
RE Canteen - 899,500 4,480,687 - 1,380,000 - - - - - 4,000,187
HERE New Plant Building - 14,487,007 4,393,334 - - - - - - - 18,881,241
EAFIEHE Italian guideway
grinding machine - - 9,558,012 - - - - - - - 9,558,012
AZSEHE  Japanese Guideway
grinding machine - 0 3,414,700 - - - - - - - 3,414,700
ERFHL  Logistics and
BE security
department
distribution
centre room - 0 3,044,237 - - - - - - - 3,044,237
BER Baobei City - 1,751,402 - 1,743,708 - - - - - - 7,694
i Others - 30,975,625 14,263,755 14,299 9,311,961 - - - - - 35913120
At Total - 48,154,434 39,154,725 1,758,007 10,691,961 / / / - /74,859,191
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11. g% i

11. Intangible assets

Bz BEARK
Unit: RMB
REtidE
HMMiREE FHEAME FHEIE HMXEDRA EfREHE
Accumulated
provision on
impairment
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June, of intangible
"E Item 2008 this period this period 2008 assets
BIRAE-2#F A%  Use rights for Siyuan
building-no.2 49,319,659 - 0 49,319,659 -
T A (B1#) Land use right (Kunji) 13,232,943 - 141,529 13,091,414 -
T A (ER) Land use right (Ser) 11,452,337 - 160,173 11,292,164 -
BRAE-3#FE R  Use rights for Siyuan
building-no.3 8,312,216 - 0 8,312,216 -
IR B The all over vortex
technology 4,652,000 - 581,500 4,070,500 -
B ERRAM Intelligent electric
appliance know-how 4,160,424 - 406,998 3,753,426 4,160,424
BEEmAE Usage right to
staff quarter 3,364,492 - 46,729 3,317,763 -
BRI Technical know-how of
embroidery 2,323,453 - 0 2,323,453 2,323,453
IMAGEX IMAG software 503,853 - 125,963 377,890 -
SHEEERUMN Kingdee production
management software 355,540 - 24,520 331,020 -
CHREEERUMG Service for Kingdee
ERARETRS production management
software 268,333 - 14,000 254,333 -
SHHEHFEAFAE  Kingdee software
permit fee 249,643 - 19,344 230,299 -
WA Office software 211,905 - 12,465 199,440 -
S BEMREM Kingdee logistic software 172,617 - 13,892 158,726 -
B ARG Mail system software 134,100 - 7,450 126,650 -
ORACLE#: f ORACLE software 107,040 - 24,702 82,338 -
SR Kingdee instrument for
FHBTA accounting standards
for business
enterprises 36,000 - 2,000 34,000 -
Tt Financial software 4,083 - 500 3,583 -
A&t Total 98,860,638 - 1,581,765 97,278,874 6,483,877
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12. EEPTBBLE EM B : 12. Deferred tax assets
By ME: ARE
Unit: RMB
HrEaE Ho#
At 30th June, At 1st January,
BEMSREEELERE Reasons for having deferred tax assets 2008 2008
ERER Bad debt provisions 19,612,599 17,202,497
FTEREERE Provision for impairment of inventories 4,023,912 4,052,851
A ERELEE Provision for impairment of fixed assets 815,239 578,503
EETIERREER Provision for impairment of
construction in progress 514,233 514,233
REREREREER Provision for diminution in value of
long-term equity investment 647,510 500,000
EET A& Estimated liabilities 1,882,652 1,367,858
BTEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 270,600 35,620
RESHER Long term deferred expenses 2,376 2,376
RERABFE Unrealized internal profit 1,627,481 1,740,935
AR 1R F Early retirement and benefits 4,941,511 4,942,324
LA ERER Issue VAT invoice in advance 1,698,197 4,341,338
BT 18 B Government grants 277,500 277,500
A&t Total 36,313,810 35,556,035
13. Y 7 9o AL ¥E il W) A 13. Details of Provision for impairment of assets
By MIE: AR
Unit: RMB
sHR#E
ENRERE FHHRE L ]e] LE] L HARERE
Decrease this period
Balance at Provision Balance at
HE Item 1st January, 2008 this period Reversing Write-off Total 30th June, 2008
BHRERE 1. Provision for bad debts 101,020,849 18,565,679 2,523,296 - 2,523,296 117,063,232
- GELEERE 2. Provision for impairment of
inventories 20,193,994 - 10,194 - 10,194 20,183,800
= WHHEELBEE 3. Provision for impairment of
REERE available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - -
. HEEEHHLE 4. Provision for diminution
REER in value of investment
held-to-maturity - - - - - -
i REBERE 5. Provision for diminution
HEEE in value of long-term
equity investment 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
N REHREME 6.  Provision for impairment
HEER on real estates investment - - - - - 0
t. EREERE%E 7. Provision for impairment on
fixed assets 8,810,262 1,568,511 - - - 10,378,773
o IEDEREEE 8 Provision for impairment on
construction materials - - - - - 0
EEIRMERE 9. Provision for impairment on
construction-in-progress 2,056,931 - - - - 2,056,931
EEHEYEE 10, Provision for impairment on
FEERE production biological assets - - - - - -
HompEEY Including: mature production
EYEE biological assets
REEE - - - - - -
+— BREERMBEE®E 11, Provision for impairment on
oil assets - - - - - -
+=- EWEERERE 12 Provision for impairment on
intangible assets 6,483,877 - - - - 6,483,877
= BEREER 13, Provision for impairment on
goodwill 2,714,268 - - - - 2,714,268
tH 2t 14. Others - - - - - 0
At Total 143,280,181 20,134,190 2,533,490 - &533,490 160,880,881
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14. B 14. Short-term loans
B/ g ARE
Unit: RMB
i E HmE
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HE Item 2008 2008
BERER Pledge loans 20,000,000.00 -
AR E R Mortgage loans - -
ZRER Credit loans - _
& Total 20,000,000.00 -

15. MEAFEHE: 15. Accounts payable
BT ME: AR
Unit: RMB
HER® &
At 30 June, At 1st January,
4] Item 2008 2008
A EE Commercial acceptance bills - -
RITHEESR Bank acceptance bills 14,620,004 4,670,000
At Total 14,620,004 4,670,000
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16 HE A Wk 1255 M 16. Accrued salary
By ME: ARE
Unit: RMB
FNREEE XHRAmME XHRIE HREmEHE
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
ER Items 2008 this period this period 2008
— I& %% 1. Salary, bonus, subsidy
ERL ARG and grants 16,743,075 67,006,665 71,839,738 11,910,002
—  BIRANE 2. Employees’ benefits - 4,676,096 2,851,065 1,825,031
= HERRE 3. Social insurance (667,212) 13,908,624 14,737,828 (1,496,416)
He: 1. BERRE Including: (1) medical care
insurance (48,017) 3,864,104 4,095,343 (279,256)
2. EXBERRE (2) basic
endowment
insurance (411,689) 8,143,108 8,911,709 (1,180,290)
3. R¥ERRE (3) unemployment
insurance (207,506) 875,080 706,842 (39,268)
4. IERREE (4) Work injury
insurance - 214,051 213,194 857
5 £EREBE (5) Maternity
insurance - 386,359 384,818 1,541
M FELESR 4. Housing fund 1,411,104 4,543,554 4,492,250 1,462,408
i IgKENET 5. Union funds and employees’
HELE education fund 4,785,963 2,216,166 1,880,277 5,121,852
N ERRSEER 6. Compensation for terminating
BTHEE the labor relationship 19,798,707 - 1,677,223 18,121,484
A&t Total 42,071,637 92,351,105 97,478,381 36,944,361
id RAIRBEANZEERRMTSFEET Note: The Company refers to high quality corporate bonds market interest
RRFTFEABFHMTHE BRI FHH rate to determine the discount rate of the salaries for early retirees.
FKH5.2% ° Presently, the discount rate is 5.2% annually.
17. MERBLE: 17. Taxes payable
By ME:ARE
Unit: RMB
i E e g & F
At 30th June, At 1st January, Payable
BH Item 2008 2008 standard
1 ER Value-added tax (6,564,634) 32,156,920 -
EEB Sales tax 154,733 144,230 -
T M AR Urban maintenance and
construction tax 87,105 966,001 -
= House property tax 1,105,315 1,701,324 -
T AR Land use tax 660,943 32,827 -
BAFTEH Personal income tax 680,056 603,078 -
ERTEN Company income tax 18,602,242 31,758,318 -
HAh Others 62,343 578,479 -
&5 Total 14,788,103 67,941,177 -
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18.  MEATIBE A : 18. Dividend payable
B/ BEARK
Unit: RMB
R B HoE *xIZGFEHA
At 30th June At 1st January Reasons for
HEA ltem 2008 2008 not being paid
EREMNRE Ser’s dividend payable to
2 Bt /9 A% F shareholders 344,093 1,176,870
HAREMNEHEH The Company’s dividend
el payable to shareholders 114,713,520 - EXRFETAHGXHN
will be paid in July 2008
&5t 115,057,613 1,176,870
19. o i M A 3% 19. Other payables
R EMEMENRPERENREERD Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
A15% (&5%) LA IR R AR R total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
B8 ok BB 5 RO RRIE the other payables.
20. Wuk A 20. Estimated liabilities
By MTE: AR
Unit: RMB
X Ho# fils sE a1 A
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HH Item 2008 2008 Remark
EREERE Products’ quality
warrant fee 13,311,425 9,117,431
BRAE A Dismissed welfare - -
= Total 13,311,425 9,117,431
21, RMIfE: 21. Long-term loans
By MIE: AR
Unit: RMB
X Hoe
At 30th June, At 1st January,
A Item 2008 2008
BRE R Pledge loans - _
AR Mortgage loans 50,000,000 50,000,000
EREH Credit loans - -
At Total 50,000,000 50,000,000
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22, BRI 22. Long-term payables
BT BiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
X Hos
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HA Category 2008 2008
1- ENREHRES 1. Obligation under finance lease 4,790,365 4,790,365
2 B tEREMERE 2. Appropriation for intelligent electronic
RMEZEET#H TREER machine industrialization exemplary
project technology and equipment
technology 7,000,000 7,000,000
3. PRYEE BB E R 3. Infrastructure construction Appropriation
from the office of Finance of
Shaanxi province 200,000 200,000
A% Total 11,990,365 11,990,365
WREROREER Less: unrecognized financing costs 1,740,958 1,805,438
EE Total 10,249,407 10,184,927
23. WA 23. Specific Project Payables
BT mE-ARK
Unit: RMB
Ha® FTHEEW iE Y fis s iR BA
At 1st January, Transfer in/out At 30th June,
"A Items 2008 this period 2008 Remark
prPg 3 iZE  Specific project
T#B%{t  appropriation for
EBEECE N industrial automation
from Shaanxi Provincial
Development and
Reform Commission 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
PRPE A M Specific project
EW#BHEBE  appropriation from
EC TN Shaanxi Intellectual
Property Office 100,000 - 100,000
A&t Total 8,100,000 - 8,100,000
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24, BAAR: 24. Capital reserve
B/ BEARK
Unit: RMB
Ha® EHE TR D iE Y
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
HEA ltem 2008 this period this period 2008
BAR%E (RAEME)  Share premium 125,422,997 - - 125,422,997
HEmEARRQTE Other capital reserve 8,096,545 - - 8,096,545
=k Total 133,519,542 - - 133,519,542
25. HERAR: 25. Surplus reserve
BT BEARK
Unit: RMB
Ho® FHAEmM TR D iR
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
HE Item 2008 this period this period 2008
EERBBATE Statutory surplus reserve 41,903,289 - - 41,903,289
At Total 41,903,289 - - 41,903,289
26. AW 26. Unappropriated profit
By ME:ARK
Unit: RMB
HX® IO FE LA
Drawing or
At 30th June, appropriation
HEH Item 2008 proportion
FARAF VIR D BEFE Before adjustment: unappropriated profit
(2007 HA R 20 at the beginning of the year
(31 December 2007) - -
FARFMARDEFBEFE Adjustment: total unappropriated profit
(FiL+ - FR-) at the beginning of the year
(increase:+; decrease:-) - -
B IEF YR DB AE After adjustment: unappropriated profit
at the beginning of the year 279,091,414 -
b A HA % A B Add: net profit of the year 148,071,729 -
W REVEERBRATE Less: statutory surplus reserve - -
RRITEAHKAE Other surplus reserve - -
JE AT 3 AR AR R Dividend payable 114,713,520 -
R IR AN 9 3 33 AR AR A Dividend transfer to shares - -
HAR R 9 B 1) Unappropriated profit at the end of the period 312,449,623 -
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27. BEBA: 27. Operation revenue
(1) BEFEEA (1)  Operation revenue

BT MiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
THBREEER LTHRESE
Revenue for
Revenue for the the same period
HA Item reporting period of last year
FEEBKA Principal operation revenue 792,410,023 540,246,426
HEaZEBHBKA Other operation revenue 16,178,119 10,733,625
&&t Total 808,588,142 550,980,051

2) FEEH (HI7%) (2)  Major business operation revenue (by business segment)
By MEARK
Unit: RMB

XHIW LEREH
BERA B¥RX BERA BERF
Amount of 2008 Amount of 2007

Operation Operation Operation Operation
TEREB Items revenue cost revenue cost
HREMHE Sales of machine tool products 621,573,534 394,446,194 406,214,764 287,753,104

SMETRE R fE 1 S5 & Sales of highly efficient
energy-saving compressors 119,172,339 97,207,975 96,427,244 67,832,325

HEmEERA Sales of new products 12,612,995 0 8,837,106 0
IR N T AR 78 Machine tool processing service 38,801,915 20,146,529 23,878,085 9,610,200
BHEERBEE Sales of intelligent electrical
apparatus 2,616,003 1,321,848 2,142,846 1,268,595
(42 Sales of Rotary table 1,334,124 1,007,736 4,003,473 2,808,325
ERREHEE Sales of sensor equipment 8,912,108 8,293,997 7,660,014 7,215,899
EMHE Other sales 3,565,124 1,816,519 1,816,519 173,417
= Total 808,588,142 524,240,798 550,980,051 376,661,865
(3) MLHEBITAARFHHEIRA (8) Total sales revenue due from the 5 largest customers
£575,049,68170 > 15 28 7] A= was up to RMB75,049,681 which constituted 9.17% of
FHEU A 19.17% the total sales revenue of the Company.
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28. BEBE KM : 28. Sales tax and additional
B/ BEARK
Unit: RMB
EHBEH ITERPH Hm
At 30 June, At 30 June, Calculation
HE Item 2008 2007 Standards
EEM Sales tax 348,257 122,770
WER Urban maintenance and
construction tax 255,892 199,571
HE BN Educational surtax 121,414 103,134
&&F Total 725,562 425,475
29. HHEWE: 29. Investment Income

(1) =AY TH AR 1% Bl

(1) Listed the investment income according to the invested

&l companies
By ME:ARK
Unit: RMB
L LW
LtHesH FHeE BEREDHFEHA
Amount of the
same period of Amount of Reasons for
WEEM Invested companies last year this period change
BB HR TOS Kunming 818,615 3,848,714 B FIE 1N
Profit increased
79 & 5 Xi’an Ruite - (590,039) 18
Loss
AT & W Gain on wealth
management - 153,206 FFERH
RERIBEK
the item did not
exist last year
(EPN 43 Nature person
shareholder - 3,606,496 7N HAUK RS AR A
acquiring equity
in the current period
TEBEBNIEE R Loss on sale of
“Hengtong” (1,388,083) - -
A5 Total (569,468) 7,018,377
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2) EFrmEPHBEEREER (2)  Additional items for investment income in the financial
B statements
BT BiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
THeH Ltesd
Amount of the
Amount of same period of
the period last year
RAEZE &R EAIR Long term equity investment income
®E W under cost method - -
EmERENRRE Long term equity investment income
"E W= under equity method 3,258,675 818,615
RERIKREREELEDN Investment income from disposal of
& W= long term equity investment - (1,388,083)
REXGHERAEAE BEZE Investment income from holding tradable
FEEE THEE SR financial assets, held-to-maturity
EESHENENEE K= investment, and available-for-sale
financial assets 158,206 -
Ey Others 3,606,496 -
&5t Total 7,018,377 (569,468)
30. BEREMMEBER: 30. Loss on impairment of assets
By : MiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
THBEH LTHRER
Amount of the
Amount of same period of
HH Items this period last year
— EERERE 1. Provision for bad debt 17,443,144 112,625
T FEREBEEE 2. Provision for impairment of inventories (10,194) -
— ETEEREBEERS 3. Provision for impairment of fixed assets 1,578,245 -
EE Total 19,011,195 112,625
31. BBEHABA: 31. Non-operating income
By BiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
THRER LHRESE
Revenue for the
Revenue for same period of
HA Item this period last year
ERBEERBEFSER Gain on disposal of non-current assets 2,049,141 64,299
EF:-BATEEEREENS Including: Gain on disposal of fixed assets 346,133 64,299
B EHE K Gain on debt restructuring 1,703,008 -
BEDRE Refund of value-added tax 26,377,175 15,722,278
EAh Others 262,144 2,069,004
& Total 28,688,460 17,855,581




922008 HhEpRE

32. BEIXH: 32. Non-operating expenses
B/ g ARE
Unit: RMB
XHRESH LTHRES
Expenses for the
Expenses for same period of
HEA Item this period last year
IERBEEEERKER Loss on disposal of non-current assets 3,399,817 1,207,667
Ef - BAEEERBEBRX Including: Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,594,962 1,204,507
5018 B8 Donation 226,404 3,160
BEREHRIBL Debt restructuring 1,578,450 -
Hh Others 176,012 37,257
&&F Total 3,575,829 1,244,924

33. PWifgBi&H: 33. Income tax expenses

By ME:ARK
Unit: RMB
THBER LERAPH
At 30th June, At 30th June,
HE Item 2008 2007
EHMEHR Income tax expenses for this period 21,932,829 12,679,045
EEFTSH Deferred income tax 3,390,533 1,227,855
& Total 25,323,362 13,906,900
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R YR B AR A
O #800)
EEMENIRE &N
OB )
H At
EETDHELEMBASNERN

TERBESBIHVEM
ERED

BEBERENR

—FREHAFRDEES

MEBEABTEE
BeRBeERMBEMER

B HRHBER
AR m B ER R
mREeEEMOHIRGE
R eEEMNIERE

BeRBeERMBEAME

Decrease in operating receivable

(less: increase)

Increase in operating payables
(less: decrease)

Others

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Financing and investing

activities not involving in cash

Debts capitalization
Convertible bond due within
one year

Fixed assets under financial lease

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances at
the end of the period

Less: Cash and bank balances at

the beginning of the period
Add: Cash equivalents at

the end of the period
Less: Cash equivalents

at the beginning of the period

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

(15,638,637)

9,646,144

65,433,263

404,730,407

370,350,788

34,379,619

34. BlERERMIEEE: 34. Supplementary information of the cash flow statement
BT mE-ARK
Unit: RMB
THEH L&
Amount of the
Amount of same period of
#rEH Supplementary Information this period last year
1. BEHHANEEERTD 1.  Reconciliation of net profit to
BEeERE cash flows from operating
activities
F B Net Profit 148,071,729 94,343,873
hns AR R A B A A Add: Gain of minority interest 5,499,511 8,170,878
FHIEMEERBEERS Provision for impairment of assets 19,011,194 (1,192,031)
BEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 25,601,579 14,087,657
BB Amortization on intangible assets 1,582,514 1,535,815
REGHBHEHE Amortization on long-term
deferred expenses - 601,272
FEERAR D OR:3Em) Decrease in deferred expenses
(less: increase) 150,025 -
TER & R A9 0 Ot 2) Increase in accrual expenses
(less: decrease) - -
REBRTEE -EREEM Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
EMRHABEMEX intangible assets and other
Rt : Weas) long-term assets (less: income) 1,242,655 1,145,416
EEEMERLK Loss on deserted fixed assets 16,320 -
B%E R Financial expenses 2,150,052 2,235,235
‘EER O =) Investment loss (less: income) (7,018,377) 569,468
REBKREE Of: 818) Credit on deferred tax
(less: borrowing) 592,511 250,500
FE®R D O m) Decrease in inventory
(less: increase) (125,473,957) 6,979,857

(166,926,344)

143,773,576

105,575,172

252,349,083

166,794,263

85,554,821
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() B 2% 50 1 i e

(7) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY

ME e 5 9% 1. Bills receivable
By AR T
Unit: RMB
X Mo
At 30th June, At 1st January,
41 Category 2008 2008
RITERHESR Bank acceptance notes 84,021,495.85 88,342,942.50

2. HE W B 5k 2. Accounts receivable
By AR T
Unit: RMB
oY | oEo) |
EEs#E EEs#E
&# LBl (%) WRER &8 H (%) IR
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Account balance Account balance

Provision for Provision for
B Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debts Amount Proportion (%) bad debts
—FRA Within 1 year 161,252,927 69.84 8,062,646 110,201,209 69.86 5,510,060
—E_F 1-2 years 36,149,640 15.66 21,131,348 20,659,852 13.10 10,329,926
g 2-3 years 10,324,864 4.47 10,324,864 7,171,514 4.55 7,171,514
=FNE Over 3 years 23,148,718 10.03 23,148,718 19,709,633 12.49 19,709,633
&t Total 230,876,149 100.00 62,667,576 157,742,208 100.00 42,721,133

it JEYR BRI H)E 1146.36%, 2 [ 2
] 7N 56 2 37 A &% 1 2~ Al 77 £E Al —
B 18 5, 37 A 3% 1 1) T YR BR K AP
B7,1958 & 2 ] A 55 FEU 54, 0
BiE—AXGRANERELSE
15,8928 7T A IELEBE B IE < o

Note: Accounts receivable increased 46.36% as compared with the
beginning of the period due to the Company and its subsidiary
General Machine Co., Ltd. has a same customer. The
prepayment of RMB71,950,000 of General Machine Co. Ltd.
was the accounts receivable of the Company. Deducting this
element, the accounts receivable of the Company was
RMB158,920,000, has a little bit increase as compared with the
beginning of the period.

AFEMEBER T EFE AR
(&5%) WA ERIRMER 1) 69 R BB Az
B R o

Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
accounts receivable during the period.
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i 8 Wk 3. Other receivables
By AR T
Unit: RMB

iEY | Haw
R R
&8 LB (%) IR & R &8 LB (%) Wik &R
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008
Account balance Account balance

Provision for Provision for
BE Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debts Amount Proportion (%) bad debts
—EHR Within 1 year 14,743,405 46.64 992,350 19,847,005 49.29 992,350
—EZ 1-2 years 1,130,160 3.57 2,813,817 19,967,515 49.59 17,061,698
—E=F 2-3 years 14,602,572 46.19 14,340,960 93,078 0.23 93,078
ZEHE Over 3 years 1,137,120 3.60 355,716 355,716 0.88 355,716
&t Total 31,613,258 100.00 18,502,842 40,263,314 100.00 18,502,842

REEHE M BRSPS B QA
5% (E5%) JA ERIRMENRD B9 AR B
i 89 R 5K

Note: Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
other receivables during the period.

A R 4.  Prepayments
By AR T
Unit: RMB

BER# EiEo)
& E B (%) & EE Bl (%)
At 30th June, 2008 At 1st January, 2008

[ ] Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
—FHUA Within 1 year 27,083,710 88.30 7,899,699 82.76
—E - 1-2 years 3,250,225 10.60 1,306,325 13.69
—E=F 2-3 years 0 - 12,661 0.13
=FMUE Over 3 years 338,841 1.10 326,180 3.42
&5t Total 30,672,776 100.00 9,544,865 100.00

i AREHENRA T EFFE R EI5%
(E5%) LA LEFRRER AR E (7
HY R 5K o

Note: Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
prepayments during the period.
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5. KRB HE B ¥ 5. Long-term equity investment
By AR T
Unit: RMB
DRBBERE k)3 ] BEen HXBE HMXBEER
Provision for
diminution
in value of
Initial At 1st January, Increase/ At 30 June, long-term
HWREEM Invested company investment cost 2008 decrease 2008 investment
ALERBEKE Xi’an Ser
BEERAA 21,693,266 21,693,266 - 21,693,266 -
RRBREBESR Siyuan
BRAR 27,310,000 27,310,000 - 27,310,000 19,330,000
EBERERER Kunji Transportation
EXRA 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 -
RARARKES Winko
BEERDA 19,341,545 19,341,545 - 19,341,545 19,341,545
ERE BTN Yunnan Cheng Jiang 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Copper Products Plant
EHERARZEBARART Kunji General Machine 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
BERH# L BEK Fujian Kuniji Conventional
BRAA Machine Tool 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
EREI#KAERLDE TOS Kunming 24,739,534 30,308,742 548,714 30,857,456 -
ARBHFRREETRE Xi'an Ruite
MEER DA 10,000,000 14,011,819 (590,039) 13,421,780 -
&t Total 111,084,345 118,165,371 2,458,676 120,624,047 40,671,545
6. W& %L P 153 BLE B 6. Deferred taxes assets
By AR T
Unit: RMB
RS Mo
Reasons for causing At 30th June, At 1st January,
BIEFFBSMEEELERHA deferred taxes assets 2008 2008
EERERE Provision for bad debts 16,885,372 13,890,406
FEKREEE Provision for diminution in value of
inventories 3,316,837 3,345,776
BEEEREER Provision for impairment of fixed assets 815,239 578,503
EETEREERE Provision for impairment of
construction-in-progress 514,233 514,233
REREIRE R EEE Provision for diminution in value of
long-term equity investment 8,382,396 8,234,886
B E Estimated liabilities 1,882,043 1,367,249
iR 18 A Early retirement benefits 4,941,511 4,942,324
FRAEERESR Issue VAT invoice in advance 1,698,197 4,341,338
ST ## Bh Government grants 277,500 277,500
&&F Total 38,713,327 37,492,215
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BEBRA Operation revenue
By AR T
Unit: RMB
xHBRER LTHRESE
Revenue for the
Revenue for same period of
RA ltem this period last year
FEEBKA Principal operation revenue 591,675,326 432,982,945
Efh ZHUA Other operation revenue 16,083,766 10,653,625
ast Total 607,759,093 443,636,570
A g & Investment income
By ARK T
Unit: RMB
XL EHA
L& xHeE BReEBnRE
At 30th June, At 30th June, Reasons for
HREENM Invested company 2007 2008 change
AR E] TOS Kunming 984,280 3,848,714 & 5 0
Profit increased
78 22 T 4 Xi’an Ruite (165,664) (590,039) 538
loss
ARER Xi’an Ser - 9,000,000 5 B IR A
Dividend received
BRI A W Investment gain on
wealth management - 158,205
SEIR T Winko 357,204 -
HEEBNHEERR Investment loss on
selling equities of
Hengtong (2,020,794) -
A5t Total (844,975) 12,411,881

A REARERFNEEFESFE A
B3R 8 8 892007 F T B 5 B 7
B QAR O] B FE
900& 7T ' it A B AR A 7

Note: According to the 2007 profit distribution proposal approved by
the 1st meeting of the 4th term of board of directors of Xi’an
Ser, the Company would receive the distribution profit of
RMB9,000,000 and would credit it to the current investment

income.
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9. BlEWHERMEER 9.  Supplementary information of the cash flow statement
By AR T
Unit: RMB
XH&H THeH
Amount of the
Amount of same period of
#wrEEH Supplementary Information this period last year
1. BB HABEEETDH 1. Reconciliation of net profit to
BeRE cash flows from operating
activities
5 Net Profit 138,750,223 87,909,653
o EAR R AN B 2 Add: Gain of minority interest - -
TR A EREES Provision for impairment of assets 21,544,685 (1,192,031)
BEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 22,269,293 10,735,479
mEERE Amortization on intangible assets 1,032,737 1,087,525
RESHBRAEHE Amortization on long-term
deferred expenses - -
FHREANRD Of:5m) Decrease in deferred expenses
(less: increase) 125,394 -
TEIRE ARG O/ D) Increase in accrual expenses
(less: decrease) - -
REBRTEE BREEM Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
HtRBAEEMNBER Ok %) intangible assets and other
long-term assets (less: income) 1,108,261 1,145,416
EEEMEELX Loss on deserted fixed assets - -
s ER Financial expenses 1,636,271 1,496,681
wEBK OB ) Investment loss (less: income) (12,411,881) 844,975
RER KEE Of - B18) Credit on deferred tax
(less: borrowing) (1,221,112) 933,716
FERR D Of: 15 n) Decrease in inventory
(less: increase) (24,245,993) 36,568,225

5 1 I IR B A9 OR 00)
A8 O B 803 00 O )

H Al
EETHELEMBASREREA

2. FERASGHIHBVBNRRED 2.
BHEREAN
—FRIHH AR R EES
BAEBRAEEEE

3. BE&RASFRMBEMER 3.
R HRBER
IR T W B YRR
MR FEYHHRERE
R e EE MRS

ReRBeERMBEAME

Decrease in operating receivable
(less: increase)
Increase in operating payables
(less: decrease) (10,365,239)
Others -
Net cash flows from operating
activities
Financing and investing activities
not involving in cash
Debts capitalization -
Convertible bond due within one year -
Fixed assets under financial Lease -
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances at
the end of the period
Less: Cash and bank balances at
the beginning of the period
Add: Cash equivalents at
the end of the period -
Less: Cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period -
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

(81,310,345)

56,912,293

336,887,587

322,698,507

14,189,081

(91,650,937)

73,066,085

120,944,786

217,602,620

113,884,419

103,718,200
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(8

RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS

A7 76 12 ) B A% i B OB6 O A DL 1.  Details of related parties with controlling relationship
(1) 7776 2 B AR W B o (1) Related parties with controlling relationship
4 £:3 HEORME SELHGFY Skl FELEEE BERERA
Relationship
with the Place of Legal
Name Company Nature registration Scope of business representative
BIEERK (RE) BREAAF F-AKR ERER BET  SBUAIBRK BERRRERRE BHR
(REBRAEE) HE BRN-REXESH RNESH
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) The largest Limited  Shenyang  Production of metal-cutting machines, Guan
Company Limited shareholder liability City digital controlled software and Xiyou
(“Shenyang Group”) machine accessories; General
business trading and technology
trading within PRC.
ARERRRRERBERAA FRA ERERE Fem  BERERBIR SR BEg Bk
(BZER) KEXE SERBRABHDN
AN aPRHEIR 8RR
BECIRB BRERORMWEE
BREE HE-
Xi'an Ser Subsidiary Limited Xi'an Design, develop and sales of Wang
liability City turbo-machinery Shangjin
BRRABRERSHARAA FRFE ERER mzm ERENEFIRRERNEE REX
(BHER) EEWHE RITRE-
Siyuan Subsidiary Limited Xi'an  Develop, manufacture and sales of Zhang
liability City electronic products, electric Hanrong
machinery and products of
electronic power; Provide
technology services.
ERARARKAYRREERAA FRAE ERERE BT AEREBANEE ER ZREN Rph
(BBHR) BFER LREM TREND
HETE KBRAH
Winko Subsidiary Limited Kunming  Develop, apply and integrate hardware Qin
liability City and software; retail, wholesale, Jianzhong
purchase on behalf of others and
consign electronic products,
machinery and electronic machinery.
BREAERERAETAA FRA BREME BHAT LREE RER
(BEHEH)
Kunji Transportation Subsidiary Limited Kunming General cargo Transportation Zhang
liability City Xiaoyi
EARBRBAREARAA FRHE ERERE BT BAREGAORE R #HE Bk
Kunji General Machine Subsidiary Limited Kunming  Developing, design, and sale of machine Gao
liability City tool products and accessories Minghui
BERBEERAAREMELA FRA ERER BRm RE RIS EENHEAERK [FIE &
FIIEmRE M
Fujian Kunji Conventional Machine Tool ~ Subsidiary Limited Nan An Developing, design, and sale of machine Zhou
liability City tool products and accessories Guoxing

made by the company
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(2)  FEHBAAR Y BT Y G & (if)  Registered capital and its changes of related parties with
A Je H s Ak controlling relationship
By ARK
Unit: RMB
Hae FH8m FHRD Rk &
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
LEELB Name 2008 this period this period 2008
B 5 R & Shenyang Group 1,556,480,000.00 - - 1,556,480,000.00
ALER Xi'an Ser 50,000,000.00 - - 50,000,000.00
THEEH Siyuan 35,000,000.00 - - 35,000,000.00
BB Winko 20,230,000.00 - - 20,230,000.00
RHRES Kunji Transportation 500,000.00 - - 500,000.00
EHEHBRRE Kunji General Machine
BERAA] 3,000,000.00 - - 3,000,000.00
BREM I EKR Fujian Kunji Conventional
EREMEAT Machine Tool - 5,000,000.00 - 5,000,000.00
(iii)  Shares or equity held by related parties with controlling relationship
(3)  FEAE FE I BEAR 0% B W 7 i 4
J Ay oK M 25 M H s AL
B ARK
Unit: RMB
ik iES
&8 Ll (%) FHEm s8R &8 LBl (%)
At 1st January, 2008 At 30th June, 2007
Increase Decrease
LEER Name Amount Proportion (%) this period this period Amount Proportion (%)
BERKEE Shenyang Group 106,578,219.00 25.09 - - 106,578,219.00 25.09
[i:4-{] Xi'an Ser 22,500,000.00 45.00 - - 22,500,000.00 45.00
BHER Siyuan 27,310,000.00 78.03 - - 27,310,000.00 78.03
BB Winko 19,570,000.00 96.74 - - 19,570,000.00 96.74
BRES Kuniji Transportation 500,000.00 100.00 - - 500,000.00 100.00
BRE#BEASRE  Kunji General
ERAA Machine 3,000,000.00 100.00 - - 3,000,000.00 100.00
BREBLEEE  Fujian Kunji Conventional
BREEDF Machine Tool - - 2,500,000.00 - 2,500,000.00 50.00
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A A7 FE %l BE A% 0 BB 5 G UL Related parties with non-controlling relationship
pg £-% BELENRE

Name Relationship with the Company

EERRBEHTHIKE R QA BEME

TOS Kunming Joint venture

AR REREETREMEERDA

Xi’an Ruite

EHCYEHRAFAERESH L

Yunnan CY Group Company Ltd. Products
Trading Center (“CY Group Products
Trading Center”)

THEREEELOGRAA

Yunnan Yunji Group Import and Export
Company Limited (“Yunji Group”)

E#EERNA

Kunji Group

B b 2

Associated company

BE-RKERZFRA

Subsidiary of the largest shareholder of the Company

E—ARRZTAA
Subsidiary of the largest shareholder of the Company

8- RIRRATIESIF A

Subsidiary of the second largest shareholder of the Company

B Bk 32 B G UL
1) HERERY

® AF2007FELATISE
1% 7 2 A B 44 4R [ o O
ERAARHEERY &
#2,397,435.897T ;

@ AT2007TFEEATIHEE
e EFECYEE
NAERBESFRLHEER
¥) & 3825,042.737C

®  A72008%F ¥ 42007
FEUMSERRBE S
EBRENMEEEMSES
Bl & 6,309,077.927T -
10,901,013.377T :

@  AF]2008% £ 42007
F R AT S B8 7 B B
TRREMASEZ XD
AEEEMERI AR
23,499,708.957T
15,336,223.827T

®  AT2008%F F¥FEAH
5B A% R BE B 5 B RS IR
EHOEREARAGIHEE
B4 % 58,452,991.45
JC

Connected transaction

(i)  Connected transaction regarding sales of goods

a.

The Company sold goods with amount of
RMB2,397,435.89 to Yunnan Yunji Group Import
and Export Co., Ltd. at market price during the
year 2007.

The Company sold goods with amount of
RMB25,042.73 to Yunnan CY Group Co. Ltd.
Products Trading Centre at market price during
the year 2007.

The Company sold goods with amount of
RMB6,309,077.22 to TOS Kunming at market price
during the first half year of 2008. During the year
2007, the amount was RMB10,901,013.37.

The Company sold goods with amount of
RMB23,499,708.95 to Czech Tos Vansdorf Co.,
Ltd. at market price during the first half year of
2008. During the year 2007, the amount was
RMB15,336,223.82.

The Company sold goods with amount of
RMB8,452,991.45 to Shenyang Machine Tool
Import and Export Co. Ltd. at market price during
the first half year of 2008.
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=
=
i

) Yl

® A 7E)2008%F £ ¥4 2007
FERBEESERE
HEEEMEED
% 6,966,153.887T -
48,682,757.347T

) A RIZAHRR) B RS 5 R AR
= 44 79 #696,658.73

JC°

® RARAHAEMCYEE
BRAFBEMEERS
%8 /147,6007T

(B) Hixh

AR AHIHEE PR EEER
RBFRIMEHE R BEH
E#EBEAR AR X {F2008F
[ = 71 & #80,000.007T °

(ii)

(iii)

Connected transaction regarding purchase of goods or
receipt of service

a. The Company purchased goods from TOS
Kunming with amount of RMB6,966,153.88 during
the first half year of 2008. During the year 2007,
the amount was RMB48,682,757.34.

b. The Company paid consultancy fee to TOS
Kunming with amount of RMB696,658.73.

c. The Company purchased two lathes from Yunnan
CY Group Co., Ltd. with amount of RMB147,600.

Other transactions

The Company has entered into a plant lease agreement
with Kunming Kunji Group during the reporting period
and needs to pay the leasing fee of RMB80,000 to
Kunming Kunji Group for the year 2008.

BB R 5 B 4, Balances of connected transactions
By AR
Unit: RMB
MBEMRE L-4i8: % 200 e kD REME
At 30th June At 1st January
Related parties Items 2008 2008 Nature
BHEE HoAth [ 15 3R 0 894,898.23 AXNNNNEERES
Kunji Group Other payables Unpaid property
management fee
EHEN QT JEWHR 3K 3,846,180.29 5,653,902.25 =g
TOS Kunming Accounts receivables Payment for goods
H A FE IR 140,018.47 61,109.40 %
Other receivables Business-related
e IR 3K (2,685,581.25) 13,871,668.75 ERER
Accounts payables Payment for goods
EREMAHZRLA & 15 BR 3K 7,377,083.57 4,819,362.68 LA
Czech Tos Vansdorf Account receivables Payment for goods
CHEREEELENARAR U ER R 0 24,255.00 X
Yunnan CY Group Import and Export Co. Receive from Payment for goods
customer in advance
ZACYRERRERESTDL J& 1 BR 3% 4,300.00 4,300.00 X
CY Group Products Trading Center Accounts payable Payment for goods
R Ui B X 9,000.00 (286,000.00) g3
Accounts receivable Payment for goods
EHCYEEERLASERER N 0 10,929.00 "
Yunnan CY Group Jinhui Painting and Accounts payable Payment for goods
Assembling Plant
BHEHK (EE)L—BREEAA JEE 154 BR 3% 5,994.00 5,994.00 "
BRO DA
Sheniji Group Shenyi Co. Accounts payable Payment for goods
Electrical Branch
BHEERKELOBRETAA W R 5,071,840.00 (483,160.00) &R

Shenyang Machine Tool Import and

Export Co., Ltd.

Accounts receivable

Payment for goods
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CERiE¥s

HE-FT/\FAASHRLAEA -FREEH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH HONG KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June 2008 — Unaudited

(UAREZT) (Expressed in Renminbi)
H#EXNA=+AHLXEAR
Six months ended 30 June
-1 J - 3 —ZESLESFE
REFX REER
Kt &t AR®EFT ARETFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BHREEREE Continuing operations
A Turnover 791,698 541,673
W Cost of sales (522,531) (369,897)
X1 Gross profit 269,167 171,776
g Other revenue 5 46,458 27,440
WEBER Distribution costs (36,671) (25,930)
THER Administrative expenses (97,710) (51,650)
Hih &R Other operating expenses 6 (3,346) (1,621)
BEKS Profit from operations 177,898 120,015
BMBER Finance costs 6 (1,808) (2,313)
FE(LEE & R R B8 Share of losses of associate (590) (166)
BIEEERRIERE Share of profits of jointly
controlled entity 3,849 984
FEtFRB{ROFE Profit before taxation 179,351 118,520
P15 7% Income tax 7 (25,907) (13,365)
BREEEZHAANRE Profit from continuing operations 153,444 105,155
RILEBEES Discontinued operation
RIEEE XK EE Loss from discontinued operation
(HFR PSR (net of income tax) 4 - (1,980)
FHFRE Profit for the period 153,444 103,175
AR Attributable to:
—ARRARE - Equity shareholders of
the Company 147,940 95,004
—DHRKRE - Minority interests 5,504 8,171
153,444 103,175
SERER: Earnings per share
—EARBRAEF - Basic earnings per share 9 0.348 0.224
~RFECEEBNERSRAT - Earnings per share from
continuing operations 0.348 0.227

REI0BEEF126B 2B AP B BHRED

B

The notes on pages 108 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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Aﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi@ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
RZZEZNFRA=ZTH-REE At 30 June 2008 - Unaudited
(KARBIT) (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZZEENE R-ZEZLF
~NA=+H +=-RA=+—8H
REER BER
Kt &t ARBTF T ARBFr
At 30 At 31
June 2008 December 2007
Unaudited Audited
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M BEREBEMETELR Property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress 10 443,941 430,764
ENLHHEER Lease prepayments 24,384 24,685
ENMERES Prepaid property lease rights 60,543 60,996
mEEE Intangible assets 4,071 4,562
Fﬁ 2 Goodwill 5,844 5,844
ReEEhENER Interest in a jointly controlled entity 21,989 21,440
b‘A RN =k Interest in an associate 13,627 14,217
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 36,092 31,209
610,491 593,717
mEBEE Current assets
A= Inventories 11 552,896 427,423
JE UK BR 2R K R U = AR Trade and bills receivable 12 289,450 285,089
TE & EH A FEUGRIE R TE A K Deposits, other receivables
JE L A g and prepayments 13 124,227 82,423
HeRBESEEYD Amounts due from related parties 6,672 5,715
Cash at bank and in hand 14 404,730 370,351
1,377,975 1,171,001
mEAE Current liabilities
—FREEHORITER Bank loans - due within one year 15 20,000 -
JEHEE«TA&JEHTTF Trade and bills payable 16 184,197 120,798
TEUW FRIE Advances from customers 481,253 434,605
HEMmEMNRERESHAI Other payables and accrued
expenses 207,766 122,861
B FE WA Deferred income 12,874 9,950
FE A< BR Bk 7 RKOB Amounts due to related parties - 13,872
FERTRTIS A Income tax payable 18,676 27,364
—FREEZBMEBORE Obligations under finance leases —
due within one year 213 213
—FABEHANRR T EE T &M Early retirement benefits obligation
due within one year 2,562 3,642
B Warranty provision 13,311 9,117
940,852 742,422
RDEESRE Net current assets 437,123 428,579
HEERTHDAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,047,614 1,022,296
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PR E Rl R ()
R-TENEAA=Z+A-REEK
(KAR#FITR)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

At 30 June 2008 - Unaudited
(Expressed in Renminbi)

RISENE R-ISSLtEF
AA=+H +=A=+—8H
RIEFX EBEE
Kt &t AR®EFT ARETFT
At 30 At 31
June 2008 December 2007
Unaudited Audited
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RBAER Non current liabilities
HITERNBR —FRIEBNHHD Bank loans - due after one year 15 50,000 50,000
b & TE 4 Obligations under finance leases 2,666 2,772
AERTEE THMN Early-retirement benefits obligation 15,559 16,157
i 3E U 2= Deferred gain 2,714 2,817
& EAFE AT 5K Long-term payables 7,200 7,200
78,139 78,946
BEE NET ASSETS 969,475 943,350
B &R iR CAPITAL AND RESERVES
& 7 Share capital 17 424,865 424,865
ffé 18 Reserves 17 477,720 444,494
ELOFIREELEER Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 902,585 869,359
PEHERER Minority interests 17 66,890 73,991
e TOTAL EQUITY 969,475 943,350

REI0BEEF126B 2B AP B BHRED

B

The notes on pages 108 to 126 form part of these financial statements.




106 | 2008 HHAERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 30 June 2008 — Unaudited

(KARBIT) (Expressed in Renminbi)
BEXRA=+HIEKER
Six months ended 30 June
—EETNEF —ETLE
RIEEX RIEER
Wt % ARETFIT AR Fr
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—HZBRRESEHE: Total equity at 1 January:
Attributable to:
riN/NE R Equity shareholders of the Company 869,359 627,907
DR RS Minority interests 73,991 71,191
943,350 699,098
BT : Net profit for the period:
Attributable to:

RAFRR Equity shareholders of the Company 17 147,940 95,004

DR RS Minority interests 17 5,504 8,171
B 5 ) Net profit for the period 153,444 103,175
BB (EBE)RFLFANES: Disposal/acquisition of interests

in subsidiaries:

DR RS Minority interests (1,605) (5,886)
B #l 9 B Dividend approved during the period 8 (114,714) -
FEFOHBRBER Distributions to minority interests (11,000) -
BRXB=1+H#EZa Total equity at 30 June 969,475 796,387

REI08EEE126B 2B AT HUEHREN

The notes on pages 108 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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1 W1 45 Dk BL 4 30 % CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEZZZ )/ \FANAZ+THLEANEARA - REEZ For the six months ended 30 June 2008 — Unaudited
(UARBZT) (Expressed in Renminbi)
gEXA=+H1LKER
Six months ended 30 June
l- 1Y 1§ —EZESF
KEER AXEER
Kt &t AR®EFT ARETFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEXBEENR S Cash generated from operations 97,803 159,951
EftFRER Tax paid (36,776) (14,307)
EETDFRANALPH Net cash generated from
operating activities 61,027 145,644
BREZHFMAMR&BEHE Net cash used in investing activities (40,945) (55,102)
REEDMRE, (FRA)M Net cash from/(used in)

HResH financing activities 11,064 (14,636)
RIEEBZEBEHRBHHALPBRE Net cash from discontinued operation - 10,538
BHeRIEEE/DMEMNSE Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents 31,146 86,444
HeRFAEEFED Cash and cash equivalents at

W—B—H&& 1 January 363,306 166,410

SEEESETHHTE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (1,174) (889)

BeRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents
BWARB=Z+H&ER at 30 June 14 393,278 251,965

RE108EEF126H 2 T B Rl B K RED

HKE D

The notes on pages 108 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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AR R A% v 0] W 8 B NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT
(BREMHEAINTIBARE) (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Bl TRk

AP GRS NIERREERERSHER
AAIFFLETRAUNBERER G 2IEE
FTEBEHMAE ([EESTMAE])HE
MREESER ([EBEFHER]) £34
ST E®RE | - APHEBEREER
20084F 8 H 27 B R #E T 3% -

AN o HA B R R A T R BR D £ ] B R A PR AR
MAERDR ([ARR]) REKBAR (A1
[RNEE]) FEEE2007F12531H IH4F
EZHBREMRNZER SRR RE-
B N B 2007 F FTIR M 2 #T 5] R 4818
FIEBMBMEEN([EEVBHREE
Al st F2EM 2 -

RBEER ST EAE345 PP BIRESN
RAEFTEAEIREEDHE AERRR U
FHEH HERBRREZESITHRENER
NERAFHEAREAMAE2RNEER
BE RARIHNBE ERERTEES
NZEMHE-

RRBEAFHT RS EEEREALR
EESHBREMER ZERMEB RGHEE
ETHEEREZNKEEEZ2007F12831
ALEFEZERAMBREMAEMRER-

A HIB R E B A AR A M mR R
EENRMKE-MEREAIRERAE
[ B 20074 5 JE B 15 3 & DA K &0 81 BUOIROR
REEEHHEHERRGRIZNBEE-
BRAGSVBREALEMNEIL TEERER
AU BRESLENRUBETBREIAFTNE
AR

PHAB IS SRS FTE A 220074 128318 b
FHREEXEARNEAMER ZHBEHR
W AR AR R % B B 8 2 5K T8 B 75 4R
X EDRBZEMBHRE -EE2007F 12
AS1B L FE AW MERAIRAR A
B F R R B AR A %A E 720084 4
R4B 2 MEFHRZEMERRERERE
BER-

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This interim financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
including compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
34 “Interim financial reporting”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). It was authorised for
issuance on 27 August 2008.

The interim financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the same accounting policies adopted by Shenji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) in the preparation of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007. Please refer to
Note 2 for the discussion of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by the Group in 2008.

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity with
HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses on a year
to date basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this interim financial report, the significant judgements
made by management in applying the Group’s accounting policies
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as
those that applied to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

This interim financial report contains condensed consolidated
financial statements and selected explanatory notes. The notes
include an explanation of events and transactions that are significant
to an understanding of the changes in financial position and
performance of the Group since the 2007 annual financial
statements. The condensed consolidated financial statements and
notes thereon do not include all of the information required for full
set of financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The financial information relating to the financial year ended 31
December 2007 that is included in the interim financial report as
being previously reported information does not constitute the
Company’s statutory financial statements for that financial year but
is derived from those financial statements. Statutory financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 are available
from the Company’s registered office. The auditors have expressed
an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their report
dated 24 April 2008.
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(iv)

2.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs,
which term collectively includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, that are effective
or available for early adoption for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008. The Board of Directors has determined the
accounting policies to be adopted in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2008,
on the basis of HKFRSs currently in issue.

The HKFRSs that will be effective or are available for voluntary
early adoption in the annual financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2008 may be affected by the issue of additional
interpretations or other changes announced by the HKICPA
subsequent to the date of issuance of this interim report. Therefore
the policies that will be applied in the Group’s financial statements
for that period cannot be determined with certainty at the date of
issuance of this interim financial report.

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the periods presented.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
segments. Business segment information is chosen as the primary
reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal
financial reporting. As the Group mainly operates in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), no geographical segment information is
presented.

The business segment of the Group comprises:

(i

=

the design, manufacture and sale of boring machines;

(i)  the design, manufacture and sale of sensors and turbo tables,
and computerised embroidery machines;

(iii)  the design, manufacture and sale of intelligent electrical
appliances;

(iv)  the design, manufacture and sale of turbo machines; and
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WRERAR ([ARHE]) ZEENTE
BEFEAEENFEERL T ARE
15,232,000 EEHFTBEEXZHRMAR

#14,000,0007T °

HE_ZTHFRA=Z+TH BENREILL

4. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

RMB14,000,000.

In March 2007, the Group disposed of a subsidiary, Shanxi Hengtong
Intelligent Machine Company Limited (“Hengtong”), which
represented its entire laser prototyping machines segment (see note
3), to Xi’an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing and Engineering
Research Company Limited (“Xi’an Ruite”), an associate of the
Group. The effect of the disposal was a decrease in the net assets
of the Group of RMB15,232,000, excluding cash consideration of

Losses attributable to the discontinued operation for the six months

EEBHEEBET: ended 30 June 2007 were as follows:
HEXA=+HIEKER
—E2tEEF
AXEER
ARMF T
Six months ended
30 June 2007
Unaudited
RMB’000
BIEEEEBOER Results of discontinued operation
A Revenue 45
& A Expenses (998)
BEXR Results from operations (953)
Frig %t Income tax -
REEBERLEBEZEBEHMEETI”R  Loss after tax but before loss on
sale of discontinued operation (953)
BERIKEEEBNEIE Loss on sale of discontinued
operation (1,027)
XHER Loss for the period (1,980)
SRR Attributable to:
QAR R Equity shareholders of the Company (1,650)
DERR Minority interests (330)
(1,980)
EXERIEXR Basic loss per share (0.004)
RILESEXER(B) 88 Cash flows from discontinued
BReBHE operation

mEERS (A) /SRS FHR
BREFDRE/ () RLFHE

RIEREEBRF/NRESFHE

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash from investing activities

Net cash from discontinued
operation
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HE_TT+F+A=+T—H BEKILE The effect of the disposal on the financial position of Group as at
KEXBHEBRMBRANTE 31 December 2007 is as follows:

R-_ZSELEF

+=-RA=+—H

BE

ARBFT

At 31 December

2007

Audited

RMB’000

ME -BERZRE Property, plant and equipment (2,333)

mEE Intangible assets (4,054)

"E Inventories (6,217)

JE U R 0 R E L 2R B Trade and bills receivable (3,368)

TE @~ H UK R TB A 5K Deposits, other receivables and prepayments (1,791)

RekReEEYD Cash and cash equivalents (1,367)

FERTRIB R ENEE Trade and bills payable 2,294

RN FEERAE Net identifiable assets and liabilities (16,836)

[k Goodwill (2,376)
DR RS Minority interests 3,980
HAEBFEENTE Effect on net assets of the Group (15,232)
5. M2 5. OTHER REVENUE
gEXA=+H1LKER
Six months ended 30 June
l- 11§ 3 —EZtHF
FEER RKEER
ARKETT ARBTFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEgE Continuing operations
RITEF B U A Interest income from bank deposits 1,408 647
BT R B (2 E () Government grants (i) 27,186 15,722
HEMEEEAMEREM U A Sales of prototype machines and raw materials 14,106 8,837
LEBREMEER Deemed income from transfer of shares
ES K from minority interests 3,605 1,906
Hi Others 153 328
46,458 27,440
BRILEEE Discontinued operation
RITHF B U A Interest income from bank deposits - 4
Bt &t Notes:
(i) BREF@BEPEE  BRFREAERNS (i) Government grants represent various forms of incentives and subsidies
T = ) S Eh AR AL - given to the Group by the local PRC government.
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6. BB %k A 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
R B AR B 2 Bk Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
G HaEm (i) Other operating expenses
EEXA=+HIEAKER
Six months ended 30 June
—EENEF —EZLEFE
RKEER RXBER
ARBFT ARKTFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEESR Continuing operations
LHEWE -BE R Loss on disposal of property,
RERFIEX plant and equipment 1,249 1,201
Y- B R E Impairment loss of property,
HEBE plant and equipment 1,578 -
Efh & R FE Other net expenses 519 420
3,346 1,621
(i) MHEH (ii) Finance costs
H#EXNA=+AHLAXEAR
Six months ended 30 June
—EENEF —ZESLESFE
RIEFX REER
AR®EFT ARETFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEER Continuing operations
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 3,884 1,236
W BEERARE R Less: borrowing costs capitalised * (2,624) (315)
1,260 921
BEHEREDN Finance charges on obligations under
%8 A finance leases 64 64
MEM T ABFHME  Finance charges in respect of
7% & A early retirement benefits obligation 482 571
HipH 2 &R Others - 757
1,806 2,313
* BE-TTNFNA=1+HIENEAR RIT * The borrowing costs have been capitalised at an annual rate of
EREAXEFFE657% (ZEZT+F[H interest of 6.57% for the period ended 30 June 2008
H1:6.30%) ° (corresponding period in 2007: 6.30%).
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Gii)) HfbEH (iii) Other items
BEXNA=+AHLAXEAR
Six months ended 30 June
—ZETN\F —_EStHF
FIEE KEER
ARKETT ARBTFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHEERE Continuing operations
TEREMBF Salary and staff related costs 94,626 73,172
YW WENREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16,736 14,685
RIS HEK Early-retirement benefits obligation 12 1,522
B Warranty expenses 8,054 3,687
mEEESH Amortisation of intangible assets 989 989
B L & % 5 Amortisation of lease prepayments 302 302
T EEE — ERIR X X Impairment losses
E i JE YT - Trade and other receivables 17,357 -
B Y EEE B Amortisation of prepaid property lease rights 46 46
BHRIEEE Discontinued operation
T& Kk H iz F Salary and staff related costs - 275
W WENKREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - 757
7. B 7. INCOME TAX
BEXNA=+AHLAXEAR
Six months ended 30 June
—ZETN\F -3 3 3
FIEE KEER
ARETT AR®TFT
2008 2007
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
Continuing operations
REREHEA Current tax — PRC 21,025 13,585
IR ER A Deferred taxation 4,882 (220)
25,907 13,365
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BAAB RIS FAGREEBERRAERN
BN REERE T EEBAEHERRN
HMERERBTBH25% (2007F R H:
33%) AEMERAEFEMEHEFRSE-

R2007F 38168 FEAREZFEE+/E
2EARARRACERAASHBB(PEA
REMBOEMSHE) ([FHE]) A
2008F1A1HREIT- ARIHENEIE
ARABRAQNRRABENTAGEARARN
EEFMEBMEE E2008F1818 L& A
25%¢

REEREMRERKEEHNR2007F 127251
MY [2007]18355 B A1 R AN D 7 8%
HIRSHE WA SRGHES WA BTN HIHE
BT70% @ RARIREAIAMEERRK
BE B2004F ZZ15%N B EMBH
Ko ZBEABERERFBFETIHMELT
I 20114 E Ko

RETEMAREZEMRE AARNRE LT
RAIRBHEMEE TX15%NEEMG
HEEB X

REBEHBOENRE ATEEFTZSHEM
TEIBRHEERE - AQRFRANSH
Rt E S HHEERBHTETHERERE
ETENRE-EFRAERANERETP

Jbe 8

RIE2008F6 S 13HRITHREBEFAG 2
HoE - H E2007F12 A31H I FENERK
BEABRARKOO2TT AT AR
114,714,0007C 2 E #EfE (20076 R H: ) ©

BEELRETREEHE2008F6A30H HF
ER IR S (20074 F HY : &) -

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on a statutory
rate of 25% (corresponding period in 2007: 33%) of the assessable
profit of the entities comprising the Group as determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of
the PRC, except for the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which are taxed at a preferential rates.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (“new tax law”) which has taken effect
on 1 January 2008. As a result of the new tax law, the statutory
income tax rate currently adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries has changed to 25% effective from 1 January 2008.

Based on Notice [2007] No.183 dated 25 December 2007 issued by
the Kunming State Tax Bureau, the Company is entitled to a state
income tax rate of 15% commencing from 2004 under the
Preferential Tax Policies for the Extensive Development of the
Western Regions because the proportion of the Company’s sales of
digital machine tools exceed 70% of its total revenue. This
preferential tax policy is subject to annual assessment and renewal,
and the policy will officially expire in 2011.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a state income tax rate
of 15% under the preferential tax policies for Advanced and New
Technology Enterprises.

In order to qualify for the preferential tax rate of 15% for Advanced
and New Technology Enterprises, the subsidiaries of the Company
have to be re-recognised as such according to the qualifying
measures under the new tax law. As yet, the re-recognition process
is still in progress.

DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General
Meeting held on 13 June 2008, a final dividend of RMBO0.27 per
share amounting to RMB114,714,000 in respect of the year ended
31 December 2007 was approved (corresponding period in 2007:
Nil).

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
an interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2008
(corresponding period in 2007: Nil).
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9. WREM 9. EARNINGS PER SHARE
B Z£2008F6A30H L6 AMNEREARR The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six months ended
MRBRBEARAR L ARBRERSE ARG 30 June 2008 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
HAR®147,940,0007T (2007 B AR shareholders of the Company of RMB147,940,000 (corresponding
#95,004,0007T) & & £2008%F 6 A30H 1t6 period in 2007: RMB95,004,000) and the weighted average number
BANAKARIEBHITEBRMETHEE of 424,865,000 ordinary shares (corresponding period in 2007:
424,865,000 5+ & (20074 [ £ : 424,865,000 ordinary shares after adjusting for the capitalisation
424,865,000k 5+ & - B #H E2007F R A # issues in 2007) of the Company outstanding during the six months
EHOAR) - ended 30 June 2008.
H E£2008F6A30H IE RABTFEE No diluted earnings per share information has been presented
mERMD AEtESRHEAFNEMNERE because the Company does not have any potential dilutive shares
(2007 R AR &) o in issue during the period ended 30 June 2008 (corresponding period
in 2007: Nil).
10. 3% W Bk 10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
720086 H30H 1E61E A A AREE - During the six months ended 30 June 2008, the addition of property,
WEREHLEE (BEBEREIREAN) A plant and equipment (including transfer from construction in
A R ¥35,309,0007T (2007 R 81 : AR progress) of the Group amounted to RMB35,309,000 (corresponding
44,980,0007T) ~ &, = 20084 6 A30H -6d period in 2007: RMB44,980,000). Items of property, plant and
AR BEBME BERZEREFES equipment with net book value totalling RMB1,255,000 were
H A AR®1,255,0005T (2007F R H: AR disposed of during the six months ended 30 June 2008
#6,100,0007T) ' = 4 E 1B A R 1,249,000 (corresponding period in 2007: RMB6,100,000), resulting in a loss
7t (20074 R HA : A R %1,201,0007T) ° on disposal of RMB1,249,000 (corresponding period in 2007: loss
of RMB1,201,000).
11. #1% 11. INVENTORIES
RZZEENEF RIZSESLF
~B=+H +=-—RA=+—H
REFZ BER
ARMFIT ARMFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 132,543 97,984
EER G Work in progress 297,718 259,268
SR T Finished goods 122,635 70,171
552,896 427,423
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12, MBI 3k B M B 5% 98 12. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
FIERKE SEZRRER (EHRRZRR All of the trade and bills receivable (net of impairment losses for
BEEER) EEAIR —FAUE - bad and doubtful debts) are expected to be recovered within one
year.
EREER R ERER (ENBRREERREE An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable (net of impairment
B)MERESTHET: losses for bad and doubtful debts) is as follows:
RIZSEN\EF R-ZEZtHF
A~B=+H +=—RA=+—AH
KEER BE
ARMFT ARMFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥ HA Current 271,773 273,047
wHE LD R1E A Less than 1 month past due 4,624 2,965
BH1Z=31E A 1 to 3 months past due 6,930 4,239
BE3E 1218 A More than 3 months but less than
12 months past due 6,123 3,934
B ER121E A A Past due over 12 months - 904
BE TR Amounts past due 17,677 12,042
289,450 285,089
FEWEE R R ERZERBEH AR —FRE- Trade and bills receivable are expected to be recovered within one
—MmE BRTEREIN SEHEFRDERIK year. In general, debts other than amounts relating to quality
BRAEFHERIMKHmEE BoHE guarantee deposits are due for payment upon billing. Subject to
REFRSGEMARBHENRL A IZ@ERE R E negotiation, credit terms within a range of one to three months are
S—Z=EANEEH -ERBRKER available for certain customers with well-established trading and
MEEH—FrYE - payment records on a case-by-case basis. The quality deposits are
due for payment upon one year from date of billing.
13, 54~ 30 fib W ROk B B AT ok 13. DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
RIZSEIN\EF R-ZEtHF
AKA=+H +=-A=+—8
KEER BEX
ARMFT ARMFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE IR Advances to suppliers 62,630 37,530
Mg ITREER Deposits for bidding, construction work and
HEERBEENTE S equipment purchase 36,416 28,465
JRE L B, T k7R Staff advances 7,130 4,110
ARE K Taxes recoverable 14,103 4,142
Hity Others 3,948 8,176
124,227 82,423
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14. BERBRESHY 14. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
R-_EEN\EF R-ZZEZtEHE
~A=+H +=-RA=+—8H
RIEE BER
ARMTFT ARMTFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
Re REHFR Cash in hand and demand deposits 393,278 363,306
FHBEANREZR Restricted bank deposits for
FE TR R 3R A 1& B AR performance guarantees and bills payable
KB BRI Y R 1T 17 3 with maturity of more than three months 11,452 7,045
404,730 370,351
15, 87 R 15. BANK LOANS
R_ZEENFE R-ZZEZLEHE
~A=+H +=-RA=+—8H
REE BEX
ARMTFT ARMTFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FARNBEHRITER Bank loans - due within 1 year 20,000 -
—F A ERBRITER Bank loans - due after 1 year 50,000 50,000
70,000 50,000

7 2008F6830H SRITERIVEART R
HIfB AR L EREREERZEDIRER
o R E E200846A30H IL61E A RITE
R FR R E6.57%ET7.47% (2007F R H:

581%% 6.57%) °

6.57%).

At 30 June 2008, the bank loans were secured by mortgages over
land and buildings of the Group. The annual rate of interest charged
on the bank loans ranged from 6.57% to 7.47% for the six months
ended 30 June 2008 (corresponding period in 2007: 5.81% to
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16. A MRk B ME A 52 4% 16. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE
R-ZBTNE R-ZZTtEHF
~NB=+H +=-BA=+—H
RBEX BEX
AR TFT ARBF T
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
e R Trade payables 169,577 116,128
B i Bills payable 14,620 4,670
184,197 120,798
REFBRENERRENZENRESTH An ageing analysis of trade and bills payable of the Group is as
N follows:
R-EBENE R-ZSZTLtF
ANB=+H +=RAR=+—H
RXBER BEX
AR TF T ARBTF T
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
1AREIHs BN EREEER Due within 1 month or on demand 107,568 58,370
1B A =E31@ A Due after 1 month but within 3 months 59,927 49,229
3fE A =6fE A Due after 3 months but within 6 months 16,702 13,199
184,197 120,798
FrERMNEARNENZEESRBEN —FAE All of the trade and bills payable are expected to be settled within
b one year.
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17, B A B il i 17. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AAAREREAELL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
i Bx AT (RRER)/ D8
B A& wE NES LES BER7 @t BREER @t
RBEL REER REER REER REER REER REER REER
AREFT ARETT ARETrT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETR
fii 3 () i 32 (i) i 24 i)
(Accumulated
Statutory losses)/
Share Share Capital surplus retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited
(Note () (Note (i) (Note (i)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2007F1A 1A At 1 January 2007 245,007 293,745 10,225 21,810 57,120 627,907 71,191 699,098
RA#ZE (Hfi(v) Changes in share capital
(Note (iv)) 38,236 (38,236) - - - - - -
RETFRA Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - (5,886) (5,886)
REFE Profit for the period - - - - 95,004 95,004 8,171 103,175
120074 6A30H At 30 June 2007 283,243 255,509 10,225 21,810 152,124 722,911 73,476 796,387
72008F1A 1A At 1 January 2008 424,865 118,887 10,225 42,939 277,443 869,359 73,991 943,350
RESEMFAR  Disposal and acquisition
of subsidiaries - - - - - - (1,605) (1,605)
R 5 E Dividend approved
during the period - - - S AT (14714 - 14714
ARTIERE Distributions to
# B & minority interests - - - - - - (11,000) (11,000)
RNEFH Profit for the period - - - - 147,940 147,940 5,504 153,444
12008F 67 30H At 30 June 2008 424,865 113,887 10,225 42,939 310,669 902,585 66,890 969,475
(i A (i) Share capital
BRIRESNEERERREERFTS Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and the
BWEESINFIREENRSIIN FTEA restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
B RHRESERFEER TS investors or foreign investors, A-shares and H-shares rank
pari passu in all material respects with each other.
(i) BEARAAKE (ii) Capital reserve

BEARNETERKIKB1993F7A1H
Z=1993F 105 18 B I 2% A - 0k
RIE1993F 11 F20H B EKEE AR
HARRRI 2 WE ARAREZAHE
£ AR¥7,000,000t FERE ARK

JF 1% 2 BR 88

Capital reserve represents the profit of Kunming Machine Tool
Plant for the period from 1 July 1993 to 18 October 1993 less
an amount of RMB7,000,000 which the Company paid in cash
to Yunnan Provincial People’s Government pursuant to a
demerger agreement dated 20 November 1993 between Kun
Ji Group Company and the Company.
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(iii) WEAKE

(iv)

EEAER TIRECARER) RFHE
TREMEE-MEEAEEAERFE
ZEARE M E A50%E 7] 512
BORERBES IRRER 2 — 3
RELRBDE) EERATEL A AR
MBEFERE REBERIENAFRK
KABXZEREEEREARE ER
MZEAEEIBEIREMERN
25%-°

JBe Ax 5

20065128220 A 7 B B IR R
REMARTEHBEREER D5%F
HUENEANESEBER AR
([BAREF HE1]) (100 &1
1.5606/%) MPBESEXREFE ([
BABAHR]) (BERBBREERA
B RBERKRES10M S 2.7 %
B BREFERBRGHREE) -2007
F1H308 Lt h EESHBERFY
Pt % -

2007F2A268 BABE HR1E -
HF10A% 8212 1.56060% - N A 7] 518
%% I& A 38,235,8550% © E 1AM
28,091,9550% * HA% 10,143,9000% - 2
17 #9338 AR A B 1 AR AR (B IR B P
EH- RAEE HR1EEE ANQF
Rt ITIR AN $ 45283,243,2550%

20074 3A7H BREN B HREAKRT
% E M IR IR R W AR IS iR
AR % 11 18,728,355 A8 ¥ B (& HAX
BEEE) LAEE IEm B AR EE A i AR o 48
JRE Hf + ARS T 35 7% 378 AR A% B2 & 1 0% U &)
2.7IRE B

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve

(iv)

The statutory surplus reserve represents appropriations from
profit after taxation in accordance with the PRC Company
Law. Statutory surplus reserve is part of the shareholders’
equity and when its balance reaches an amount equal to 50%
of the relevant company’s registered capital, further
appropriation need not be made. According to the PRC
Company Law, the statutory surplus reserve may be used to
make up past losses or to increase capital by means of
conversion. However, when funds from the statutory surplus
reserve are converted to capital, the funds remaining in such
reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

Changes in share capital

On 22 December 2006, a “Share Increase via Capital Reserve”
proposal (the “Share Increase Proposal No. 1”) (whereby
1.5606 new shares would be allotted for every 10 existing
shares) and the “Share Reform” proposal (the “Share Reform
Proposal”) (whereby holders of non-circulating shares would
pay 2.7 shares for every 10 existing shares to holders of
circulating A-shares as consideration for non-circulating shares
becoming listed and tradable) were considered and approved
at an Extraordinary General Meeting and a shareholders’
meeting in relation to the A-share market, respectively. On 30
January 2007, the aforesaid proposals were approved by the
relevant government authorities.

On 26 February 2007, the Company implemented the Share
Increase Proposal No. 1 and 1.5606 new shares were allotted
for every 10 existing shares to all shareholders. In total, the
share capital of the Company increased by 38,235,855 shares,
of which 28,091,955 shares were A-shares and 10,143,900
shares were H-shares. The par value of the issued ordinary
shares was transferred from the share premium account. After
the implementation of the Share Increase Proposal No. 1, the
total issued share capital of the Company was 283,243,255
shares.

On 7 March 2007, the Share Reform Proposal was
implemented in the A-share market where the holders of
non-circulating shares of the Company paid a total of
18,728,355 shares to the holders of circulating A-shares
(excluding holders of H-shares) as consideration for the
circulation of their non-circulating shares. Accordingly, each
holder of circulating A-shares received 2.7 shares for every
10 existing shares from the holders of non-circulating shares.
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2007 6A29H AR AHAKELARE -
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RZBZENFRA=ZTHRR T H
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On 29 June 2007, another “Share Increase via Capital Reserve”
proposal (the “Share Increase Proposal No. 2”) (whereby 5
new shares would be allotted for every 10 existing shares)
were considered and approved at the Annual General Meeting
and Class Meeting. On 15 August 2007, this proposal was
approved by the relevant government authorities.

On 19 November 2007, the Company implemented the Share
Increase Proposal No. 2, and 5 new shares were allotted for
every 10 existing shares to all shareholders. In total, the share
capital of the Company increased by 141,621,628 shares, of
which 104,049,678 shares were A-shares and 37,571,950
shares were H-shares. The par value of the issued ordinary
shares was transferred from the share premium account.

After the implementation of the Share Increase Proposal No. 1
and the Share Increase Proposal No. 2, the total issued share
capital of the Company was RMB424,864,883.

18. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2008 not
provided for in the interim financial report are as follows:

R-BTNEFE R-_ZEETLE

~B=+H +=—RA=+—H

FEER BEX

AR T ARBF T

At 30 June At 31 December

2008 2007

Unaudited Audited

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEI4 Contracted for 67,531 50,074
EREBRTLY Authorised but not contracted for 3,050 398
70,581 50,472
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(b) EWHEMLRE (b) Operating lease commitments
RZZZNFAA=Z+H T M At 30 June 2008, the total future minimum lease payments
MEERANBETHERENRKERE under non-cancellable operating lease payables are as follows:
RIBBREEBMAT:
R-ZZEENE R_EE2LF
ANA=+H +=-RA=+—8H
KEER BEX
ARMFT AEBT T
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F RN Within 1 year 2,561 2,776
—FEREFR After 1 year but within 5 years 8,657 9,113
AFUE Over 5 years 22,598 23,675
33,816 35,564
REERBLEHELERA L A% 5 Operating lease commitments represent rental payable by the
MAERBIBE - KEHAONTHENTF Group for certain of its office properties, factories and staff
IR A&204 quarters. Significant leases are negotiated for an average term
of 20 years.
LN Y2 19. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
() HBEELTHRY (a) Transactions with related parties

BEXA=1+HLEKR{EAR
Six months ended 30 June

—BENEF -4 S
REFEE XHHEE REER REER
AE®TFT AEBT T
2008 2007
Name of party Nature of transactions Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
4N
Associate
PRI R RS BEFRAA (i) - 10,000
Xi’an Ruite Sale of subsidiary
AEDQA
Jointly controlled entity
BRBHEKERAA HE (i) 6,309 2,071
(r&Hrl) Sales
TOS Kunming Machine Tool BAE 697 10
Company Limited (“TOS”) Consultancy fees
REE (iii) 6,966 21
Purchases
T Notes:
(i) RS TR AR ASER LS LS (i) This represents the sale of Hengtong by the Company to Ruite.
NAEEL e
(ii) RS THIHERMGERRENE (i)  These mainly represent the sale of materials to TOS for
Ee production purposes.
iy RS TEEBEERLERNER- (i)  These mainly represent the sale of machine tools by TOS to the

Group.
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(b) 5 B W 5 i Bk (b) Balances with related parties
R-BTNE R-_ZEETLE
~NA=+H +=-A=+—H
REARE ZXHME FEE BEX
ARETT AR®TFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2008 2007
Name of party Nature of transactions Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
B
TOS Balance due from/(to)
ERAEERARESREA (i) - (13,872)
- trade payables
EREERRESHHKIA (ii) 6,532 5,654
— trade receivables
JEM & & RNTEIEE Z A (iif) 140 61
— non-trade receivables
6,672 (8,157)
R Notes:
(i) hHENENBEREEREAEE (i) These mainly represent the sale of machine tools by TOS to the
FEREE SRR Group.
(ii) BB HERM G EBENBRNE (ii) These mainly represent the sale of materials to TOS for
EFXKNE S EW R production purposes.
(i)  UEERFEEEE | AARREE (i)  These mainly represent cash advances that are unsecured,
BB interest-free and repayable on demand.
(c) RPEMHBEAGEENRY (c) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

ARARR-—REBFLE AUHE—E
¢lE&WLiEﬁE&W¢;J%F§ (AL

4 [

T&Efﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁi?ﬂﬁl%ﬂmm
¥ ([EERE]) A EEMEERHAN
ETEE-BEMEALENRSE

FEEDER

- BELHERHEEVERHEME

B R

- RERERABRE REMBR

7% o

BURZTINARENEEEBIBE
PABUBRREIFBELEETRS
PREMGSET - AEBTCHER
Em R RE AT EEERE RELIE
H-ZEEERRELELEXL TE
RREFPRERELE-ZEIZE
BENEE ARAEEFARELR

S ZhIEE
5o

ZRIEENBEG

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled by the
PRC government through its government authorities, agencies,
affiliations and other organisations (“state-owned entities”).
Transactions with other state-owned entities include but are
not limited to the following:

- purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets;
and

- rendering and receiving of utilities and other services.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business on terms similar to those that would
have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The
Group has also established its pricing strategy and approval
processes for major products and services. Such pricing
strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether
the customers are state-owned entities or not. Having due
regard to the substance of the relationship, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions
are related party transactions that require separate disclosure.
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20.

21.

406 60 o Y 26 E LB GR H AR R

H Z2008F 6730 L6 AN ANAF BB
EHEERRSMERAASHKER #HiE
PHHEZANAFANALRIANBRERE
RAE (TEEIEIR]) MERE BIAEER
BE RENHE S EEREK BR2008
FeAKRBMRALEALTM PR ARER
(2008)FE R W) F2105R (FEFFBAE) - AR
AR T ARBRMNNEARARERKRAS
PR RARE SRR EHRER R
B ANRRWEABRERNRERY ABEM
FZANMABWRE AT TP RARERE
=, 5020086 5180 A AT E It E b 1k 3%
IR R

REEBBERAB ARRHERETTHE
T I EA2008F 7 A18H A BB R E
Mgt BEERAARKES4TE T -HE
2008F8A14R BMEEERIE - MABER
BREBIZ - ARERE BINERETH - BER
EER ARREEHNESERGIEBRN
RIEERREBELE-

b4 BB

AT EMOAEOLE KRR B WK
2007 FEMRLIBEHET TEF D HE-

20.

21.

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

During the six months ended 30 June 2008, the Company initiated
the sale of its entire equity interests in Xi’an Jiaotong University
Siyuan Intelligent Electric Apparatus Company Limited (“Siyuan”),
which represents the intelligent electrical appliances segment of
the Group, by calling for an open tender from potential buyers via
the Yunnan Equity Exchange Company Limited. However, in June
2008, the Company was notified by the Shaanxi Xi’an Intermediate
People’s Court that the minority investor of Siyuan had taken legal
action for the liquidation of Siyuan according to PRC laws and
regulations. The Company, as an investor of Siyuan, had been
named as a third party in the lawsuit. Accordingly, on 18 June
2008, the Company announced that it will temporarily cease the
open tender for the sale of Siyuan pending the resolution of the
lawsuit.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company made its
submission to the court. In addition, the Company resumed its plan
to dispose of Siyuan and accordingly, another placement for open
tender was made on the Yunnan Equity Exchange Company Limited.
The base transfer price of the Company’s equity interests in Siyuan
was determined at RMB8,547,000. On 14 August 2008, the open
tender for the proposed sale of Siyuan has been terminated without
any tenders received. As at the date of this report, the directors are
still contemplating whether to proceed with the sale of Siyuan in
the future.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain items in these comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the current period’s presentation to facilitate
comparison.
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22,

BRE_ZZANETH=Z1T—H 22. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

Ak AR R O A4 8L R A B T
0 J R R Y T B 5

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL

ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2008

BEERRUESAPBRERNEALR TES
SR AE D RMAIATER MERREE B
H AR E £2008F 128318 L FEERK
WARRZER B IMEK PR

Up to the date of issue of this interim financial report, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting period
ending 31 December 2008:

RUTBEHSH2EH
SFHBERER

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

ER(BERUBRERERZE])13 FRTNERISZE
HK(IFRIC) 18, Customer Loyalty Programmes

BEMGRELERNEST AL 55
HKFRS 8, Operating Segments

ERGERE1R (B FEHEIH

Revised HKAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

BEEGERE23% (BF]) EHEHA
Revised HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

ERUBHRELNE2R (BFT)  ROXN—TEEAH
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-Based Payment
— Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HRMBREERNFINR LEE

Revised HKFRS 3, Business Combination

BEGRTERNE27TR (BF]) A Hf RERUBHE

Revised HKAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

20085 7H1H
1 July 2008

2009 1H1H
1 January 2009

2009 1A1H
1 January 2009

2009 1A1H
1 January 2009

2009 1A1H
1 January 2009

BRARTESHEEHAB2009F7A 18 k14
M — e FEwmE

Applied to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

20094 7H1H
1 July 2009

AEBETHEZFE] HENRTRER
NEEASREREENTZE MEAAY
BwmRRMRFER] MENRMBEAX
AREHEARBNEEXERMBHRREEX

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
in the period of initial application and has so far concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

% - Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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(=) i)%ﬁ’ AEERRA RAIMBAR
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(h) BEFEHEESHEN(2008F +F H
BEINEEEZER
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TLHE SR R B R A D B RR A A
200848 A 27H

Bf: EE ZREFASE2008F £ FEREHNEEF
RER
B M
ARFEFE EF aREBABREBARARA
2008F FFERSHHBER T FEEMERTE -

REHERAXEERXER THEATNEEN
MMM B AEER MES A Ee
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=
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FE®E ZE B
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200887 27H

ff: EFSHEFSHEEA(008FLFEZRE)ME
HEZELR

VIII. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

1. Financial statements signed and chopped by legal
representative and financial officer;

2. Original copies of the announcements and all documents
disclosed in the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission within the reporting period;

3. 2008 Interim Report;

4. Written confirmation for 2008 Interim Report by the board of
directors and senior management officers;

5. Written approval by Supervisory Committee for 2008 Interim
Report prepared by the board of directors.

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
Gao Minghui
Chairman
27th August, 2008

Note: Written confirmation for 2008 Interim Report by the board of directors and
senior management officers

Declaration

The board of directors, directors and senior management officers of the
Company confirmed that the information in the 2008 Interim Report does
not contain any false information, misleading statements or material
omissions. They also jointly and severally accept full responsibility for
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of the report.

Signature of Declaratory Persons:

Directors:
Gao Minghui Zhang Hanrong Song xingju Sun Kai
Wang Sheng Wang Xing Pi Jianguo Shao Li
Wayne Yu Liu Minghui Chen Ying Li Dongru

Senior management officers:

Zhang Xiaoyi Ye Nong Zhu Xiang
Zhou Guoxing Luo Tao

Board of Directors
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
27th August, 2008

Note: Written approval by Supervisory Committee for 2008 Interim Report prepared
by the board of directors
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HFEHER

AEFESHEFSHRENC2008F F FEMSE) &
TTEZ REEERWOT:

2008F F FERERHBUNEARIEFTE)
BOER ARERNAAAME R ENS
BT

2008F ¥ FEHMENARMBEANTEF
BEENLEEFRXIMNTERE ME
EHESERSEETEEEMRREARE
FENKEEEMPBRREEE:

EROEAZRA RAERR2EFRFEHN
ERMABRARRRERENTR-

FHE KREH FRHE
Bt #IES

MEEBEEARKROARAA
EFe

2008487 27H

OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Regarding the 2008 Interim Report prepared by the board of directors,
we have the following opinions:

The preparation of the 2008 Interim Report and the review
procedures are in strict compliance with laws and regulations, the
articles of association and rules of the Company’s internal
management system.

The content and format of the 2008 Interim Report were in strict
compliance with the regulations of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The messages included
in the 2008 Interim Report can truly reflect the Company’s operating
management and financial status and other matters of the period.

Before providing the above opinions, we did not discover any person
related in the preparation of the 2008 Interim Report or any review
personnel has violated the rule of confidentiality.

Supervisors:

Li Hongshu Zhang Weiming Li Zhenxiong
Yan Shiwen Zhao Qiongfen

Supervisory Committee
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
27th August, 2008



